Phoenix Journal #183



By Gyeorgos Ceres Hatonn

Table Of Contents

CHAPTER 1	1
THERE'S A FISH IN THE COURT-HOUSE	
by Gareth "Gary" L. Wean, A Book Review	1
LAWYERS AND POLITICIANS	1
ABOUT THE AUTHOR	3
CHAPTER 2	5
INTERVIEW WITH A MASTER TEACHER	
WORLD FAMOUS HYPNOTIST GIL BOYNE PART II	
by Rick Martin 9/10/96	
CHAPTER 3	18
CATHY O'BRIEN'S TRANCE FORMATION	
OF AMERICA; UPDATE ON LABOR DAY	
MARCH ON WASHINGTON D.C.	
CHAPTER 4	
FURTHER POLITICAL MAYHEM SURROUNDING GOLD CERTIFICATE	
MORE FROM GRANDMA:	
CHAPTER 5	
CHIEF JUDGE FACED OUSTER Kernan Claims Costello Made Threat	
CHAPTER 6	
V.K. DURHAM	
CHAPTER 7	
WHO CONTROLS BOB DOLE?	
EXPECTING SOMETHING "MORE" THAN SIMPLE GOOD GOVERNMENT	
by Dr. John Coleman 9/18/96	
CHAPTER 8	
EXPOSING "OPERATION DEEP SHAFT"—PART II	37
ROTHSCHILDS' CENTRAL BANKING HOUSES	25
IN EUROPE AND THE U.S. CONTROL THE:	
CHAPTER 9	45
THE UNTOLD HISTORY OF AMERICA PART VII OF A SERIES	1.5
by Ray Bilger 9/24/96	
CHAPTER 10	
THE NEWS DESK by Dr. Al Overholt 9/24/96	
MORE BIG BROTHER BACKGROUND CHECKS	
PEROT PLEDGES TO DISMANTLE IRS, REVAMP TAX SYSTEM	
	33
MORE MOSQUITOS CARRYING VIRUS ARE FOUND IN MORE TOWNS	51
MR. SLEAZE, THE HOMOSEXUAL	
HERE'S WHAT THEY ARE TEACHING	54
YOUR KIDS IN BOB DOLE'S STATE	54

NUCLEAR WASTE DILEMMA	56
ANNOUNCEMENT FROM BETTER WORLD TECHNOLOGY	57
BIG BROTHER AT WORK	58
MORE CORRUPTION IN MEXICO	59
MARINES 'ATTACK' NEW ORLEANS AND MOBILE	59
OUSTED FROM PITTSBURGH	60
LOCATION'S A SECRET	60
IRS FAILS ANOTHER FULL GOVERNMENT AUDIT	60
DOESN'T ADD UP	62
ANGELS ON EARTH	62
CANADIAN SERGE MONAST	
UNDER FIRE BY LOCAL AUTHORITIES	62
CHAPTER 11	
AN AFTERNOON WITH AUTHOR DAVID ICKE PART 3 IN A SERIES	64
CHAPTER 12	70
EUSTACE MULLINS' LATEST HARASSMENT Letter From Eustace Mullins:	70
CHAPTER 13	
GERMAIN: PRACTICAL SUGGESTIONS FOR RAISING YOUR FREQUENCY	72
9/21/96 GERMAIN	72
CHAPTER 14	80
JUDGE RECOGNIZES FREEMEN COURT!	
COMMENTS MADE ON THE RECORD	80
CHAPTER 15	
FREEMEN FAITH TARGETED	81
CHAPTER 16	82
U.S. MILITARY ALERT	82
CHAPTER 17	83
THINK ABOUT IT! WHAT EVER HAPPENED TO	
THE CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS OF "SUFFRAGE"	
by Grandma 9/18/96	83
THINK ABOUT IT!	
9/21/96 GRANDMA	83
SUMMARY	84
THINK ABOUT IT	
NOW THINK ABOUT THIS!	
ARE YOU THINKING ABOUT IT?!	
CHAPTER 18	
V.K. DURHAM: RESOLVING THE NATIONAL DEBT!	87
CHAPTER 19	88
SCATHING INDICTMENT OF GEORGE H.W. BUSH	
Racketeering—Drug Trafficking—Obstructing Justice	
A "KINGPIN" INDICTMENT OF GEORGE BUSH, ET AL	89
INDICTMENTTHE GRAND JURY CHARGES THAT:	
COUNT I—RACKETEERING	90

THE ENTERPRISE	90
ROLES IN THE ENTERPRISE	
PURPOSE AND OBJECTS OF THE ENTERPRISE	93
THE RACKETEERING CONSPIRACY	95
THE PATTERN OF RACKETEERING ACTIVITY	96
ACTS OF RACKETEERING	96
OVERT ACTS	98
COUNT II—CONSPIRACY TO IMPORT NARCOTICS	106
COUNT III—CONTINUING CRIMINAL ENTERPRISE	106
COUNT IV—CONSPIRACY TO OBSTRUCT JUSTICE	107
OBJECT OF THE CONSPIRACY	107
MANNER AND MEANS	107
OVERT ACTS	108
COUNT V—CONSPIRACY TO OBSTRUCT CONGRESS	109
OBJECT OF THE CONSPIRACY	
MANNER AND MEANS	
OVERT ACTS	
BIBLIOGRAPHY	111

THERE'S A FISH IN THE COURT-HOUSE

by Gareth "Gary" L. Wean, A Book Review

Each and every one of you have **Dossiers**...Secret Files that con be used against you by your enemies.

It's like the "Great White Shark"; if he wants you, he is going to get you.

Eighty million Dossiers the Federal Bureau of Investigation has made—that's a Dossier for one out of every three persons in America. Oregon's U.S. Congressman Wes Cooley is under direct, merciless attack by his enemies' use of his Dossier. Lies, innuendo, intimate details of a person's life, infidelities, drinking and drug habits, plain vicious gossip, anything bad you've been overheard saying about a judge—whether any of it's true or not—it's all there.

The news media claims they are getting their information on Cooley from their own day-to-day investigations—this is false. Cooley's Dossier was secretly released by the FBI to his enemies way back when he first voted in Congress for measures his enemies didn't want.

This conspiratorial plot by these vicious people was generated and in place long before the media was ever tuned in. How could just a few FBI Agents possibly come up with **eighty million** Dossiers?

Here is how it works...it breaks down to counties, each and every county in the fifty states of the U.S. FBI Agents assigned to each county have informants in every courthouse, a court clerk, election clerk, court deputy, file clerk, District Attorney, Public Defender, Judge, etc., etc. They have an informant among law offices, political staffs, process servers, bail bondsmen, escrow officers, bankers, jail-house inmates, drug dealers, etc., etc.

These informants feed the FBI Agents every bit of so-called **inside** information on local people, gossip, confidential police reports, client-lawyer relationships, political movements, etc., etc. FBI Agents funnel all of this information and gossip to FBI Headquarters in Washington, D.C., where it becomes part of the individual's Dossier. Dossiers are revealed in this book, *THERE'SA FISH IN THE COURTHOUSE*.

LAWYERS AND POLITICIANS

In Jackson County, Oregon, a lawyer, James Dietz, was handling a civil case for this author who held a **First** Trust Deed on property in California. The people who bought the property obtained lawyers and filed bankruptcy. When the bankruptcy was over, the author wanted to file foreclosure, but lawyer Dietz, in collusion with California lawyers George Benz, Charles J. Conway, Jr. and Randolph Joyce, stalled the author for months to give the California lawyers, who held a **Second** Trust Deed, time to file foreclosure ahead of the author and get the property in their name. Lawyer Dietz then combined with the California lawyers to defraud the author of \$250,000.00. Dietz was secretly paid \$10,000.00 by the other lawyers to defraud his client.

Now, lawyer James W. Dietz has combined with April Sevcik, President of General Credit Services, Inc.,

2724 Jacksonville Highway, Medford, Oregon, to collect \$8,338.32 plus \$2,358.26 interest, a total of \$10,696.58 that Dietz claims is owed him for lawyer fees.

Lawyer Dietz has been sued for misconduct by other lawyers in Medford in the past.

The California lawyers, George Benz, Charles J. Conway, Jr. and Randolph Joyce are associates of another lawyer, Carl E. Ward, who was involved in the assassination of John F. Kennedy, and Carl's brother Robert Ward, who was arrested in a plot to assassinate President Bush and all four past Presidents, Ronald Reagan, Jimmie Carter, Richard Nixon, Gerald Ford and their wives at the dedication of Reagan's Library in Simi Valley, just a few miles from the setting of the Rodney King vs. L.A.P.D. trial. This conspiracy of assassination was covered up by the Secret Service and Robert Ward was released.

Carl E. Ward and Michael H. Wallace, who were Ronald Reagan's Presidential Campaign Chief Financial Officers, were arrested in Portland, Oregon for gambling operations run through a phony church set-up, the Church of the Conceptual Truth. They were laundering money through the Bank of A. Levy in Oxnard, California, which was owned by U.S. Commissioner Ben Nordman and his partner, Judge Jerome Berenson. The lawyers were members of Nordman and Berenson's law firm. Lawyer Dietz was involved with the California lawyers in county and cross-state furnishing of information to the FBI on other members of the Oregon Bar to be placed in Dossiers. Another politician, who is now running for election against Cooley for the purpose of siphoning votes from him, was also involved as a member of Reagan's Presidential Finance Committee.

Presently the U.S. Senate Judiciary Committee is holding hearings into the FBI's release of Dossiers to President William Clinton—strangely, Senators Joseph Biden, Arlen Specter and others were made well aware of this situation many years ago, yet, today they sit and pretend they know nothing about it.

Senator Dianne Feinstein is also presently on the Senate Judicial Committee. A few years back she pressured the Director of the FBI, former Federal Judge William Webster, to secretly give Dossiers to the Anti-Defamation League to be used against politicians and bring them around to vote the way the ADL wanted. Under Feinstein's pressure, William Webster wrote a directive to the commanding agents of all the FBI's major Field Offices in the U.S. to give the ADL records and Dossiers on anyone they want.

The three California lawyers filed a phony civil lawsuit against the author and persecuted and harassed him for five solid years with mis-use and abuse of process, interrogatories, depositions and needless court hearings, forcing the author to travel thousands of miles back and forth from Oregon to California. Their alleged client was a lying drug-addict, who claimed he had been injured in the author's place of business.

The California lawyers tried to force the author into arbitration hearings for settlement, which the author adamantly refused and demanded a jury trial.

Lawyer George Benz, who persecuted the author in a two-day jury trial, used every trick and lie that shysters can devise—but, the author won the trial one hundred percent with an innocent verdict.

The judge polled the jury, and ordered that the author be paid damages and costs by the lawyers and their

client. The foreman of the twelve person jury was a Black man, the others of various races. The jurors deliberated about four hours and came down with a decision in the author's favor. The jury system of America worked in absolute fairness without any "professional juror-selectors".

After the trial George Benz accosted the jury foreman outside the courthouse and threatened him but there were numerous witnesses and Benz was forced to back off.

The author's lawyer, George Dyer, refused to file documents with the court to claim the damages and costs and the judge also refused to order Dyer to file the documents. The author lost thousands of dollars and five years of horrific persecution and harassment and, even though the court awarded costs and damages, the author received not a penny. This is the way the court system is being run, and Senators Biden, Dianne Feinstein and Arlen Specter and the others on the Senate Judiciary Committee will cover up the Dossier/secret file terror, the same as their phony Senate hearings covered up the Ruby Ridge and Waco and Oklahoma City murders of innocent American Citizens.

The power of the **Dossier**, secret file. Democrat Dianne Feinstein was running for the U.S. Senate. She was losing to **Republican** Michael Huffington, a rich oil man who had spent \$28 million of his own money. A Hollywood **premium** Madam, Heidi Fleiss, was arrested; she had kept a little **Black Book** listing her customers. Fleiss had so many names of prominent politicians and judges in her Black Book that, according to her, she could have changed the NAFTA vote if she wanted. The FBI got the little Black Book and made secret files, a Dossier, on all of Fleiss' Johns.

Dianne Feinstein and the ADL, who had made secret connections with the head of the FBI to get any of their classified, secret records they wanted, has obtained the Dossiers on all the Johns in Fleiss' Black Book. What do you know—right there in the R's, the Dossier on staunch Republican Richard Riordan, the powerful Mayor of Los Angeles—suddenly a big switch: Just a few weeks before the election, here comes staunch Republican Riordan on TV, waltzing, hugging and fawning over staunch Democrat Dianne Feinstein. With Mayor Riordan's powerful political influence, endorsement and votes, Feinstein became a U.S. Senator

Now, Feinstein sits on the powerful Senate Judicial Committee where she, along with other treacherous, treasonous Senators, can cover up their so called "Dossier, Secret File Investigation".

The Judiciary Committee is making Craig Livingstone a scapegoat to cover up the fact that it was really the President's Counsels, Nussbaum and Cutler, who ordered the files from the FBI—this was the same MO as when Dianne Feinstein wanted to become a U.S. Senator—now she wants to become the President.

The exposé of who really ordered the secret Dossiers will lead to other extraordinary truths—the facts of how a foreign country is interfering into and sabotaging America's government process and sovereignty.

ABOUT THE AUTHOR

On December 7, 1945 the author was honorably discharged from the U.S. Navy at San Pedro, California.

In January of 1946 he joined the Los Angeles Police Department and graduated from the Academy. He

worked as a Detective Sgt. for the Ventura City Police Department and an investigator for the Los Angeles District Attorney's Bureau of Investigation, the Criminal Intelligence Unit. In September of 1966 he became the Chief Investigator for the Ventura County Public Defender's Office until 1970, when he retired.

INTERVIEW WITH A MASTER TEACHER WORLD FAMOUS HYPNOTIST GIL BOYNE PART II

by Rick Martin 9/10/96

Part I in this series appeared in the 9/3/96 issue on p. 18; we continue with part II below.

Gil Boyne is Director of the Hypnosis Training Institute of Los Angeles and is well respected in the field of hypnosis. Gil's Institute is located at 700 S. Central Ave., Glendale, CA 91204—phone (818) 242-1159; fax (818) 247-9379.

And now, continuing with this July 10 interview, let us begin right where we left off.

Rick: Do you remember, way back when, what prompted you to teach hypnotherapy rather than perform or have a private practice?

Gil: Yes. I first, of course, relished the private practice with great enjoyment because that was my learning laboratory. But, after about six or seven years of doing anywhere from six to ten appointments a day—I was single at the time—I burned out on it. I decided to take a couple of weeks off and I didn't go back to work for a month. And finally, I decided I would teach self-hypnosis to groups. And I began that very process. They gained positive results. A percentage of those people would come back to me and say, "Can you learn more about this?" So, I developed then what I simply called "the advanced class". As I look back, that again, was six weeks, one night a week, three hours a night, eighteen hours. And as I look back, I realize, all I was doing was kind of demonstrating and showing how much I knew. They loved it. And then, we jump ahead in time to 1974 when the classes had become more structured and I went, with another hypnotist, to the State Board of Education to discuss becoming a state licensed vocational school. Rick: Ok, I was going to actually have you back up to 1957, to explain how the Hypnosis Training Institute was formed, and then move your way up to what you're explaining now.

Gil: Alright. The original title for what is now called the Hypnosis Training Institute of Los Angeles was the Self-Help Institute, and that name prevailed because over the years I wound up teaching self-hypnosis to twenty-two thousand persons in Southern California. I used to average—I had a big mansion on Wilshire Blvd. that I leased, sixteen rooms, and we lived there and held classes there. I used to advertise this introductory meeting. I created a large billboard outside the building, eight feet by twelve feet, and we had the sign on there, "Free Lesson Every Wednesday Night—Self-Hypnosis". And I would attract about sixty to a hundred people every Wednesday night, and I would enroll thirty-five to forty of them. And so, I was teaching separate classes on Monday night, Tuesday night, Wednesday night was my introductory lecture, Thursday night, Friday night, and Saturday afternoon; six classes a week, an average of 250 people a week were in class with me. So that is how that period of time went. That was in 1962, that framework, because shortly after that I got married for the second time—and am still married to that same lady after thirty-three years.

Rick: Congratulations.

Gil: Hmmm. Yes, that's right. That was around '62, I'm married thirty-three years and it's now '96, so I'm in my thirty-fourth year of marriage.

Rick: Ok. Now, you were about to talk about 1974.

Gil: I went to the state capitol and to the official State Board of Education because we had discovered there were certain benefits to being a state licensed vocational school. For example, insurance companies will pay the tuition for people who are being vocationally rehabilitated, but you must be licensed by the state as a vocational school. We were kind of laughed at, sneered at and told that hypnotherapy was not a "defined occupation". When we asked what defined meant, they said, "it is not defined in the *Dictionary of Occupational Titles*," which is a large manual published by the U.S. Dept. of Labor, and that is what determines whether or not an occupation may be regulated by the state—the teaching, the training and so on.

The next question, of course, we asked was, "Well, how does one get the occupation into this dictionary? And with this we were told that we would have to go to Washington and talk to the officials at the U.S. Dept. of Labor. So that's what we did. And it took two years of open hearings and eventually—the first time it came out [the dictionary] the psychiatrists had gotten in their influence and it said, "To be performed in a medical or psychiatric setting". So we had to go back and give testimony and we managed to get some people from the AFL lobby on our team and in 1975, the State of California—because of the fact that hypnotherapists had been published then, in that '75 edition of the Dictionary of Occupational Titles—the State of California was forced, by our pressure, to license the first state licensed school of hypnotherapy in the United States of America, if not in the world. And so, that's how that came about.

Well then, we began to develop a structure so that now we teach 250 hours of classroom training and we offer a six-month residency intern program, so that we can really prepare a person for a career.

Rick: What was the evolution that lead to the formation of the American Counsel of Hypnotist Examiners in 1980?

Gil: In 1975, when we then were licensed, we formed an organization—we, a number of the existing hypnotists in California, formed an organization called the Hypnotist Examining Counsel of California. Our first rule was that everyone, no matter how long they have been in practice, had to take a comprehensive written examination and perform a practical demonstration of skills. And, in our first year, we registered about 140 hypnotists throughout California. As the word of that first effort at self-regulation spread into other states, other people began writing and calling and asking if they could also be part of this Hypnotist Examining Counsel registering and if they could take the test. So that led, in 1980, to the formation of the American Counsel of Hypnotist Examiners which may need to—which really needs to—undergo another name change to perhaps become the International Counsel because we now certify hypnotherapists in 29 countries.

Rick: Fantastic.

Gil: 9200, well now over 9300, in 29 countries.

Rick: Really impressive.

Gil: We started out with a regulation of 100 hours, it's now 250. We just had a bill in the California legislature for 300 hours.

Rick: I want to ask you about that, as well.

Gil: Alright, whenever you're ready.

Rick: A little later, when we're up to the present. How did Westwood Publishing come about?

Gil: I have a student by the name of Charles Tebits who was a sign painter, actually. My school was in West Los Angeles at the time and his business and residence was just a few blocks away. Charles was 72 when he arrived and he couldn't sleep at night. I helped him with that and he decided he wanted to learn self-hypnosis in the group, and he did. And then, he wanted to come into the training. Well, at one point he said he wanted to do some private sessions with me to help him to write a book about self-hypnosis. And I said to him, "Well, come into my office and I'm going to give you all the help you need to write a book."

So he sat down and I said, "Hypnosis is not going to write a book for you or help you to write it. Let me tell you a story. A woman who was married, rather poor, had several children. There came a time she wanted to write a book. And so, every night she'd finish her supper dishes and she'd get the kids to bed and then she'd go out in front of the house where an old car was parked. And with a flashlight, rubberbanded on the sunvisor, and a yellow legal pad and a pencil, she would start writing her book."

I said, "In time, the book was finished. The book was published. It became a best-seller. It even became a motion picture, and the title was called *A Tree Grows In Brooklyn* and her name was Betty Smith."

I said, "Now go buy a legal pad and some pencils and start writing!" Which he did. Then he brought the book in. Originally the format that he had chosen was kind of an exposé. That was a time when Transcendental Meditation was on everyone's lips.

Rick: Right.

Gil: And they went down, you got your personal mantra (laughter).

Rick: Sure.

Gil: So he asked me to edit the book and I said to him, "Look, no one is interested in exposés; and maybe they are about certain things, personalities, but when you put down Transcendental Meditation—the people who paid their money to study it, they're not going to buy the book—and the people who didn't pay their money to study it, they don't give a darn one way or another."

And so I said, "You started out writing about self-hypnosis, why don't you finish the book that way."

And so, I edited out a lot of things for him and, eventually, he finished the book and it was called *Self-Hypnosis and Other Mind Expanding Techniques*.

Well, he self-published, then he asked if he could market it—mail order—in a package with my self-hypnosis tapes. And he bought a package deal to advertise in a great number of popular magazines. He created a brochure and so on. Well, after a number of months he came to me and he said, "Look, I've lost \$8,000 in this venture. I have these books on hand. I published several thousand of them. Will you take it off my hands?" I had been selling the book to my students in the meantime and they liked it.

So I said, "Yes." And I wrote a check for several thousand dollars and that was the beginning of Westwood Publishing Company. That book, since then, has sold over 240,000 copies world-wide.

Rick: Amazing.

Gil: Uh-huh.

Rick: Well, we're pretty much up to the present. I know you have been working on California legislation. Do you want to tell us about that?

Gil: Yes. We repeatedly have asked the California Board of Education to set some standards, to, perhaps, require a "core curriculum", a standard number of hours, a minimum number of hours; and they refused to do so, saying that if they did it for one occupation they'd have to do it for all that they regulate. So, their answer was, "Well, you have to go to the legislature with a bill to mandate that."

Some other groups in California had been offering, for many years, a two-day weekend training, 15 hours and had a little in-house, proprietary set of certifications. So, when naive incoming students said, "Well, will I be certified with this weekend training?"

They'd say, "Of course you will."

What they didn't tell them was that, for example, the American Hypnotherapy Board, to name one, was simply a proprietary name chosen by the man who offered the two-day trainings, so that the certification was virtually meaningless. That group had been feeling the pressure of our constant publicizing that so many people were poorly trained with these brief and superficial courses. And as a result, they created a bill for 100 hours. Well, we were already at 250 and we felt that we, the schools in California, 18 schools, felt that to go backward to 100 hours would be a step backwards. So we created our own bill that said, 300 hours plus a supervised period following, and a core curriculum. And we managed to get that through the Assembly...

Rick: Now, this is this year?

Gil: This year. We were coming up to the Business to Professions Committee in the Senate, which was the major committee, and on June 24 that was to be voted. And our lobbyist, just an hour before the vote,

before the committee met, completed his survey of the board members and said, "It's going to go down by one vote," and recommended that we withdraw it, amend it a bit and re-introduce it at a later time.

So that is the status right now. That was Assembly Bill 2696, to regulate the practice of hypnotherapy in the state of California.

I wrote two similar bills in the state of Indiana, where we have a man by the name of Jack Mason who has been in politics for long periods of time. Two years ago he ran for state senator and was narrowly defeated. Jack was very instrumental in a bill to certify hypnotherapists in the state of California, but at the last minute, a similar group from the East Coast down in New Hampshire called the National Guild of Hypnotists, they again, spent a great deal of money—just as the California group did, hired very expensive lobbyists—and the first time, we lost on the floor vote. The second year, we got it all the way up to the governor and he vetoed it. Now we're working to over-ride that veto.

But, you see, for many years we were very *reactive* because small groups of psychologists within a state would create a bill to restrict hypnosis to physicians and psychologists. You'd have to go out and work to defeat those bills. Today, we are *proactive*. Under my leadership we are creating bills, presenting them in the state legislatures, and so far, not successful in passing any but at least we are no longer on the defensive. We are saying, "We deserve to be recognized as a fully regulated profession, within the framework of all other mental health professions and subject to the same rules and regulations."

Rick: Very important. Are there any other people in the United States who you would say are also extremely aggressive or active in this movement?

Gil: There was a man, who has since retired, and he fought a very stringent battle over in Utah, because the head of the opposition for many years was a professor of psychology at the University of Utah in Salt Lake City, called Dr. Cory Hammond. But this man, Virgil Hayes, was a real tiger. Jack Mason, Virgil Hayes, and myself, over the years, that's it. I have been to committee meetings, psychology board meetings in many states. Recently, I was three times to Indianapolis. I've been down to Austin, Texas, twice, on their bill. I went to Sidney, Australia in 1980, defeated a bill. In 1990, caused a bill to be modified to allow hypnotists to continue to practice.

So, for many, many years I've been known as the primary political activist for the hypnotherapy profession.

Rick: Have you had any specific adversaries over the years?

Gil: Primarily they're the psychologists. Psychiatrists are M.D.s, except for a few who occupy positions in the American Society for Clinical Hypnosis [ASCH] whose membership is restricted to physicians and psychologists. Cory Hammond eventually came around and he and I developed the first bill, really, that I presented in Indiana. Cory has now—is no longer interested in the political aspects of it. At that time he was president of the ASCH, but we did turn an adversary into an ally; a major adversary became an ally. There's a psychologist down in Texas who is very rabid and believes that hypnotism should be restricted. It is really on a state level; one or two or three. We had, for many years, a psychologist by the name of Bernhoward Newton here in Los Angeles, who created bill after bill after bill, which I defeated, year after

year after year. And, interestingly enough, he was the only one in the psychology field or psychiatry who had a fixed-location school to teach hypnosis to doctors and psychologists, right here in Los Angeles. So he was really, you might say, a competitor of mine.

Rick: Sure. Have you noticed any trends in the field of hypnosis over these last few decades? Have things changed in the field?

Gil: Yes, very much so. Originally, going way back, hypnosis was thought of primarily as inducing a trance and giving suggestions. However, in many aspects, those techniques proved to be—the results proved to be intransient or temporary in nature. As the time went on and more and more people entered the field, they were influenced in different ways. For example, after I was in the work ten years, I became aware of a man that I call the father of Gestalt therapy, Dr. Frederick Pearls and I began to study with Dr. Pearls. At that time he was resident at Esalen Institute.

Rick: I'm very familiar with Fritz Pearls, yes.

Gil: And, so, over the next two-and-a-half years, I did twenty-five days of training—five, five-day work-shops—for a total of twenty-five days. And those were professional training courses with Dr. Pearls. And that had a great influence on my career.

Rick: Oh, really?

Gil: Yes. I didn't become a Gestaltist, but I certainly gave up a lot of the traditional ideas that I had worked from. And so, just as I was greatly influenced by Pearls, other people were influenced by Erickson and other practitioners. And so, hypnotherapy, really, today, is the utilization of trance, combined with highly specialized techniques and psychological strategies which are uniquely developed by each individual hypnotherapist, based upon their training, their outlook, their perception of the work, and the influences that have come upon them. So there is no standard for either training in hypnotherapy—the training for trance development is somewhat standardized—but once you go beyond that into the actual work of hypnotherapy, what do you do with a client once they're hypnotized? That falls into the same category as psychotherapy in that there are many different views, approaches, and methodologies that are combined in various ways by various practitioners.

Rick: I would think that you and Fritz Pearls would have made an extremely powerful combination, from a therapeutic standpoint.

Gil: Well, what people don't know about Fritz Pearls—and when they read his autobiography, which is called *In and Out Of The Garbage Pail*—is that Pearls was a hypnotherapist for 8 years in Berlin, Germany. I didn't know that, except that one time, we were coming back up from the hot-springs, the sulphur baths down the trail there at Esalen...

Rick: I'm familiar with it.

Gil: Half way up was a bench and so, Fritz said, "I'm going to sit a minute."

I sat down with him and I said, "Well, you know, we've never talked personally," I said, "but I'm a hypnotherapist."

He said, "Well, I was too, for 8 years, in Berlin." I had never known that. I had been attracted to Pearls when I went to a demonstration by a man by the name of Dr. Edward Schulstrom, Gestalt therapy. And I saw them do some demonstration work and I saw a man go back into a regression to a time when his wife was dying and he was in a hospital with her. And I said to myself, "My God, that's almost identical with what I do in hypnotherapy."

And so, I asked Dr. Schulstrom, "Do you—could I come into your institute for training?"

And he said, "Well, what degrees do you have?"

I said, "None."

Well, it turned out he said that he was developing a training program on graduate students and it turned out that I was the only one who was able to take the time and spend the money to become a trainee. So, for three months, I spent eight hours a day at Edward Schulstrom's institute in Santa Ana. He was a professor at the University of California at Irvine. So I had a lot of good training with him and it was he that turned me on to Pearls. He said, "I think you should go up to Esalen and begin to study with Dr. Pearls."

Rick: Now, I assume you're talking about the early '70s?

Gil: Yep, that's right. '60s, early '70s, somewhere in there.

Rick: Well, Michael Murphy certainly set up quite an environment there for a meeting ground for some of the great and innovative therapists on the planet.

Gil: Yes.

Rick: Were there any other people you met while you were there who you were impressed with from the therapeutic side?

Gil: There was a man there who wrote a book called *Joy*...

Rick: Right.

Gil: ...about encounter groups.

Rick: I forget his name.

Gil: Yes

Rick: I was in one of his workshops.

Gil: Well, I was impressed with him initially, but then I saw some things occur in his workshops—I spent a lot of time and energy going back and forth to Esalen—and I became disenchanted with him.

Pearls was the really the only authentic person who had any real impact. Oh yes, I studied with a man by the name of Stanley Kellerman. Kellerman was a devotee of bioenergetics analysis, a man from the East Coast who developed the old—Reich developed a Reichian discipline that he called bioenergetics analysis. And Stanley Kellerman was the West Coast devotee of that work. I studied with him for a period of time. And I used a lot of bioenergetic analysis for a certain period of my career. But I would say that the later part of my career has been devoted to getting rid of things that I learned, and just getting down to the very highly specialized tools that can do—can generate the maximum effectiveness in the minimum period of time.

Rick: Well, this jumps way ahead in my questioning but it seems to fit here, so the question is: What role do you believe intuition has in the field of hypnotherapy?

Gil: Well, intuition of course is a word, and a valuable word but I'm going to use some other words and understand that I'm still talking about intuition. First of all we have—instead of mind, because there's only one mind, I'm going to use awareness—we have our "conscious awareness" and that is how we are focused into the external environment through our five physical senses, basic perceptions. And through that part of our being, we're able to process input through the senses. We're able to analyze, examine incoming ideas critically, associate, interpret and make judgements, form decisions and so on. Then we have the other part of the mind, referred to by different names. I like the term subconscious rather than the term unconscious—and that part of the mind reasons deductively—to complete the cycle, since the other portion reasons inductively from cause to effect, the subconsious mind reasons—it's the feeling mind reasons from effect back to cause. Now, through the subconscious mind we access this intuition, which is a Divine gift, one of our Divine faculties. Intuition allows us to know without previous knowledge or experience. But we must learn to be sensitive to intuition and recognize it because it speaks to us in a voice that often seems—another voice that seems almost the same is the voice of "wishful thinking", the way we wish it to be. And, people who wish for someone else to be in love with them, for example, is a good example of that, because wishful thinking develops self-delusion. But many will call it intuition, when really it's just wishful thinking. So, the subconscious mind will take whatever imagery we develop in terms of, whether it be wishful thinking, whether it be mental programming, fantasy, recurrent dreams, nightmares, intent to emotionalize fears—and we use every means at its disposal to bring that blueprint into reality. And one of the means, one of those faculties, of course, is intuition. We combine the operation of the conscious mind, the subconscious mind, and intuition to—in our moment-to-moment existence. The problem is that many people fear their intuition and don't pay attention to it. And the other aspect of the problem is, too many people are ready to call any impulse that they have their intuition. Many women like to say, "Well, you know, it's my woman's intuition." And often, it's just what their feelings tell them that they think it should be, because that's what it isn't. But intuition is, probably, one of our most valuable gifts. You know, we have the gift of self-awareness; we exist and know that we exist, and other animals don't have that. We have the Divine gift of imagination, the plan-making department. The gift of intuition so that we can know things without previous knowledge or experience and a host of other—I call it gifts, they're faculties, not gifts. Out of the faculties come the gifts of wisdom, of love, participation, and beauty, creation of beauty, and so on. So, that's my answer to my thoughts about intuition. I think that intuition is the central part of creativity.

Rick: Now, this is entirely different. Obviously the subject of hypnosis and hypnotherapy is very complex, with many splinter applications and you have experienced and taught these broad aspects in the field of hypnosis. Would you speak to our readers who might be afraid of hypnosis? Fearful.

Gil: Yes. Hypnosis is a natural state of mind. Natural means *according to our nature*. Everyone has a natural capacity to enter into trance. There is a difference in some. Some enter trance easily and effortlessly. Others have difficulty and require more time and training. The only difference is in the amount of subconscious inhibition or fear, because of things you may have been told. The common fear is a fear of losing control, which means a fear that someone else will control their mind and behavior; the fear of revealing one's secrets; the fear of revealing a dark side of one's self—the Doctor Jekyll/Mr. Hyde thought; and sometimes it's the fear, the hidden fear of sexual assault. Take for example, if a woman, let's say, had been sexually abused as a child, maybe by a step-father or an older brother who crept into her bedroom at night, and now she's lying on the couch or in her recliner in the therapist's office and she's fearful of going into a trance and here's a man who's forceful, authoritarian and is telling her to go to sleep. And down deep, she may have a fear that if she loses that control of seeing, hearing, and focusing on what's happening in this situation, that she could be sexually assaulted. That's a minor fear but one that does exist. So, that's the group of fears, really, that generate inhibition and, I say that it just takes a little more time with those people.

People tend to use terms like "a good subject/a bad subject", but those terms are created by people who really, although they may pose as authorities, are not. For example, Professor Earnest Hillgard of Stanford University has written numerous books on the subject of hypnotism but in all of his books he says, "Hypnotizability is randomly distributed throughout the general population." Well, what does that mean, randomly distributed? Does it mean that, what—genes aren't even randomly distributed? It means that some people are good subjects and bad subjects and that's where people come in believing that they are likely to be a poor subject, but once they begin to understand that it's a natural state of mind and that they retain their deeper subconscious autonomy, that they will not respond where it threatens their own deepest self-interest. Now, I know you're interested in a later question about mind manipulation, so we'll pause there and wait for that question.

Rick: Ok, fair enough. As you are aware, Ormand McGill in a recent interview with *CONTACT* had some interesting things to say. In your many years of experience, have you ever encountered any experiences which can only be explained by reincarnation?

Gil: I never have, no. Let me say it differently. Early in my career, experimentally and without charging a fee and with people who expressed interest in it, initially, I did several hundred experiments on previous life regressions, reincarnation regressions. Some very interesting and unusual stories emerged. I have never been able to prove or disprove, seriously disprove any of them or acquire any evidence.

Now, I realize that I have a previous position or a bias. I am a Christian and we don't really smile upon the theories of reincarnation. If, however, I had been raised in a certain religion in India, then reincarnation would be part of my spiritual philosophy. I must inject something at this point. I saw a documentary some years ago on public television about the untouchables of India.

Rick: Yes.

Gil: The lowest cast. And it brought forward that they are taught that they must work, do the most menial tasks with no complaint, and pray a lot and if they do that there's a possibility that in the next incarnation they will be in a higher cast. When I heard that, I thought it was again the mixing of political and spiritual energies to create a group of slave workers or people.

Rick: I understand exactly what you are saying.

Gil: We have here in California (laughter) a great controversy about the illegal aliens. They are really a group who, at least initially, wanted to come from Mexico, do the jobs that legal citizens won't do; the menial work. And they come because it represents an opportunity for a movement forward from where they come from.

Rick: That's right.

Gil: But getting back to this reincarnation, I thought, gee, being that untouchable class sure creates a great labor-pool, and it's reinforced by a spiritual philosophy. But back to the question. It isn't purely religious belief, it's that I never—I can, with certainty, deal with the recollection and reprogramming of ideas and traumatic experiences that have occurred during one's life. I don't like to be uncertain about my work, any more than is necessary.

I've always wondered at the great creativity of the subconscious mind. Every work of fiction, every novel, every television drama, stage drama, is the work of that great creative imagination. I have read historical novels, and you have too, in which words emerge from the historical characters who lived hundreds of years ago. And yet, we can accept it and believe that we're hearing the actual words that came from the mouth of that person, though they came from the creative intelligence of the person who did the writing. So, there are alternative explanations. Mr. McGill, my dear friend, lived in India or visited India quite extensively, had many, many friends who were religious figures and subscribes to many of the Indian philosophies in-so-far as our spiritual nature is concerned.

I haven't had those experiences and so, consequently, perhaps my view is more narrow or another way of saying it might be, more narrowly Christian.

Rick: I understand. Would you comment—and this is, I believe, an important question—about using hypnosis for healing the body?

Gil: Yes. Although I have never held myself out to be a, quote, healer, for reasons of my own, I have done many healings. I have a number of them on videotape. Many of them have been written in the national and international press and I will send you some material on those as well.

Rick: Ok, thank you.

Gil: For example, some years ago I had a very charismatic man in my class by the name of Col. Bo Gritz.

Rick: Our readers are very familiar with Bo.

Gil: After he completed the training, we went to lunch, after he had completed 200 hours of training. He

said he was engaging in a mission to form a task force to go to Vietnam to rescue one or more American POWs held in Vietnam; he had sources of information which indicated that there were numerous such prisoners. He said it was a secret mission. He asked me to participate and I agreed. I went to Florida where 22 former Green Berets met and entered the training for Operation Velvet Hammer.

Now, I have to backtrack. What was the question?

Rick: Healing the body.

Gil: Yes. The first morning that we were at that secret camp, actually—well it's been in the press, so I'll say it—it's the American Cheerleader's Camp, but actually it may be part of a governmental agency's—because in the chapel...

Rick: Well, we aren't talking about MK-ULTRA yet, although we're almost approaching it here.

Gil: Talking about what?

Rick: MK-ULTRA.

Gil: Yes, ok. Because in the chapel where we went each morning the walls are hung with pictures of American servicemen who were awarded the Medal of Honor and other decorations. It's called the American Cheerleader's Camp.

Rick: Well that's pretty impressive for that particular title.

Gil: Yes. I gave a demonstration the first night.

Rick: And when was this, what time period? Mid-80s?

Gil: Early 80s, I think, I want to say 1981. I had given a demonstration in the mess hall the previous night. Bo asked me to do that so that everyone would become acquainted with me and then the following morning—there were barracks and at the end of the barracks are what would be called the Sergeant's room, and Bo and I slept in the Sergeant's room. At 6:00 in the morning was a knock on the door and a man said to Bo that he was sorry to disturb us but that he was certain he had a kidney stone, because of the pain. And his name was Harry and he was to be the Adjutant on this Task Force. Well, he was taken to a hospital a half-hour away and a short time later Bo called me and said, "Harry Holt is in terrible pain. Can you do anything for his pain?"

And I said, "Well, I'll get a driver and a jeep and we'll come right over there." And that's what happened. So when I went into the hospital room—I'll send you a copy of this on videotape as well—Harry was lying in bed and his legs were moving up and down. He was writhing in pain. I looked at him and I said, "Harry, do you know who I am?"

And he said, "Yes, I was in the demonstration last night. You're the hypnotist."

I said, "That's right." I said, "Now listen, I am going to get rid of that pain, right now!"

Now, I want you to know that I don't normally speak like that in my classes and so on. It's almost like another part of me emerges or however, but I speak very powerfully, very authoritatively and I said, "I'm going to get rid of that pain right now! Are you ready?"

He said, "Oh, Lord, yes."

I said, "Look at me and sleep". His eyes closed. I put my hands over his pelvis and I began to speak to him with some very powerful, positive suggestions and instantly his legs stopped moving and became still. This stone (they had X-rayed him) was lodged in his urethra and he could not urinate. That was part of the cause of the pain; the urethra between the kidney and the bladder.

So, I wanted to give him just a suggestion and I said to him, "We're calling on the healing forces within the body, the same forces that do the chemistry to create this stone will now begin to dissolve it. Within two hours this stone will be dissolved sufficiently to pass and you will sleep those two hours and when you awaken, you will awaken to urinate." And, essentially, that was the suggestion I gave. I elaborated a little bit more on the great emotional power of the body.

Then I finished by saying, "And I'm going to be back here in the morning." He was sleeping. He was slated for surgery at 6:00 the next morning. I said, "I'm going to be back here in the morning, Bo and I will be back and we're going to walk you right out of here because you're not going to need any surgery."

Now, the interesting part of it, this is on the tape too, is Harry came back four years later and we did a videotaped interview on that.

There was a Black man in the next bed and he had a friend sitting there with him. And there were just two beds there in the room and, you know, the curtain goes around on the rail.

Rick: Right.

Gil: And I talked to his friend before I started to go and I said, "What's wrong?"

And he said, "Oh, man, he hasn't been conscious for days." He said, "I think he's near the end."

And so, before I left I went over and whispered in his ear and I said, "God is giving you a wonderful healing power." I said, "And it's working in you right now," and this and that and the other thing. But when I had spoken to Harry Holt, I realized later, my voice had carried because it was very strong.

Rick: Sure, yes.

Gil: That evening, the phone rang in the barracks and asked for the Colonel and as he hung up he said, "By God, he just called to say that the stone is all gone and he's trying to get the nurse to contact the doctor to cancel the surgery."

He woke up, just about two hours later, to urinate. Now, above his bed was a sign that said, "Strain all urine." And, of course, he hadn't urinated until then. He urinated in this cup and he poured it into a strainer and he didn't see anything. Then, the nurses changed shifts and this older head nurse came on and he called her and he said, "You know, a strange thing happened,"—he didn't tell her about the hypnosis. He said, "I think maybe I passed that stone because I urinated and I don't have any more pressure. I don't have any more pain." And he said, "I think I need an X-ray to find out."

And she said, "Well, let's look in the urinal." Well, on the neck of the urinal, inside, was a small stone that had kind of clung, when he poured—you see? And she found it. She did call the doctor and surgery was cancelled.

Well, the next morning we came to pick Harry up and, when I came in, the Black man sitting by the bed said, "Come over here, come over here." And this man's [the patient's] eyes were open and he was fully aware. He said, "I don't know what happened but," he said, "you know I've been sitting here with him because we figured he was gone." He said, "Look at him now."

The man said, "I'm feeling much better. What did you say in his ear?"

"That's a secret between his mind and mine and God Almighty."

Rick: (Laughter.) Gil: (Laughter.)

Gil: That's an interesting punch-line to the whole story.

Rick: Yes, it is.

To be continued...

logo pasteup

CATHY O'BRIEN'S TRANCE FORMATION OF AMERICA; UPDATE ON LABOR DAY MARCH ON WASHINGTON D.C.

From AMERICA'S BULLETIN, by Cathy O'Brien, September 1996, [quoting:]

It is with great enthusiasm and excitement that I write all of you with an update on the *TRANCE FORMA-TION OF AMERICA*. Mark and I, along with numerous other knowledgeable patriots, will have the opportunity to reach thousands—with the TRUTH those criminals, in control of OUR country, OUR world and OUR information, don't want known—through the C.A.L.L. Rally to be held in "Washington D.C.", over Labor day weekend. This promises to be an exciting, enlightening, and eye-opening event! We look forward to seeing many of you there, and to reaching your neighbors and friends through the C-Span broadcast, which will be televised live. It is time that a logical, peaceful, unified effort give voice to the moral majority of this nation.

Hand to hand our book, *TRANCE FORMATION OF AMERICA*, is being passed around this nation, so that hand in hand we can effectively take back OUR country and OUR world. The far-reaching effects of these documented Truths have spanned the globe whereby Mark and I receive numerous inquiries from around the world from concerned individuals who have heard about *TRANCE* from friends and associates, seen one of the numerous videos of our presentation, or heard us on world wide radio. I am deeply encouraged to learn that most foreigners understand that our country—like so many others—was taken over by the New World Order Elite and do not blame US directly for the atrocities taking place. Instead, they are joining voices with the rest of US to resound the Wake UP Call to those with eyes-to-see and ears-to-hear the Truth.

They know, like we know, that NOW is the time of awakening and enlightenment, when the dark ages of information control are overpowered by the spotlight of Truth. Now is the time for Truth to prevail.

Changes are occurring at an ever-increasingly rapid rate as more and more people wake up to reality. This fact became even more apparent at the recent, highly successful Global Sciences Congress in Denver, Colorado. Mark and I spoke out to full capacity crowds on MK-ULTRA mind control, what the plans are for US all under New World Order controls, which of their goals are currently being implemented, and what the solution is for a positive, peaceful change of the leadership back to We-The-People.

Knowledge is our ONLY defense against mind control. Likewise, knowledge is our ONLY defense in this Psychological Warfare Mind War that has been waged against humanity by the few power brokers in control of the world. Those criminals at the political top of the world dominance effort operate on the belief that Secret Knowledge = Power. By our telling their "secrets", their power IS eroding. Mark and I encourage each and every one of you to join US and the growing number of wide-awake individuals in spreading the word.

Oftentimes we are asked, "What can we do in addition to spreading the word?" Look deep within your

soul to find a viable answer and solution. It is only through LOVE and PEACE—not hatred and fear—that good people are motivated into action. More and more I see good people who live true-to-soul, implement change in their own areas of expertise. For example, a prominent chiropractor in Denver, Dr. Lawrence Quell, found that he was often treating "symptom" rather than the problem, in the numerous mind-manipulated patients who found their way to his office. He asked questions based on his genuine concern for what he saw happening to humanity. He logically considered alternate perceptions and possibilities. He began a network among chiropractors to seek and implement answers necessary to positively impact the root of the problem in his needy patients. Dr. Quell lovingly reached out to others during our Global Sciences Workshop, exemplifying Solutions in action.

It was during this five-day conference that Mark and I had the luxury of meeting our new old-friend David Icke, author of the must-read book, *AND THE TRUTH SHALL SET YOU FREE*. David's book paralleled our own, and we were elated to know that these same documented facts pertaining to who/what is in control of OUR world were being perpetuated through him from his homeland of England. The Truths that David reveals are uplifting and enlightening. Mark and I found ourselves, as did many others, delighted with his clearly stated wisdom. He believes, like we believe, that no negative should be voiced without a solution, whereby he offers peaceful answers while bringing the reality of the New World Order to light. The merging of our information proved positively powerful, whereby those who heard us speak emerged from the meeting with pertinent knowledge, lighter hearts. and eyes wide open.

It was David who pointed out that "Knowledge is neither good nor bad." Who has control of the information decides how it is utilized. Right now, secret knowledge is being used against us. Good people have a right to know and a need to know these secrets for the sake of humanity's future. By revealing these secrets and eroding their power, We-The-People gain control of these truths that can be used for the betterment of humanity.

The technology and information [that the] perpe-TRAITORS currently hold, in the hands of good people could actually eliminate the need for war, oil as an energy source, and overpaid doctors, etc. The advancements in mental health and the decrease in crime could make this world a much better place. "World Peace" cannot be forced upon us through New World Order control, but it can be achieved when people live the Love and Peace within. It is TRUTH that sets US free!!

Spread the Word!

An Added Note:

Since the release of *TRANCE*..., the State of Tennessee has been forced through public outcry to allow Kelly her right to receive mail—which she now receives uncensored and unopened. The cards, letters, gifts and donations provided to her an understanding that good people do exist in this world and are refusing to allow injustice and containment to rule. While Kelly still hears from a select few, it would do her a world of good to receive another boost of encouragement. Likewise, I encourage you to remind the State of Tennessee that they are being scrutinized for their blatant perpetuation of Kelly's Political Prisoner status through denying her qualified rehabilitation for the verified MK-ULTRA abuses she endured.

Correspondence to:

Kelly (O'Brien) Cox c/o Jabneel P. O. Box 690 Powell, Tennessee 37949

Governor Don Sundquist Tennessee State Capital Nashville, Tennessee 37212

FURTHER POLITICAL MAYHEM SURROUNDING GOLD CERTIFICATE

MORE FROM GRANDMA:

V.K. DURHAM

P.O Box 477 Okawville, Illinois 62271 FAX (618) 243-5501

Please find affixed, BELLEVILLE NEWS DEMOCRAT article of this Sunday Date, September 15, 1996, concerning U.S. CONGRESSMAN, JERRY COSTELLO.

Russell Herrmann, Herrman, Herrman, and "I", V.K. Durham, went to U.S. CONGRESSMAN "JERRY COSTELLO, FOR ASSISTANCE IN THE RESOLUTION OF THE NATIONAL DEBT, (NOTICED RECEIVED ON U.S. CONGRSS STATIONARY), in 1990-91 (also recorded of Public Record). U.S. Congressman "Costello" was given ALL RELEVANT DOCUMENTS, including the "RE-Confirming, Re-Affirming of the CONTRACT/CERTIFICATE, AUGUST 21, 1989.

U.S. Congressman "Costello" was also noticed of HUD GRANT FUNDS "FRAUD", including letters to JACK KEMP, U.S. SENATOR METZENBAUM, as occurring in St. Clair Couty by "Old Boy Club Members, and Special Interest Groups, including the FRAUD on my HOMESTEAD by HUD AGENCIES in California...also on the CONGRESSIONAL LETTERHEAD, IDENTIFIED AS RECEIVED. Also recorded, public Record in the Herman Estate.

?? pages of pasteup

CHIEF JUDGE FACED OUSTER

Kernan Claims Costello Made Threat

3pages of pasteup

Amiel Cueto, Family Donate Heavily To Costello Campaign

V.K. DURHAM

?? pages of pasteup

WHO CONTROLS BOB DOLE?

EXPECTING SOMETHING "MORE" THAN SIMPLE GOOD GOVERNMENT

by Dr. John Coleman 9/18/96

It is an historical fact, as old as the hills, that all politicians and national leaders have their controllers. Napoleon was controlled by the Rothschild bankers; Woodrow Wilson was controlled by Col. Mandel House, an agent for British intelligence; the kings and queens of England were controlled by the Cecil family; Roosevelt was controlled by Bernard Baruch, and President Clinton is controlled by Pamela Harriman acting for a "controllers" consortium", and so on, ad infinitum.

Thus it comes as no surprise to find that Republican Party leader Bob Dole, also has his string-pullers, and the purpose of this white paper is to uncover who they are, what they represent, and if there is anything conservative about them.

Dole has a spotless war record, unlike our current president, whose draft-dodging and ducking is well chronicled. Dole's heroism in the field of battle during WW-II is very inspiring. But there are more things to a political leader than his war record, or lack of one, and one of the most important aspects of any candidate for the top job in the U.S. is: who stands in his shadow, directing and controlling every move he makes. In this, Dole is no different from Clinton, except that Dole has a longer history in government than the current dictator-occupant of the White House.

Dole's history of being bought and sold like goods in a Turkish bazaar is a very troubling one. The *17th Amendment*, passed in 1913, made it possible for lawmakers to be bought, sold, traded, compromised and made of no effect as to their sole legislative purpose, that being to serve their constituents. Dole's story in this regard began with the 1976 charge by a Gulf Oil lobbyist that he had given Dole \$2000, the money to be passed to other Republicans running for office. At the time this was illegal, but before it could amount to anything, the lobbyist withdrew his allegation and nothing more was heard of the matter.

The fateful 17th Amendment is not much talked about, except by a handful of people like myself who have made a study of the Annals of Congress, the Congressional Globes and Congressional Records, but this is the amendment that took the right of the people to control their representatives in Washington and handed it over to political action committees who act in much the same way that commodity brokers operate. For sale was the White House and the Senate Majority and Minority leaders of either party, cash-rich winner take all.

By 1980, the cost of running for a Senate seat had risen to \$3.5 million while House seats went for about a half-million dollars. The rising tide of corporate seizure of America's representatives which began in earnest during the Nixon years, reached new, frenzied heights in the late 1980s. The system was rigged in such a manner that winning the early primaries was the key to a candidate's success and ensured that money would come pouring in from rogue corporations through their Turkish-bazaar salesmen to the "front

runners" while those who brought up the rear, got short shrift. The outcome of the election was decided long before the voters ever had a chance of making their choice at the voting booths.

It was the most corrupt system ever known to man and, from the early seventies, Bob Dole, the former prosecutor from Russell, Kansas, was part and parcel of it all. Starting in the 1980s, the two front runners for the White House received more than \$30 million each from rogue corporations bent on controlling the system for their benefit. They were the undisputed king-makers or king-breakers of whomever won the White House.

The 1970s and 1980s saw an unabashed drawn-out coup d'etat of the political system by big corporations in the United States. Never in the history of any country was there such widespread, open, rampant corruption of the political system. The banana republics, famous in legend and story, were no more than chump- change by comparison with the political action committees swarming over Washington, D.C. These PACs, as they became known, grew from five hundred in the early 1970s to nearly five thousand by the mid 1990s and Bob Dole took millions of their dollars to stay in office.

Those who could and did control the legislators found their money was well spent; their man in the White House, the Senate and the House saw to it that these rogue corporations benefited through huge tax concessions and structured benefits while the ordinary people groaned under the load of ever-increasing taxation. Democrat or Republican, it mattered not, the bets were hedged and nobody lost. From the 1970s, Bob Dole was part of the corrupt corporate largess system, as was Democrat Senate Majority Leader George Mitchell, both men receiving millions in contributions. As to the lesser lights, Gingrich, Gephardt, Foley, Robert Michael, they averaged in the region of \$250,000 each, for each and every year of their tenure in Congress.

As I have repeatedly stated in my work on the *U.S. Constitution*, the Communists in Washington put about 75 percent of their effort into laws that benefited labor unions and 25 percent into so-called civil rights laws. Thus, big labor union leaders were able to make their weight count with Mitchell, Dole, Gingrich and Clinton.

With so many skeletons in the closet, it is small wonder that Senator D'Amato refused to call Mrs. Clinton to testify before his Whitewater Committee and Dole steadfastly refused to do more than mention in passing the sex and money scandals of the Clintons, husband and wife, lest some of his own misdeeds become public knowledge. So instead of making hay with the Clintons' moral turpitude while the sun shines, Dole treads softly, and the American people, as always, are the big losers.

Dole was not always thus. In 1964 he was famous for his crude, rude tongue, reflected in his marvelous opposition to Lyndon Johnson's knock-off version of the Socialist book, *Great Society*, which Johnson co-opted as his own program. Dole denounced Johnson in such ringing terms and stentorian tones that one is left to wonder why he hasn't done the same thing with Clinton, who is a much greater, visible, target? His slashing attack on Carter and Mondale during their campaign will long be remembered by those who heard it. It is strange that when it comes to Clinton, Bob Dole skirts the issues.

Dole is not in a position to be another Andrew Jackson. How could he, when so many of the bankers, insurance heads, medical and pharmaceutical corporation executives who come calling, control him through

millions of dollars in campaign contributions? Imagine Dole telling a delegation from AT&T, Wall Street, or members of the TEAM 100 who come asking for favors, "By God, I will rout you out." As Dole himself once said, when political action committees give big money, "They expect something more than good government." Filthy Democrat crooks like Jim Wright or nice clean Republican crooks like Gingrich, it is all the same to the PACs.

It as not as if Dole had grown up in this environment. Russell, Kansas, his home town, was badly hit by the 1929 Wall Street crash and the post Wall Street depression that followed. As a young man, Dole must have heard at least some of the fiery rhetoric from spellbinding orators like Jerry Simpson, Elizabeth Lease and Father Coughlin.

It is oratory, not the written word that moves people to action, and Simpson, Lease and Coughlin were up there with the best of them, denouncing Wall Street as a "government of Wall Street, by Wall Street, for Wall Street... The great common people of this country are slaves and the monopoly is the master..." If Dole ever heard any of this he never gave any indication of it and his conduct in Washington in later years left no doubt that even if he had heard the preachers, he had no intention of paying attention to their message which, down the years, has proved to be remarkably, prophetically, accurate.

In 1988 Dole's run against Bush violated election laws by accepting many thousands of dollars in campaign contributions. Although he lost badly to Bush, Dole backed, on average, 90 percent of the bills Bush wanted passed by the Senate. Perhaps the one characteristic which comes to the surface when looking at Dole's Senate record is his extraordinary ability to craft bills which conferred huge tax breaks on his corporate supporters, not the least among whom was Archer Daniels Midland, the giant food conglomerate.

Dole possessed an uncanny knack of finding obscure laws nobody knew about because they were so buried and difficult to find. Using these measures, it is safe to say that Dole became the corporate welfare king of Washington, D.C. The book, *Open Secrets: The Encyclopedia of Congressional Money and Politics*, covers Dole's record of campaign contributions. Dole served on four Senate committees: Agriculture; Nutrition and Forestry; Finance, Rules and Administration; and Joint Committee on Taxation.

Contributions by leading corporations and business entities for the past few years look like this: electronic \$229,600, agriculture \$400,000, finance and real estate \$795,271, lawyers and law lobbyists \$267,617. We will continue with the total list of contributors later in this paper, but what is interesting is that, as the ranking member of the Senate Finance Committee, Dole received \$1,949,015 in the 1991-1992 campaign cycle. The big contributors were individuals and corporations with a primary interest in tax legislation written by Dole's Senate Committee.

Taking it further, investigation shows that literally millions of dollars poured into Campaign America and other Dole-associated committees and one is left to speculate as to why any of the contributors would be so overly generous? It is worth repeating that Dole's salient feature during his tenure as a Senator was his unfailing ability to write legislative measures that greatly benefited most of his primary campaign contributors and then to cobble support together for passage of these measures. As one lobbyist said, "Dole is the corporate welfare giant of the Senate."

On July 23, 1981, Dole distinguished himself by attacking commodity traders from the floor of the Senate, berating them for being on the receiving end of "corporate welfare". He charged them with unpaid taxes running into millions of dollars. The dispute was between the I.R.S. and the traders on the meaning and intent of the Economic Recovery Tax which was to make of no effect the practice of rolling over gains, each year, every year, without having to pay taxes on it.

From the *Congressional Record*, Senate, July 23, 1981, page 17107:

"I just believe that if you are out there making a million dollars, I do not care if you are a trader, you ought to pay some taxes... I regard it as an abuse for any American to earn more than \$1 million and pay no taxes... This Senator believes that any American earning \$1 million must pay taxes..." Dole was scathing about contributions made by the traders to the Democrat Party and urged the Justice Department to take strong action against them.

But then, Dole did one of his routine flip-flops. In 1983 the commodity traders began to contribute to Dole's Campaign America to the tune of \$10,500 and Dole then worked just as hard as he could to reverse himself, which he did with passage of the Tax Reform Act of 1984 which let the 333 commodity traders off the hook, saving them each close to \$900,000 in an amnesty in back taxes which were written off by the Treasury, a total amount of almost \$300 million.

Let us turn to another important Dole campaign contributor, Archer Daniels Midland (ADM) and its chairman, Dwayne Andreas. Not that Andreas has any party loyalty. Andreas makes donations to both parties and was once charged with making illegal campaign contributions and, to this day, Andreas continues to hedge his bets, but it is true to say that Dole is singled out for special treatment by Andreas and the two enjoy a very personal relationship which is exhibited in the legislation Dole got passed.

The relationship between the two spans more than twenty years from the time when Dole was struggling to get somewhere. Dole billed himself as a farm state senator, but was strictly a non-entity when ADM came across him and decided he might be of some use to the company in its efforts to become the single, largest ethanol producer. Dole's critics have, in the intervening years, charged him with "shamelessly pandering" to ADM. One such critic was John Ford, Reagan's Undersecretary of Agriculture.

In 1978, Dole suddenly began exhibiting an inordinate interest in ethanol. Of course the Senator becomes very angry when it is suggested that it was also the year that ADM began its big push for ethanol and gasohol subsidies and tax credits. The relatively unknown "farm belt senator" suddenly found he was becoming sought after by Dwayne Andreas, a situation that would have turned the head of many a full-blown, more experienced legislator.

Dole jumped into his new-found role with gusto, being instrumental in sponsoring fifty bills in the Senate, all designed with one purpose in mind, to help ADM promote gasohol, a 9-1 mixture of grain alcohol and gasoline with unending federal subsidies. Between 1984 and 1986, the Federal Highway Trust reported that it had paid out an amount of \$730 million in subsidies, mostly to ADM while in the same period ADM made a profit of \$36 million from its gasohol division. All the while, Dole was urging the federal government to keep the subsidies when no one else could see the need for it.

One potential threat to the ethanol monopoly held by ADM was grain alcohol exported by Brazil. Like the Dutch boy who plugged a leak in the sea dike and held back the waters of the North Sea, Dole plugged the Brazil gap by heavy lobbying of the U.S. Customs to impose high tariffs on the cheaper Brazilian product.

When asked by Washington Post reporter Michael Isikoff about his relationship with ADM, Dole snapped that he was a farm state Senator seeking outlets for farm commodities for his State. "I don't know anything about ADM," Dole snapped. But Dole did know that ADM's annual sales exceeded \$8 billion and that Dwayne Andreas was the undisputed king of the soybean, wheat, cottonseed oil, sunflower oil, high-fructose sugar and ethanol markets, from producer to the sale of the finished products.

Ford revealed secret, almost frantic lobbying efforts by Dole to secure an extension of the ethanol tax incentive and charges that since 70 percent of ethanol is produced by ADM, it is the single largest beneficiary of Dole's efforts. The tax credits were set to expire at the end of 1992, but Dole argued furiously for an indefinite extension. The credits amount to 60 cents per gallon on all ethanol alcohol used in the blending with gasoline. Dole managed to get this concession for ADM notwithstanding objections by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) that gasohol is a serious polluter.

One of the loudest voices raised against Dole's largess for ADM was that of Congressman Bill Frendzel, who stated that the ethanol industry was already over-subsidized and this latest Dole measure was questionable since it benefited largely one company, that being ADM. A senior Republican on the House Budget Committee, Frendzel noted that the measure should never have passed. "I assume it is there because Bob Dole wants it," with which Ford agreed. Unable to move on Dole, Ford resigned his post and became president of the American Corn Growers Association from where he was able to lash out against Dwayne Andreas and Archer Daniels Midland and called Dole "Andreas's gopher on Capitol Hill".

In 1993 Dole came out strongly in support of NAFTA, which Dwayne Andreas had stated would benefit the U.S., but all it did was wipe out small farmers because they were no longer able to compete in national and international markets like ADM. Carl King, a president of the American Corn Growers Association, is on record as saying that thanks to Dole's policies, which favored the large agriculture cartels, more than one-half-million small farmers were swept away in the flood tide of "free trade" policies vigorously espoused by Dole.

According to the *New York Times* the number of small farmers is the lowest it has been since 1850—ten years before the Civil War. This is largely due to the agriculture industry giants taking over farming and pushing small farmers off the land. Dole likes to talk about the "farmers" of his state, but thanks to his efforts on behalf of the agricultural cartel members, especially ADM, there are two separate and distinct types of farmers in the U.S. and they are the small family farmers and the agricultural giants of the food cartel. Dole's support of NAFTA and GATT has virtually ensured that the family farmer is a dying breed.

What proof is there that Dole benefited substantially from his friendship and close ties with Dwayne Andreas? Federal Elections Commissions (FEC) records show that from 1980-1990, ADM contributed \$80,000 to Dole's campaign and ADM donated \$2.7 million to Republicans running for office. The **DOLE FOUN-DATION** received \$185,000 from ADM.

Some time ago there was a picture in one of the newspapers showing Bob Dole reclining beside the pool

of a posh Bal Harbor, Florida, apartment hotel, the Sea View Hotel. The paper didn't explain how Dole got there and we are not talking about travel (which in any case is frequently by a private jet belonging to ADM). No, we are talking about the financial arrangement which made it possible for Dole to afford such high-priced luxury.

That there is little difference between Republicans and Democrats is hardly news and this is typified in the person of Robert Strauss. A dyed-in-the-wool Democrat Socialist, Strauss pops up all over the place. Whether a Republican is in the White House or not makes no difference; Strauss appears in some important role. In the case of the Bal Harbor apartment hotel, we find Strauss coming to the aid of then Sen. Dole in closing as sweet a deal as could be found in the corrupt political climate of the U.S.

According to Strauss, who has been and still is a general "fixit factotum" for both parties, he was approached by Dole and his wife, Elizabeth, who inquired from him about "the availability of an apartment" at Sea View Hotel. Now, to understand this sweetheart deal, we need to know something more about the Sea View Hotel. This is not just another of those luxury establishments which dot this part of the Florida coast. Sea View Hotel is out of bounds for ordinary folks, period.

As an apartment-hotel, Sea View is pricier than most, back in the 1980s—and probably a lot more in the 1990s—three-room apartments went for anything from \$190,000 to \$200,000. Ordinary people haven't got a ghost of a chance of securing one of Sea View Hotel's apartments, even if they were able to come up with double that amount. As one intelligence officer told me, "You'd have to have Julius Caesar or Alexander the Great as an escort just to get by the doorman." Sea View is definitely solely reserved for the famous, and the APC bought and sold politicians.

Shortly after Dole and Mrs. Dole made their inquiry, Robert Strauss apparently directed his attention to the fact that Dwayne Andreas of ADM was a shareholder and board member of the Sea View Hotel management. As my intelligence source told me: "Of course there is no record of Strauss advising Dole where to go, but when so many straws begin to blow in the same direction, blown by the same wind, one can generally come to a pretty good conclusion as to what is what."

Inquiries made by this writer show that Dwayne Andreas was not only a board member of Sea View Hotel, but pretty much ran things and nobody could become a member without his approval. Shortly after his 1982 enquiry from Strauss, Dole became the proud owner of 75 Sea View Shares, something which is well beyond the realm of possibilities given the status of Sea View and the enormous demand for membership and acquisition of one of its apartment units.

"These things just don't come along in the normal course of events," a Bal Harbor realtor told my source. "Most likely, God himself would have had to intervene to make the Dole miracle happen. You know that there are literally thousands of people who were on the waiting list, long before Dole and his wife came along."

But it was not the God of Abraham, Isaac and Jacob who intervened on Dole's behalf. It was a lesser god by the name of Dwayne Andreas who gave up 75 percent of his personal stock and signed it over to Dole and his wife, along with a three-room apartment at the bargain price of \$150,000. Now that is what I call a miracle, even if it is an earth-bound miracle! In 1982 the real price would have been in the region of

\$190,000, and there were hundreds waiting in line ahead of Dole who would have gladly coughed up a good deal more cash for the deal.

Then began the paper trail to confuse the issue of who the actual owners of the apartment were. It was typical Capitol Hill stuff and it went like this: The deed, signed in 1982 by both Doles, read that Mrs. Dole was the sole owner of the apartment. But a back-dated deed of March 19th, 1982 reflected joint ownership between Mrs. Dole and her brother, John Hanford. Bob Dole wasn't mentioned anywhere in this back-dated deed.

Leaving Bal Harbor behind, we turn now to the strange case of the Kansas-based oil company, Koch Industries, accused of stealing in excess of \$30 million dollars worth of oil from Indian lands. The allegations were backed up by the FBI and investigators who testified that they personally saw the theft of oil by employees of Koch Industries on a number of occasions. Incidentally, Charles and David Koch were the founders of the Cato Institute in Washington. It is on record that the Cato Institute has received in excess of \$21 million from the Koch brothers.

David Koch is national vice-chairman of the Dole Presidential Campaign finance committee and was one of those most responsible for getting the majority leader's position in the Senate lined up for Bob Dole. The Koch brothers are among the richest men in the U.S. with an estimated combined fortune of \$4 billion. Their wealth comes from Koch Industries, probably the largest privately-held energy company in America. "Koch Industries is the Wal Mart of the oil industry," my intelligence source told me.

David and Charles Koch control the Charles G. Koch Foundation and the David H. Koch Foundation and the Claude R. Lamb Foundation. For his 72nd birthday, in July 1995, the Koch's threw a lavish party for Dole at the Koch estate in Southampton, New York which raised \$150,000 for the man; Charles Koch said, "I am thrilled with his leadership."

The Koch brothers made their first known political contribution to Dole in June of 1987, in the amount of \$1,000. Could this have had anything to do with a problem which Koch Industries encountered in Colorado in 1986 when it was sued by the government for violating the Clean Air Act (CAC). Apparently, Koch Industries had modified a natural gas plant they owned in Colorado, allowing it to vent more than 40 tons of oxides of nitrogen into the air, a clear violation of the CAC regulations.

The Koch brothers, who had previously had no contact with Dole, then approached him for help in taking advantage of the technical corrections tax revision act. Thereafter, Dole was able to insert an exemption from a new real estate depreciation allowance, which saved Koch Industries at least \$2 million. Not bad for what one cynic described as "an investment of only \$1000".

But big trouble was looming on the Koch brothers' horizon and it broke when the *ARIZONA REPUBLIC* published a story about Koch Industries allegedly pilfering oil from Indian lands. Of all the hypocrites in the world, one of the worst, in the person of Sen. Dennis DeConcini, got hold of the story and launched an immediate investigation into the allegations. DeConcini is one of the most contemptible legislators ever to darken the doorways of Capitol Hill, a man who sold his influence to the highest bidder. I call such persons as DeConcini inanimate objects in a Turkish bazaar who are sold to the highest bidder after much haggling.

If it were not for the help that Carter received from DeConcini, we might still have control of the Panama

Canal, which was stolen from the nation by a bunch of Wall Street gangsters operating under the leadership of David Rockefeller, a scoundrel of the first waters. I have read the *Congressional Records* which contain a full account of the way DeConcini sold himself to the highest bidder. Yet here was this political prostitute, going after the Koch brothers, and the suspicion is great that DeConcini did it because of their close relationship with Dole.

Just when it seemed as if their darkest hour had arrived during the May 1989 Senate hearing into oil theft allegations against Koch International, up popped a potential savior in the person of Robert Strauss, former chairman of the Democratic National Committee and the man who worked the miracle for Bob Bole and his wife in securing an apartment at the Sea View Hotel, the "fixit factorum" for both political parties. Strauss was also a super lawyer who charged super-high fees for his services.

Strauss took the case even though Charles Koch had admitted that company records showed it had received \$31 million worth of oil without paying for it. Mr. "fixit factotum" thereupon began a big drive to bring "bipartisan pressure" on the Senate committee and he wrote a 43-page denouncement of the committee, which Charles read to the committee as his own work, in which he accused the members of being unfair and biased, among a lot worse things.

How did Dole get into the act? It seems that his old friend Bob Strauss told Dole to meet with Donald Cordes, Koch Industries vice president for legal affairs. The meeting in July 1989 took place over a cozy breakfast at the Watergate (Dole's Washington residence) and Dole apparently was moved to help the Koch brothers. The Koch money spigot was now turned to "full open" position with \$10,000 going to the National Republican Senatorial Committee in October of 1989.

For his part, Dole began to fire off letters to the to committee members and was particularly scathing of DeConcini and McCain whose role in the Charles Keating savings and loan scandal made them least likely to win any integrity and honesty medals. Even the Bureau of Land Management (BLM) agents and Osage Indians chipped in for Koch Industries, and with these arrows in his sling, Dole went after the chief investigator, one Charles Tucker, whose report led to the article in the *ARIZONA REPUBLIC* and the DeConcini committee.

Speaking from the floor of the Senate on March 26, 1990, Dole assailed Tucker and the committee, and tried to imply bias by the committee and outright lying by Tucker. Dole called the Koch brothers "solid citizens" and said that several senators had grave doubts about the type of information on which DeConcini based his reports.

As for Charles Tucker, he found himself on the receiving end of a withering barrage of character assassination fire for his role in testifying before the DeConcini committee against the Koch brothers. One such attack came in the form of a four-page letter, signed by Dole, Nancy Kassenbaum and Don Nickles denouncing his credibility, Dole even suggesting criminal proceedings be launched into possible perjured testimony before the DeConcini committee.

Later, Koch PAC gave Dole \$18,000 and Koch Industries employees donated \$23,950 to Dole. In October 1994, Koch Industries collected \$295,000 in various fund-raisers for Republican candidates and on October 29, 1994, Charles Koch gave a gala dinner at his Wichita mansion which raised thousands of

dollars for Republicans in key races. This event helped Dole to nail down the coveted Senate Majority Leader position he had sought for so long.

The list of corporations to whom Dole is beholden is a long and impressive one. ADM we already know about but here are some leading corporate and private "givers":

American Financial Corporation

Dow Chemical Company

UST Corporation (Smokeless tobacco giant)

Monsanto

Goldman Sachs

John Deere

Equitable Life

Glendale Federal Savings and Loan

American Express Philanthropic Program

Exxon Corporation

General Mills

Farmland Industries

William Randolph Hearst Foundation

Philip Morris Tobacco Company

Chemical Bank New York

Mutual of Omaha

American Stock Exchange

Kellogs

Proctor and Gamble

Paine Webber

New York Mercantile Exchange

First Bank of Boston

R.J. Nabisco

Salomon Brothers

AT&T

Pitney-Bowes

Metropolitan Life Foundation

Southwestern Bell Corporation

Dunn and Bradstreet

Prudential Insurance

Cessna Foundation

TRW Foundation

Pacific Telesis Foundation

The Guardian Life Insurance Company

MCI Communications

Sears Roebuck Company

David Rockefeller

Chase Manhattan Bank

Safeway Inc

Henry Kissinger
United Airlines
Merrill Lynch and Company
The New York Stock Exchange
Ralston Purina
Metropolitan Life
Time Warner Inc.
IBM

Massachusetts Mutual Life Insurance Company Mercedes Benz

The above is an incomplete list of the more than 200 major corporations known to have made contributions to Dole's election campaigns.

In his 1992 Senate race, Dole received in excess of \$1,700,000 from business executives from outside of Kansas. Between 1985 and 1994, a veritable flood of money came from oil and gas companies, communications companies, real estate companies, tobacco companies, pharmaceutical companies. In fact, 94 percent of Dole contributors were from corporations and others with vested business interests. (UST, for instance, benefited from a Dole measure that sliced the federal tax on smokeless tobacco by 75 percent!) Yet the Senator from Kansas kept right on insisting that he represents the farmers of his State.

His relationship with Salomon Brothers, the Wall Street brokerage house, bears no relation to farming. Through the years from 1985 to the present, Salomon Brothers has been more than generous. Board members John H. Gutfreund, Thomas Strauss and Paul Mozer had a hand in the \$30,000 raised for Dole in May of 1991. All were vitally interested in measures before the Senate Finance Committee.

According to federal election laws, anything of value, any gift, service, subscription, loan, in-kind contributions, counts as a "contribution" which brings us to the matter of "free" joy rides on corporate aircraft. To rent a Lear-jet, for example, could cost a member of the public in the vicinity of \$1800 an hour, plus at least another \$1600 for pilot and crew, food and beverages served on board. So a "free ride" is worth quite a bit of money. A first class round trip, say from Washington to Los Angeles, would cost somewhere in the region of \$3500, but a like trip by corporate jet would come out in the vicinity of \$48,000.

Nobody would contest that, while flying in an all-frills corporate jet, which Dole does most of the time, makes him very accessible to the corporate president who is along for the ride. Serious interaction would be almost inevitable. Corporate jet joy rides came from ADM literally scores of times (twenty six times in one year), Torchmark (a financial corporation), the NTC Group, Coastal Corporation, Food Lion, ConAgra, Growth Industries, Grandview Industries and U.S. Tobacco.

The record shows that Dole was a "frequent flyer" of private jets—187 times between 1993 and 1995—and the record shows that he has gone to bat for those corporations on whose jet aircraft he flew, on a number of issues. For instance, when a 10 percent tax was imposed on "luxury aircraft" Dole was able to get all corporate jets valued at less than \$250,000 exempted. Since the law requires that he reimburse the owners of private jets for the cost, he has reimbursed only the amount of a first-class return ticket by a

scheduled airline, as required by law. Dole must have received an indirect contribution totaling \$440,000 in one year through this loophole.

Another regular patron of Dole's political campaigns is the venerable Gallo family, the nation's biggest winemakers, who hail from Modesto, California. Although not quite in the same league as Dwayne Andreas, the Gallos are formidable friends and even more formidable enemies. Dole first got to know the Gallos when they were looking for ways to avoid the so-called "generation skipping tax". The Gallo's Dry Creek Corporation was advised to approach Sen. Dole for help and they did not come up empty-handed.

Dole said he hated the tax and would work to support "exemptions" of \$2 million per grandchild. Given the large size of the Gallo clan, this meant virtual total exemption and the Gallos showed their appreciation by donating \$20,000 to the Dole campaign cycle in 1985-1986, and they have continued to be generous contributors to Dole's campaigns ever since. Considering that the Gallos saved an estimated \$80 million in generation skipping estate taxes, their contributions turned out to be a good investment. Dole's critics call the tax law "The Gallo Amendment".

The case of AmVestors is also interesting if only from the stand-point that AmVestors benefited so greatly from the 1986 Tax Reform Act, in which Dole played no small role. Again, Dole's critics said the law was tailor-made for AmVestors as a corporate welfare reform law.

AmVestors is the parent company of American Investors Life Insurance Company and its relationship with Dole through AmVestors Chairman T. M. Murrell and Archie Dykes, the firm's president, goes back a long way to when Dole was in truth just a senator from a farm state. But it increased in value each year, culminating in the Deficit Reduction Act of 1984 brought to the Senate floor by Dole, and the August 1986 Dole-crafted Tax Reform Act and Murrel as Dole's 1988 presidential campaign co-chairmen, along with Archie Dykes, who became a major contributor to Dole's campaigns.

The close relationship between Dole and Murrell included Lizzy Dole and her blind trust. In 1986, when Lizzy Dole wanted to purchase a College Park II office building in Overland Park, Kansas, she received a mortgage loan of \$1 million from AmVestors and, in addition, Lizzy Dole sought, and got, an additional loan of \$150,000 from AmVestors to purchase a rental property in Washington D.C.

All told, AmVestors and its spin-off company, The Benefit Life Insurance Company, saved in the region of \$5 million a year in addition to the \$1.3 million benefit derived from The Deficit Reduction Act of 1984, whose standard bearer was none other than Bob Dole.

The notorious role played by Dole in securing passage of the NAFTA and GATT agreements is well known and need not be dwelt upon here, but what is interesting is that Dole's controllers in the NAFTA treason were the following, who can be safely and reliably listed as his personal controllers:

Goldman Sachs David Rockefeller Archer Daniels Midland First Bank of Boston John Deere General Mills
Monsanto
Anheuser-Busch Companies
Cargill
Ralston Purina
Exxon
H. J. Heinz Company Foundation
Merrill Lynch
Shell Oil
Henry Kissinger

Intelligence sources told me that Dole was in daily contact with Kissinger and that he often had 3-way phone conferences with Rockefeller and Kissinger during the period leading up to the vote in the Senate. It is pretty much a foregone conclusion that Dole answered the call of his corporate funders, Kissinger and Rockefeller, rather than heed the call of the small farmers of Kansas whom he once claimed to represent and whom, he must have known, would be virtually wiped out by NAFTA.

It is strange how Dole flip flops and this has been a hallmark of his career. Early in his political career, Dole often expressed antipathy toward Jewish politicians, although he never did so by a direct attack. Dole had a particular hatred of Dan Glickman, a House member from Kansas, and Henry Kissinger. Similarly, he was totally outspoken in favor of Saddam Hussein, yet, when it came to campaign contributions, Dole learned that his attitude was counterproductive.

It is said that he never forgave Jewish PAC committees for donating only \$5000 to his 1988 presidential nomination run against Bush (Even Jack Kemp got more) who collected at least ten times as much from Jewish lobbies. Yet, in 1994 we see Dole doing a major flip flop, denouncing Hussein, denouncing those who are critical of Israel in a complete departure of his previous policies and utterances about Israel. 1988 saw Dole's position on Israel change dramatically with his refusal to sign eight different letters by bipartisan Senate groups in support of Israel.

What shocked the Israelis and their U.S. supporters was Dole's meeting with Pres. Hussein at Mosul on April 12, 1990. Dole assured the Israeli foreign minister that Iraq was no threat to Israel and told Bush to forget about using military force against Iraq and on April 19th urged the Senate to repeal Senate Concurrent Resolution 106, the one that purported to give Bush authority to attack Iraq.

Of course, constitutionally speaking, Resolution 106 was not worth the paper on which it was written, as there is no constitutional provision for the Senate that would allow anything except a full declaration of war. Apart from anything else, the resolution was not fully and properly debated as to its constitutionality, which was exactly zero. Observers said there was no discussion and many of the Senators did not seem to know what was in the resolution, which was passed in about 20 seconds. This would make Resolution 106 null and void and of no effect whatsoever, so Dole was on solid ground when he lashed out against it.

Early in 1995 Dole, apparently counseled by Jeane Kirkpatrick and Richard Perle, did a complete aboutface. His letter to Secretary of State Warren Christopher urging the transfer of the U.S. Embassy in Tel Aviv, to Jerusalem, was a complete surprise to American Israel Public Affairs Committee and it was only the beginning of a long series of events that Dole expected would put him in good standing with Jewish supporters of Israel in the U.S.

According to my source in Washington, "Dole has now seen the light and has surrounded himself with a group of advisers who are decidedly pro-Israel. These include Jeane Kirkpatrick, Paul Wolfowitz, Richard Merle, Elliott Abrams, Douglas Feith and Robert Ellsworth.

"You will recall that in 1972 Perle was caught spying for Israel after an NSA-ordered wiretap on Perle showed that he was passing classified information to an official of the Embassy of Israel in Washington. D.C. At the time Perle was a special assistant to Sen. Henry Jackson on the Senate Armed Services Committee, for which position Perle had received special clearance.

"When nothing came of the NSA report to the President, it was leaked by NSA staff members to the Washington media. But still there was little reaction and Perle was able to retain his position. Unlike Pollard in later years, Perle was not even charged or reprimanded. Yet Dole is said to shudder at the very idea that Pollard should be released from incarceration.

"Perle went on without punishment of any kind nor a blemish in his file to serve as Assistant Secretary of Defense for Policy, director of the Technology Transfer Branch and from there he moved to the American Enterprise Institute where he worked closely with Michael Ledeen, perhaps one of the staunchest supporters of American backing for Israel. Perle advises Dole about Bosnia and, along with Paul Wolfowitz, recently led a group briefing of a number of senators as to what Dole's foreign policy initiatives will be, if he is elected to the White House.

"Elliott Abrams held a senior position in the Reagan administration's Human Rights Division and his work in South America is too well known to be worth further comment. Abrams played a leading role in the ouster of Ferdinand Marcos from the Philippines and at one time acted as a special adviser to the terrorist World Sikh Organization which was responsible for the murder of Mrs. Indira Ghandi. There is no suggestion that Abrams had a hand in felling the former Indian prime minister, but our records show that he met with the World Sikh Organization leader, General Bhullar, in the summer of 1984, ostensibly to counsel Bhullar on human rights issues."

That Dole's moves to placate those he had offended earlier worked out can be seen in the large number of donations from this quarter which he has been receiving on a regular basis and reflects in his support for the latest unconstitutional actions taken by Pres. Clinton, which included covert operations against Pres. Hussein, which the CIA has been carrying out for over a year at a cost of millions of dollars and without Congressional approval. Washington's Farewell Address lies trampled in the mud and Dole helped put it there.

CHAPTER 8

EXPOSING "OPERATION DEEP SHAFT"—PART II

Why TWA Flight 800 Was Blown-up, Who Killed John F. Kennedy, Who Bombed PanAm Flight 103, Who Bombed Oklahoma City, Who Murdered Polly Klaas, Who Sold Guns for Drugs, and more—

FIND OUT WHO WAS BEHIND IT ALL!

[Editor's note: Reprinted with permission from the American's Bulletin; see end of chapter for subscription information.]

The Bohemia Club is one of the Rothschild/Rockefeller's Western Hemisphere social gathering facilities for providing and delivering their maintenance of their political protocol and debriefing of their network agenda. Just look at the membership roster. Polly Klaas was just a disposable item to people who consider themselves above all laws.

Switzerland is always neutral during wars because it is the home of the Rothschild's central gold storage vaults.

ROTHSCHILDS' CENTRAL BANKING HOUSES IN EUROPE AND THE U.S. CONTROL THE:

The Federal Reserve, Trilateral Commission, Council on Foreign Relations, the Round Table, the FBI, the CIA, the ATF, the Bohemia Club, British Intelligence, German Intelligence, KGB Intelligence, Saudi Arabian Intelligence, Israeli Intelligence, French Intelligence, Canadian Intelligence, Austrian Intelligence, Italian Intelligence, Japanese Intelligence, and all Interpol-connected intelligence operations world wide.

Hitler's father was none other than Edmond Rothschild of Austria and Hitler's Brown Shirt and Nazi Party financing came from the Rothschild/Warburg Banking Houses out of New York which were the same Rothschild Banking Houses that financed the creation and maintenance of the Rothschild's world wide "communist" plan and how Communism was controlled world wide by them: "They created it."

Consider the book, *Hope and Tragedy*, by the deceased former Political Science professor at Georgetown University, Quiggly.

The Rockefellers' and the Rothschilds' armament companies were never touched during the

bombing of Europe during WW-I and WW-II and the Rothschild/Rockefeller Banking Houses' armament companies supplied both sides of the Civil War, both WW-I and WW-II, the Korean War, the Vietnam War, and today's Bosnian War.

The WW-II War Powers act was never rescinded after WW-II and is being used against the American people on numerous matters including the new Terrorist Bill being pushed through the Congress and Senate.

The Rothschilds used the WW-II War Powers Act to finance North Vietnam from 1946 to 1974, throughout the entire Vietnam conflict.

The War Powers act was secretly created in order that the Rothschild Banking Houses could finance manufacturing and trade operations, which were operating under Rothschild networks during WW-II, to keep going.

In 1973, Paul Harvey announced on national radio that he had been contacted by a Liberian sailor who informed Paul Harvey that he had been riding on Liberian-registered cargo vessels since 1964, on vessels that would load up with Rothschild/Rockefeller (industrial networks) and American-based manufactured items, and unload the cargo in Hanoi Harbor.

It was reported in 1969 in the national media that North Vietnam was using American-made tires, medical supplies, and numerous other materials and don't forget all of the magnesium and titanium that was mined and transported out of Vietnam by Rothschild/Rockefeller-owned companies and protected at the cost of the US taxpayers and American troops.

Air America was the CIA's number 1 airline for hauling Bamboo and Golden Triangle drugs from Southeast Asia and how the CIA instigated, controlled, and funneled the drug flow to unsuspecting American Troops.

The CIA's Project Monarch used the Vietnam War for covert social drug research to see how they could develop a world wide drug and narcotics dependency on unsuspecting civilian populations.

The CIA changed the name of Air America to Arrow America and then they switched their main source of CIA narcotics from the Bamboo and Golden Triangle to the Bekaa Valley in Lebanon.

They were maintaining the Rothschild/Rockefeller, George Bush/CIA global narcotics and weapons international trade operations.

Consider the meaning of the Rothschild/Rockefeller CIA global drug operations being transferred to the holy Bekaa Valley, which may possibly be the future site of Armageddon, and is this also because they are planning one of their all-time blood lettings and sacrifices of souls to their Satanic gods at this location.

The Rothschilds have been the only global banking source who have financed all of the Euro-

pean, North American, Central American, and North American wars for over two hundred years.

The *New York Times*, June 15, 1993, page A-21 "On My Mind," by A.M. Rosenthal, "Syria, Drugs and The U.S." [Quoting:]

The Bekaa Valley was once Lebanon's breadbasket—rich with wheat, fruit, vineyards. Since Syria took military control of the country 90 percent of the valley has been given over to drug cultivation—opium for heroin.

The San Francisco Chronicle, July 22, 1991, page A-8.

Reuters London, "Pan Am Jet Bomb Linked to Drug Sting."

The bomb that blew up a Pan Am airliner over Scotland in 1988 may have been taken aboard by a courier for a U.S. "drug sting" who had his bag switched at Frankfort airport, a British newspaper said today. [End quoting]

Monzer Al Kassar, who is the brother-in-Law of Syria's President Assad and who also was the CIA's middleman with Assad who had the bomb placed on Pan Am Flight 103—this was captured on video by the Frankfort BKA office and Wackenhut Security cameras and the video was sold to the United States Aviation Underwriters Insurance Group.

The CIA and Assad's Syrian drug operations that were also coordinated by Oliver North in behalf of George Bush and company, bombed Pan Am Flight 103 because Major Charles Mc-Kee was on the flight with his Senate investigations team returning to the US to present evidence about the Syrian/CIA guns-for-drugs operations.

Pan Am Flight 103 was, coincidentally, one of the CIA's regular narcotics carriers on their public transport routes because it serviced some of the CIA's central narcotics and money-laundering cities on its regular weekly circuits.

Normally every week a brief case was transferred at Frankfort Airport, usually containing pure heroin, by Syrian agents working in coordination with the CIA's global narcotics, drugs, and weapons transfer operations.

On December 21, 1988 Monzer Al Kassar personally loaded a brief case loaded with plastic explosives on Pan Am Flight 103 on orders from CIA and their DEA operations plants in Cyprus.

The San Francisco Examiner, June 9, 1992, page 3.

"Arrest of reported Lockerbie bomber

"Madrid—Police said Thursday they had arrested a Syrian arms dealer whose name had been linked with the 1988 bombing of a Pan Am airliner over Lockerbie, Scotland.

"They said they had detained Syrian-born Monzer Al Kassar, who holds an Argentine passport, Wednesday night in Madrid after a long investigation.

"Police said the arrest was in connection with suspected falsification of documents, illegal possession of arms and international terrorism.

"Kassar was named in a report published in April by Time *magazine as being behind the Lockerbie bombing, a blast that claimed 270 lives. Kassar previously denied the report."*

Are secret Rothschild Satanic societies responsible for controlling and marshaling the troop movements by their control of secret Rothschild agents planted into the military leadership hierarchies during all of their secretly funded wars and genocides in order that their high priests could ushur in the Satanic Demons and gods to their secretly ordained blood sacrifices after the battles and mass killings?

George Bush's "Skull and Bones" fraternity is highly suspected of being a Satanist-linked secret society that openly practices homosexual rites of passage during secret initiation ceremonies.

The Bohemia Club is highly suspected of being a fraternal order that practices and condones homosexual pedophile activity, amongst its members.

Many local alternative and Christian news sources have targeted the Bohemia Club as being linked to Satanic activity.

LINKS AND MORE LINKS

Consider the honorable sacrifices given by "Honest and Concerned American Citizens", who so greatly risked, dedicated, and sacrificed their lives so that this great country could maintain a godly and productive way of life that is conducive to children and all future generations.

Consider the possibility that all of the wars and violent historic tragedies that were masterminded, directed, and financed by the Rothschild Banking Houses and the possibility that Rothschild high priests sanctified the battle sites in dedication to their Satanic gods.

Consider the book *The Franklin Cover-up*, written by John DeCamp, the Nebraska State Senator who researched the direct involvement of ex-President George Bush, trillionaire Warren Buffet, Oliver North, and numerous high-ranking politicians, bureaucrats, media moguls who are linked directly to the CIA/Mafia guns-for-drugs and money-laundering operations.

The book, *The Franklin Cover-up*, describes Satanism, sexual child abuse, and ritualistic murder linking the most politically powerful and wealthiest people on the planet.

Is the internationalist New World Order responsible for the great wars because they may actually be using the human tragedy to support their secret blood rituals and Satanic sacrificial activities?

The ATF nicknamed the Waco genocide as "show time", and why?

Did the ATF carry out Attorney General Reno's order to assassinate the innocent Branch

Davidians for other reasons then to just eliminate witnesses to the CIA's guns-for-drugs operations?

Was the Waco genocide part of the internationalists attempt to divert the media away from the Franklin Cover-up while at the same time the genocide served as an opportunity for creating a blood sacrifice.

It should be noted that shortly before the Chrysler Sherman "Zippo" A70-T flame-throwing tanks (attacked) moved into the Branch Davidian village, the ATF was heard and taped by the media, playing Satanic verses over their loudspeaker system that they were using to intimidate and terrorize the innocent victims who were comprised of law abiding young adults, families, mothers, and their children.

The final explosion that is highly noticeable in the CNN news presentation and film of the burning Branch Davidian village is actually the room where the computer was situated that the two Branch Davidian members used for hacking into the Pentagon computer systems.

The ATF/FBI had to destroy the evidence after they set fire to the village and unknown agents are on film, jumping from the roof of the burning village.

Were these agents responsible for having placed satchel charges of C-4 explosives into specific sections of the burning complex that were earmarked for destruction by the ATF/FBI/CIA?

They instructed FBI sniper Harrakuchi to kill the remaining fleeing Branch Davidian members, while some of them were carrying children.

The FBI/CIA tanks pushed the dead innocent witnesses' bodies back into the burning inferno in order to destroy further evidence of FBI/CIA murder and cover-up tactics and Harrakuchi's sniper holes in their bodies. Harrakuchi was also instructed by the FBI/CIA to kill Dennis Weaver's wife at Ruby Ridge, Idaho.

Oliver "Buck" Revelle's other aid, Darryl Mills, headed up the investigation out of the US Embassy in London. From that position he headed the investigation on Flight 103 in Lockerbie, Scotland.

Oliver "Buck" Revelle, their boss, headed the investigation in Germany from the FBI office in Bonn and from that position controlled the very thrust of the investigation.

It should be known that the entire reason for the bombing of Pan Am Flight 103 was to destroy Major Charles McKee and his staff, who were returning from the Middle East with extensive evidence about George Bush's CIA guns-for-drugs BCCI money-laundering operations and the terrorists who were holding American hostages, linking Syria, Iran and the Israel Mossad.

Major McKee's CIA guns-for-drugs evidence was going to be presented to the Senate Committee on Government Operations and the Sub-Committee on Permanent Investigations, which is better known as the Organized Crime and Racketeering Committee. Also to the US Senate

Committee on Foreign Affairs and Sub-Committee on Narcotics and Terrorism.

The CIA/Mafia bomb was placed on Flight 103 at the flight's port of origin in Frankfort, Germany.

The flight schedule of Pan Am Flight 103 originated out of Frankfort, heading to London, New York, Detroit, Houston, Los Angles, San Francisco, Seattle, because each airport that was on the route of Pan Am 103 Flight is a major port of entry for the CIA/Mafia money-laundering operations and they all serve as seaports for shipping guns-for-drugs operations.

When the drugs were coming in on Pan Am 103 Flight, the non-corrupt agents were diverted from the airports to the sea ports to look for drugs, thereby drastically circumventing our law enforcement dragnet on narcotics entering the US.

Oliver "Buck" Revelle's son, as well as 9 known State Department officials who were originally scheduled to be on Pan Am 103, were mysteriously rescheduled to other flights.

Oliver "Buck" Revelle would not allow the Pan Am 103's manifest to be disclosed to the media until months after the crash, and Revelle's excuse was that the FBI wanted to protect the interests of the families they claimed couldn't be notified or located.

Oliver "Buck" Revelle was using this ploy to cover up the evidence that his own son was scheduled to be on the flight and yet his son canceled his reservations just 24 hours before the tragic flight and so he was not on the flight when it blew up.

Is this a matter linking Revelle and his associates to prior knowledge of a circumstance that should be investigated on matters of high treason and conspiracy.

Consider the links and connections to the Syrian/CIA terrorists who bombed Pan Am Flight 103 and the link to TWA Flight 800.

Why did Oliver "Buck" Revelle's son, plus 9 State department officials, and several other political and governmental parties who were originally scheduled to travel on Pan Am 103 Flight during the busiest season of the year, get mysteriously detoured to other flights.

It should be acknowledged that there are literally thousands of non-corrupted agents in the field who have honorably dedicated their time and service on behalf of the American people, the US Constitution, and the US Government.

Without the help of dedicated and un-corrupted agents, the American people would have completely lost this country years ago to the international banks if it had not been for their great service.

There are quite a few of them who are now dead, several murdered by their own fellow agents.

One of the most notable non-corrupt agents is the honorable Sandy Bario.

Sandy Bario was murdered while being falsely incarcerated on bogus charges by the heads of US Drug Enforcement Agency and while he was serving as the head of the DEA in Mexico.

Sandy Bario was murdered in a jail after he was arrested in San Antonio, Texas.

He was murdered by way of strychnine poison that was placed in a peanut butter sandwich.

The reported cause of death as recorded by the FBI laboratory in Washington DC, was ruled death by strychnine poisoning. That report was later changed to read that he died by choking on the peanut butter sandwich, on orders from FBI's Chief of International Counter Intelligence and Terrorism, Oliver "Buck" Revelle.

It is important to note that Sandy Bario was the top agent of the DEA at the time.

It should also be noted that agent Michael Levine was the overall top DEA agent in the history of the DEA and his career overshadowed Bario's career and achievements.

In Michael Levine's book, *Deep Cover* (published by Delacorte Press, Bantam Doubleday Dell Publishing Group, Inc.), he pointed out one of the most important facts about the making of the biggest drug bust in the history of the world, and he was threatened by his superiors in the DEA with the statement, "Don't ever forget Sandy Bario or his strychnine-laced peanut butter sandwich".

In other words, they were informing DEA agent Michael Levine that Bario was taken down by his own people, and those people being at the highest level of the leadership for the US Drug Enforcement Agency.

After being warned by his superiors, Levine nonetheless proceeded with his mission.

The worlds biggest drug bust was to take place in Panama City, Panama, and upon arriving in Panama Levine's security was severely crippled right from the beginning by the DEA always placing DEA agents at the Hyatt Regency Hotel in Panama City, because the Colombian Cartel knew and had known for years, that the Hyatt Regency was where the DEA agents were always housed.

Levine instantly recognized he was being set up for an assassination hit, because he thought back to the warning of the Bario peanut butter sandwich; and he also thought back to how Kiki Camarena was set up by his superiors in Washington DC, and Mexico City (not in Guadalajara, according to a statement by Kiki's superior in Guadalajara).

Kiki Camarena's superior officer at the DEA headquarters in Guadalajara pleaded with his superiors in Washington DC headquarters, to have the authority to give permission to his agents to carry guns, and the request was repeatedly turned down prior to the ten-day torture and murder of Kiki.

Kiki Camarena was murdered from injuries suffered, after having been stabbed by an openended jack-handle that had a curve on the end of it that had been cut off by a hacksaw and then driven through his brain with a mini sledge hammer, and a wooden post from a mail box which had been ripped out of the ground and driven up his rectum.

The CIA/Mafia set up Kiki Camarena's murder, because his investigation and arrests were interfering with the CIA's cocaine and drug shipments going on through Mexico.

Consider DEA agent Michael Levine's life-and-death situation after he had been in a known DEA hotel, and his contemplation about all these things that happened to both Bario and Camarena, and he still had the courage to carry out his mission.

I salute the honorable Sandy Bario, Kiki Camarena and Michael Levine for their truly great effort and sacrifices, not only on behalf of their efforts to stem the flow of drugs but also, more importantly, for their limitless dedication to protect the security of this great nation of ours.

Consider the track record of the infamous Oliver "Buck" Revelle, who is currently the head of world-wide investigations for the FBI and the White House Czar on Terrorism: Oliver "Buck" Revelle served as head of the Robert F. Kennedy investigation and Oswald's direct link to the CIA/FBI/KGB/Mafia.

Revelle continued to cover up numerous CIA/FBI investigations involving Vietnam guns-fordrugs operations, such as:

The murder of the honorable Federal Judge John Wood, murdered May 29th, 1979.

The murders of Kiki Camarena, Sandy Bario, Chief Judge Robert Vance of the 11th Circuit Court of Appeals who died from a letter bomb sent by CIA operatives.

The 243 marines murdered in Beirut; 21 CIA agents bombed at the US embassy in Beirut; the three CIA Agents in Berlin, Germany, who were investigating the Pan Am Flight 103 bombing who were murdered by being repeatedly shot in the head in January 1991, in a hotel room along with the driver of the car who drove Monzer Al Kassar to the Frankfort Airport to place the bomb on the plane on orders from the CIA; 254 paratroopers bombed, in Gander, Canada on the CIA-owned Arrow Air in 1985; the bombing of the World Trade Center.

What else has Oliver "Buck" Revelle covered up?

To be continued...

Subscription The American Bulletin

c/o 3536 North Pacific Highway Medford, Oregon Telephone (541) 779-6129

CHAPTER 9

THE UNTOLD HISTORY OF AMERICA PART VII OF A SERIES

by Ray Bilger 9/24/96

Editor's note: Part I of this bold series was presented in the 8/13/96 issue of CONTACT; Part II was presented in the 8/20/96 issue; Part III was presented in the 8/27/96 issue; Part IV was presented in the 9/3/96 issue; Part V was presented in the 9/10/96 issue; Part VI was presented in the 9/17/96 issue.

Chief Standing Bear speaks of the Lakota, a tribe of the Sioux, (quoting:)

The Lakota was a true naturist—a lover of nature. He loved the Earth and all things of the Earth, the attachment growing with age. The old people came literally to love the soil and they sat or reclined on the ground with a feeling of being close to a mothering power. It was good for the skin to touch the Earth and the old people liked to remove their moccasins and walk with bare feet on the sacred Earth. Their tipis were built upon the Earth and their alters were made of Earth. The birds that flew in the air came to rest upon the Earth and it was the final abiding place of all things that lived and grew. The soil was soothing, strengthening, cleansing and healing.

That is why the old Indian still sits upon the Earth instead of propping himself up and away from its lifegiving forces. For him, to sit or lie upon the ground is to be able to think more deeply and to feel more keenly; he can see more clearly into the mysteries of life and come closer in kinship to other lives about him.

Kinship with all creatures of the Earth, sky and water was a real and active principle. For the animal and bird world there existed a brotherly feeling that kept the Lakota safe among them and so close did some of the Lakotas come to their feathered and furred friends that in true brotherhood they spoke a common tongue.

The old Lakota was wise. He knew that man's heart away from nature becomes hard; he knew that lack of respect for growing, living things soon led to lack of respect for humans too. So he kept his youth close to its softening influence. (End quoting)

The White man's heart has grown away from nature and has become hard. His lack of respect for the growing, living things has led to a lack of respect for his fellow humans. It was thus that President Franklin D. Roosevelt was able to sacrifice American lives at Pearl Harbor.

America's leaders have forgotten the words of George Washington in his Farewell Address of 1796, if indeed they ever knew them in the first place. Washington said, in part, regarding our relations with foreign nations, (quoting:)

Observe good faith and justice towards all Nations. Cultivate peace and harmony with all...

The great rule of conduct for us, in regard to foreign Nations, is, in extending our commercial relations, to have with them as little political connection as possible. So far as we have already formed engagements, let them be fulfilled with perfect good faith... honesty is always the best policy...

(T)he obligation which justice and humanity impose on every Nation... is... to maintain inviolate the relations of peace and amity towards other Nations. (End quoting)

Perhaps it is not so much that our leaders have lost respect for their fellow human beings and for the growing, living things, as it is that they have been swayed by greed, money and power into believing these to be more important than respect.

When the people allow their leaders to do their thinking for them, what results is that those people will fight the wars for their leaders, they will use the corrupt money system their leaders impose upon them; in short, they will jump through the hoop when their leaders say jump. This is what We-The-People have been reduced to, and only by waking up can we rid ourselves of the nightmare.

Franklin D. Roosevelt's thoughts and ideas, which he so eloquently led Americans to believe would benefit our country, were carefully manufactured for him in advance by the Council on Foreign Relations. And Americans bought his lies, hook, line and sinker.

World War II was the most popular war America had ever fought. (Of course, this was merely a tribute to brilliant propagandists.) Over 18 million Americans served in the armed forces, 10 million of them overseas. Over 25 million workers willingly gave of their regular pay envelopes to buy war bonds to support the Elite's war.

Roosevelt also ignored a German offer of surrender in the spring of 1943. This offer was made by the head of the German Secret Service, Admiral Wilhelm Canaris, to Roosevelt's personal military attache, Commander George Earle, in Istanbul, Turkey. The Elite world controllers wanted the war to continue until their objectives were totally implemented. It should come as no surprise that Roosevelt's residence on East 65th Street in New York City was right next door to the headquarters of the Council on Foreign Relations! And Roosevelt was a high-level Freemason.

The Iron Curtain and the Berlin Wall were very clever creations of our Elite controllers in order to provide a future justification for a long Cold War between East and West, all based on the classic principle of divide and conquer. Roosevelt died and was replaced by another Freemason, Harry S. Truman.

World War II was eventually ended with a powerful psychological shock when atomic bombs were dropped on Japan at Hiroshima and Nagasaki on August 6th and 9th, 1945. The truth is that Japan had agreed to surrender in the spring of 1945 on the same terms as agreed to after the bombings. But the world needed to experience the absolute horror and terror of atomic weapons so that they would be persuaded to give up their national sovereignty in exchange for the false security provided by an organization called the United Nations.

The Council on Foreign Relations had been working diligently behind the scenes since January of 1943 on the formation of the United Nations, a creation of our Elite One World Controllers. The representatives of

50 nations met in San Francisco in June of 1945, while the war was still in progress, to draft a Charter for the U.N. Among the United States delegation were 47 members of the Council on Foreign Relations. The Charter was agreed to on June 26, 1945, and presented to the U.S. Senate by President Truman on July 2nd. (Note the sequence of carefully orchestrated events—Japan is denied in the Spring of 1945, *U.N. Charter* introduced in June, passed, and given to the U.S. Senate in July, and in August the atomic bombs which sent a clear message that the world had better adopt the *U.N. Charter*!)

The first sentence of the Preamble to the *U.N. Charter* begins with the lofty words, "We the peoples of the United Nations, determined to save succeeding generations from the scourge of war, which twice in our lifetime has brought untold sorrow to mankind..." We need to stop right here and examine carefully this very clever Orwellian doublespeak that rolls so smoothly off the tongue.

We the peoples, sounds very much like words stolen from our *Constitution*. But "We the peoples of the United Nations" is even more clever. We-The-People of the United States of America already had a *Constitution* more than capable of providing the parameters within which to function peacefully in the world, had that *Constitution* been followed by "Our" Government as "Our" Founders had intended. But note that the *U.N. Charter* does not say "We the peoples of the world", it says "We the peoples of the United Nations". Very tricky wording.

The peoples of the world were not necessarily devious enough or united enough to be making such a Charter. The peoples of the world had just concluded a horrible war which few, if any, of the participating fighters really knew anything about, considering that their normal sources of information would not have provided them with a true disclosure about the powerful forces that manipulate the world from behind closed doors. How many would have known that the banks were funding both sides, or that the oil companies supplied fuel to both sides?

But the wording used is "We the peoples of the United Nations", which has nothing to do with the peoples of the world. The peoples of the United Nations are the persons who drafted the *U.N. Charter*; the Council on Foreign Relations and the Committee of 300. Are we to understand that it is they who have "determined" to save us from the scourge of war, the wars which they create? This seems rather odd. How can they save the masses from their wars if they use the masses to fight their wars? This is pure doublespeak. It is they who have brought the untold sorrow to mankind, and it is time that mankind was told the truth about it. And it wasn't just twice (World Wars I & II) that they brought untold sorrow to mankind. All wars bring untold sorrow. They forgot to tell the peoples of the world that the United States, for example, between 1900 and 1933, intervened in Cuba four times, twice in Nicaragua, six times in Panama, once in Guatemala, and seven times in Honduras. Didn't the people in those countries suffer untold sorrow? Of course they did. And what about those who suffered under contrived depressions?

Any time someone is "determined" to do something for us, we should be very careful. The great American author Henry David Thoreau (1817-1862) said in his masterpiece, *Walden* (another book that should be required reading), "If I knew for certain that a man was coming to my house with the conscious design of doing me good, I should run for my life..." Watch out for those determined to save you.

Furthermore, do these One World Controllers really mean to say "determined to save", or are they saying "determined to enslave"? As one reads further into the *U.N. Charter*, it becomes obvious that there is no

intention of saving anyone from anything. The *U.N. Charter* is pure control. If human beings have any intelligence left, they know that it is only the individual that can save himself or herself. No one can save anyone else (even though our totally corrupted religions want us to believe that "Jesus" will save us).

The U.N. Security Council is ostensibly the real power of the U.N., although we know it is the Council on Foreign Relations and the Committee of 300 who actually control things. There are only five permanent members of the Security Council; China, France, Russia, Great Britain and the United States. So we are led to believe that it is really the leaders of these five nations who call the shots for the rest of the world? This Security Council is mentioned in every Article of the *U.N. Charter*, from Article 23 through Article 54 in very decisive and pervasive language. For example, Article 39 states, (quoting:)

The Security Council shall determine the existence of any threat to the peace, breach of the peace, or act of aggression and shall make recommendations, or decide what measures shall be taken in accordance with Articles 41 and 42, to maintain or restore international peace and security. (End quoting)

With the existence of the U.N. Peacekeeping Forces at their disposal, the Security Council, pursuant to Article 39, is now judge, jury and executioner, and God help any nation which does not conform to the dictates of the international bankers and the Committee of 300.

The land for the United Nations buildings in New York City was donated by John D. Rockefeller, Jr. On that land there had been a slaughterhouse and the soil where the U.N. buildings now stand had been fully saturated with the blood of slaughtered animals, just as the major battlefields of the World Wars were saturated with the blood of the workers of the world. Is this a sad irony on our fate?

The U.S. Senate did ratify the *U.N. Charter* and the U.N. now serves as the seat of the One World Government, fomenting, at present, approximately 70 separate wars around the world. How convenient that they also have U.N. Peacekeeping Forces to help control all this.

It would appear that the term "United Nations" is an oxymoron. It is no more "united" than those powerful interests who created it, and it has nothing to do with "nations", except inasmuch as they are the pawns in the Big Boys' game, used to supply the slaves and cannon fodder (us) for their totally corrupt world system.

The world stands today on the brink of total social, economic, political and moral collapse because of the likes of those who manipulate the U.N. We have many times more war than we did in 1945. Human rights is proclaimed as desirable, but practised by no country. Isn't it about time that the peoples of the world unite in something like a worldwide sit-down strike and shut down their corrupt system? Or should we continue to allow 3% of the population to destroy the world for the other 97% of us? Every person reading this will make their own decision by what they decide to do from this moment forward!!

The Peace Conference that convened at the end of World War II was held at (where else) Paris, France on July 29, 1946. Remember, Paris was the seat of the Peace Conference after World War I. That worked so well, why would they change a thing? You don't suppose the Rothschilds had anything to do with this, do you? Premier and Foreign Minister of France, Georges Bidault, formally opened the conference with the following words, (quoting:)

For the second time in less than 30 years France is the seat of the international convocation where the nations that have emerged victorious from terrible wars are striving to establish peace. The conference which met after the war of 1914-18 laid before the world solutions which did not prevent the outbreak, less than 25 years afterwards, of a new, longer, and more terrible war. It is only too easy to call to account the men or the policies which were responsible for these solutions. The right of passing judgment belongs to history... (End quoting)

We do not need to pass judgment simply to expose the truth about historical events. We are all ultimately responsible; those who control, and those who allow themselves to be controlled. If we do nothing to throw off the chains that enslave us, then we invite whatever the slavemaster wishes to do with us. Think about that! No one ever said this would be easy. The layers upon layers of lies which the masses have been fed make us, in essence, people of the lie.

Here is something else the reader may find of interest. Did you know that Germany looted considerable quantities of gold from Rome, Italy in 1943 during the war? Or that Allied military forces captured some of that gold? Or that Germany transferred looted gold to the Bank for International Settlements? If the reader wants to know what happened to this, and more, go to your local law library and ask for a publication entitled *Treaties in Force—A List of Treaties and Other International Agreements of the United States in Force on January 1, 1986*, at page 238, under World War II-related agreements. What do you think happened to all that gold???

To touch on the next subject it will be necessary to follow it into the future momentarily to get a grasp on what is actually involved. We will then return to this point in time. In the late 1940s and early 1950s, the U.S. Army and the U.S. Air Force were both ordered by the Pentagon to rush to several U.F.O. crash sites in the Southwestern part of the United States. They were successful in retrieving both the crafts and their alien occupants. Of course, the public was not to know about any of this, yet there were some foulups. The incident at Roswell, New Mexico is such an example. The retrieved crafts and bodies were taken to Hanger 18 at Wright-Patterson Air Force Base in Dayton, Ohio. So highly secret was Hanger 18 that even Senator Barry Goldwater of Arizona was not permitted inside, although he made several requests to get in.

Between 1947 and 1952 alone, according to government statistics (suspect), at least 16 crashed or downed alien craft, 65 alien bodies, and one live alien were recovered. In November of 1952, President Truman, by secret Executive Order, established the National Security Agency, whose primary task was and is alien communications.

In 1954, President Eisenhower established, by secret Executive Memorandum, NSC 5401/1, a permanent committee called MJ-12 (Majority Twelve) to oversee and conduct all activities surrounding the alien issue. MJ-12 originally consisted of the following twelve men: Nelson Rockefeller; C.I.A. Director Allen Dulles; Secretary of State John Foster Dulles; Secretary of Defense Charles Wilson; Chairman of the Joint Chiefs of Staff Admiral Arthur Radford; F.B.I. Director J. Edgar Hoover; and six men from the Executive Committee of the Council on Foreign Relations. All twelve men were members of the Council on Foreign Relations. MJ-12 has always consisted of twelve men and would eventually include such notables as George Bush and Zbigniew Brzezinski.

The reader may feel that this author has now gone just a bit too far with all this talk about U.F.O.s and aliens. This is simply the History of America you have not been told before. How much of the other information revealed in this series have you seen in your school history books, or on television? Little to none, probably. So why would you expect your government to tell you the truth about U.F.O.s? The Elite One World Controllers do not control the masses by telling them the truth; they control them with lies and disinformation, i.e., propaganda. The information presented herein on U.F.O.s is absolutely factual (as far as this author is concerned), and comes from highly reliable sources, some of which cannot be revealed at this time for obvious security reasons. The U.S. Military and Government have already killed American citizens who planned to release information about the above. You will soon see why.

Anyway, in 1954, President Eisenhower set a meeting at Holloman Air Force Base with a race of extrater-restrials described as "large-nosed grey aliens". At this meeting the aliens identified themselves as originating from a planet orbiting the star Betelgeuse in the Constellation of Orion. At a second meeting held at Edwards Air Force Base in California (this is according to the U.S. Government, and is not the actual second meeting location) an agreement was reached and a treaty signed. Our government appears to have been dealing with evil entities, and probably knew it. According to government statistics (again, suspect) some of what was agreed to in the treaty included:

- (1) The aliens would not interfere in our affairs.
- (2) The aliens would furnish us with advanced technology and would help in our technological development.
- (3) The aliens and the United States would each exchange sixteen personnel for the purpose of learning about each other.
- (4) Underground bases would be constructed for the use of the aliens, with two bases for joint U.S. and alien use.
- (5) The aliens could abduct humans on a limited and periodic basis for medical examinations and monitoring of our development.

The secret underground construction fund was set up in 1957 by President Eisenhower. At least 75 deep underground facilities, and probably over 100, have been built. Area 51 in Nevada and a location called S-4 are key to all of this. As well, there are other deep facilities scattered about the nation, including major ones in New Mexico and California (Edwards Air Force Base alone does indeed have a facility of 80 stories underground. That's big, and not the only one in the area.)

Now, there should be some serious questions springing up in the minds of intelligent observers. Are we to believe that beings intelligent enough to traverse vast distances of space would come to our little planet to examine human genitalia and to conduct cattle mutilations? It is difficult to hold back the laughter while writing that question. If this information were ever leaked to the public, however, such concerns would scare the hell out of unsuspecting and naive Americans. But we also know that the One World Controllers will use any and all means at their disposal to control the masses. Could the threat of evil aliens be used as a major tool to control and unite the masses of the world under one government with one leader? If such

would ever be attempted it would be a massive undertaking. Is there evidence anywhere that would indicate the existence of such planning?

In 1961, under the Kennedy Administration, top level government officials began the planning that would culminate in a top secret meeting to be held in an underground nuclear shelter in New York known as Iron Mountain. In 1963 the first meeting was held, and over the next three years studies and ideas were secretly exchanged. A report was issued in September of 1966 (never to be made public) entitled "Report From Iron Mountain on the Possibility and Desirability of Peace". As fate (or destiny) would have it, one of the participants felt that mankind should know about these evil plans and leaked a copy of the report to the public. Of course, the U.S. Government immediately denounced the report as a hoax and absolutely untrue. When the government goes to such lengths to deny something such as this, it should raise questions in the minds of careful observers.

Many of the measures proposed by this report are near full implementation or have already been implemented, such as the total disarmament of America and a federal police force working in unison with the United Nations. Other suggestions were about creating artificial crises, including economic and environmental. But disturbing as the Report is to read, there is one part that should shock the reader awake once and for all, (quoting:)

It has been hotly argued that such a menace (alien invasion) would offer the last best hope of peace by uniting mankind against the danger of destruction by "Creatures" from outer space. Experiments have been proposed to test the credibility of an out-of-world invasion threat; it is possible that a few of the more difficult to explain "Flying Saucer" incidents of recent years were in fact early experiments of this kind. The escalation of the U.F.O. mystery requires careful media control. The threat must also dovetail into the agenda for a One World Government. (End quoting)

The reader should stop here for a moment; pause and take a deep breath and then relax. All of what has just been discussed is a lot to comprehend. But think seriously about this now. Hasn't there been a big increase in recent years of the focus on aliens? How about the movies like *E.T.*, *Close Encounters of the Third Kind*, or most recently, *Independence Day*?

Here's something else to think about; Dr. John Coleman, in his book on the Committee of 300, on page 2, states, "In the intelligence community, it is taught that the best way to hide something is to place it in open view." This would account for all of the public focus today on the alien issue. Are we being prepared for a fake alien invasion?

Information presented to this author indicates that in the near future (speaking as of Fall 1996) our One World Controllers will use any one or a combination of situations to bring the masses under total and absolute control. These include weather modification (hurricane "Andrew" and most recently "Fran", as well as the flooding along the Mississippi River in 1993, were demonstrations of this), geophysical manipulations (it is nearly impossible to count the number of human-induced Earthquakes, but Japan in January of 1994 was a powerful example), an economic collapse, environmental disasters, and a fake alien invasion, etc., etc.

Information available indicates that vast underground bases in the Southwestern U.S. house hundreds of

Earth-based "Flying Saucers" with a huge army of genetically produced "little greys" that will be armed with laser type guns which will kill most efficiently. If this fake alien invasion is pulled off successfully, it may very well achieve its desired result. But we must remember that this threat does not come from outer space, it comes from evil minds right here on planet Earth; from those who would destroy Earth, and it may even include a 3-dimensional holographic projection of "Jesus" in the sky to save you, courtesy of Project Blue Beam.

If we are to turn things around into the direction of good, there may be real help available from outer space, but it will not be evil. It will come from those who, like Standing Bear, consider the Earth to be sacred ground. The question is, will we be able to tell the difference???

—to be continued.

CHAPTER 10

THE NEWS DESK by Dr. Al Overholt 9/24/96

ANTI-TERRORRISM PLAN OUTRAGEOUS

cartoon and text

MORE BIG BROTHER BACKGROUND CHECKS

I was listening to a Los Angeles radio talk show last week and the host said, "San Mateo, Calif. was considering demanding that anyone who works voluntarily or for pay around children would have to have a background check." WE'RE GETTING THERE, FAST. Why don't we run a background check on all lawyers and politicians? Aren't they the biggest source of our problems?

PEROT PLEDGES TO DISMANTLE IRS, REVAMP TAX SYSTEM

Excerpted from *THE ORLANDO SENTINEL*, 9/9/96, [quoting:]

DALLAS—Evoking the nation's anti-tax beginnings, Ross Perot pledged Sunday to dismantle the Internal Revenue Service if elected president and replace it with a system that's fair to all Americans, rich or poor.

perot

The result could involve several federal fund-raising schemes, including but not limited to a flat tax, a consumption tax, a national sales tax, a savings tax, a value added tax and a financial transaction tax, he suggested. [End quoting]

Do you realize the Income Tax Law is part of our *Constitution* (even though <u>unconstitutional</u>) and the above would call for another amendment, <u>or better yet for the Elite</u>, a constitutional convention. Hold on to the clothes on your back if that happens—You'll be lucky if you have any spare ones.

MORE MOSQUITOS CARRYING VIRUS ARE FOUND IN MORE TOWNS

From THE ORLANDO SENTINEL, 9/11/96, [quoting:]

PROVIDENCE, RI—A potentially deadly mosquito-borne virus that prompted a state of emergency in Westerly has been found in three more towns, Gov. Lincoln Almond says. Tests on mosquitos trapped in Charlestown, Tiverton and Little Compton turned up some insects infected with Eastern Equine Encephalitis. An entomologist and an epidemiologist from the U.S. Centers for Disease Control in Atlanta arrived in Rhode Island Tuesday to help the state track and kill infected mosquitos.

Though rare, EEE is fatal to about half the humans who have contracted it. In the 40 years records have been kept, EEE has caused about 150 deaths nationwide. [End quoting]

I've been noticing more and more reports about these mosquito-borne diseases. This is an insidious method for depopulation of a planet. Hatonn told us it was coming, didn't he?

MR. SLEAZE, THE HOMOSEXUAL

Excerpted from *THE JUBILEE*, Jul./Aug. 96, [quoting:]

Homosexuality and debauchery in general is a sensitive subject for Morris Dees. His ex-wife of 10 years was finally forced to divorce him after at least one homosexual encounter Dees had with Charlie Springman (then head of the National Endowment of the Arts) on Aug. 11, 1978 in the famous Watergate Hotel. Mr. Sleaze orchestrated the encounter on the couple's 10th wedding anniversary.

In addition, ex-wife Maureen Bass Dees cited in divorce documents numerous mistresses Dees had relations with, including that of her daughter-in-law and seven-year-old daughter. [Maureen Bass Dees vs. Morris S. Dees, case no. CIV2114 Alabama court of Civil Appeals.]

The question of how such a man and his Center of Hate can pretend to serve as society's moral crusader is a big one in the minds of many observers.

But then should we really be surprised? What do we expect from the likes of Mr. Sleaze? His record shows he is not about morality, saving Blacks from discrimination or protecting the liberties of Americans. His objectives are to destroy those he and his ADL handlers deem to be "Identity", anti-New world Order and/or pro-gun, etc. The objective is to create race hatred and, at the same time, generate large sums of money to line their pockets—meanwhile, Yahweh (God) has other plans for Dees and his ilk. [End quoting]

Typical behavior by pawns of the Elite.

HERE'S WHAT THEY ARE TEACHING YOUR KIDS IN BOB DOLE'S STATE Excerpted from *THE FREE AMERICAN* newspaper, Sep. 1996, [quoting:]

Kansas Education Watch wants you to have the facts in the hope that you will be stirred to action.

One of the most amazing denials parents receive from public educators is the statement that teachers would never interfere with the values of the kids they teach. I spent several hours one afternoon talking to the teachers of the school district I lived in, about the values clarification curriculum I feared would become standard material in all Kansas schools.

They acted like I was saying that they were communists or traitors for even suggesting that teachers would instill political correctness into the precious public school children they loved so much. That was several years ago, and it is clear now that these same teachers not only submitted to the placement of the material I expected, but they became hostile to further discussion of the subject. While it is definitely not the teachers who are responsible for the trend toward clarifying the state-approved values, it is also true that teachers are not largely resisting the values agenda.

To demonstrate that fact, let me share 3 recent examples of public school material which I believe will illustrate the use of tools for changing kids values, while teachers fail to speak out.

The first example is from Crystal City, Missouri, and deals with propagandizing kids under the guise of learning about the 1996 presidential race. Here are the questions...

- 1. Who is Pat Buchanan?
- 2. What does fellow Republican General Colin Powell think about Pat Buchanan?
- 3. What did Buchanan say about the Holocaust?
- 4. Who is David Duke?
- 5. How is Buchanan linked to David Duke?
- 6. What does Buchanan want to build between the U.S. and Mexico?
- 7. What day is "red letter day" of the militia calendar?
- 8. What office did Buchanan hold under President Reagan?

In these questions it is clear that Buchanan is the target of the system and the opinions of General Powell against Buchanan are implanted in each child. Then Buchanan is linked with militias, David Duke, and the KKK. And lest you think I selected only the Buchanan questions I shall point out that every question on the entire test, labeled a History exam, was about Buchanan.

So you say, one test about one subject is hardly values clarification. Well, let's take a look at a values test from Medina High School in Medina, Ohio. This test is labeled a Social Studies test. See if you detect any values clarification from these questions:

Name any primary relationships that you have. Are your basic needs met?

What is your best quality?

What is your best physical feature?

Why should a person of the same sex like you?

List 5 things you feel are wrong to do.

What is the worst thing you have ever done?

What is the worst thing you could ever do? List 5 things you fear. Describe your favorite pajamas. What kind of person do your parents look down upon? What is your parents favorite teachy saying?

It shouldn't be difficult for any listener to imagine the classroom discussion which would occur after your child has divulged his feelings about your parenting opinions, or has revealed his inner most secrets about what qualities he feels he has which are inferior. Do you think a child could face the majority of the classroom or teacher opinion with defiance if he was odd man out?

Finally, I would like to share a grammar and spelling test which might be construed as downright menacing. Especially when you consider that suicide is one of the major causes of death among teens. Ask yourself if this test might affect your mood. The assignment consists entirely of groups of 3 words dealing with death.

behead assassinate decapitate slay liquidate mutilate suffocate exterminate asphyxiate maul mangle massacre holocaust decollate guillotine genocide pogrom euthanasia obliterate expunge annihilate homicide maim contuse assassination obliterate decapitate asphyxiate fracture abrasion homicide liquidation suffocation

And the school wonders why parents would battle to intervene.

But now there is a teacher organization which opposes the interference of education into the values of kids, especially the pro-abortion and political correctness values. It is called Teachers Saving Children, or TSC for short. It is located at Box 125, Damascus. Ohio, 44619-0125.

TSC Executive director Connie Bancroft says, "Teachers must cease taking controversial political stands, especially in non-education issues....[Seems to me that standing up for good education has become a controversial political stand, today.] Now is the time for teachers to get involved in saving the students." We couldn't agree more.

Kansas Education Watch wants you to know about agendas such as values clarification in the schools. Please call us if you need more info or want a free copy of our newsletter. Our number is 316-685-5664. [End quoting]

Be sure to check any organization as well as possible before becoming affiliated. The Elite use many ruses to trap you.

Excerpted from CHICAGO TRIBUNE, 9/8/96, [quoting:]

YUCCA MOUNTAIN, Nev.—The scientists studying whether this dusty mountain should become the burial ground for the nation's most dangerous nuclear waste haven't yet arrived at an answer, though they have come up with some impressive questions.

When will the next ice age come?

What will happen to this desert if the polar ice caps begin to melt?

What agency will oversee a nuclear waste dump after the inevitable collapse of government?

What will people be eating and drinking in 100,000 years?

map of nevada

How do you write a "Danger: Keep Out" sign in a language that doesn't yet exist?

The problem of long-term storage for the waste produced by the nation's nuclear power plants has scientists biting off an uncomfortably big chunk of eternity.

They have no choice. The waste remains potentially lethal for hundreds of thousands of years.

For nearly four decades, the nation's utilities have been using nuclear fission to generate electricity. But the government has never had a plan for getting rid of the tons of deadly stuff that's left over. [End quoting]

Last week in this paper I told you a tiny bit of the story about Dennis Lee. This man has the answer to these scientists' problems but he can't even get their attention, because they don't want his answers.

I received a news bulletin yesterday [9/18/96] about his appearance in Philadelphia, PA for a demonstration on 9/23/96 which I will quote from.

[Quoting:]

ANNOUNCEMENT FROM BETTER WORLD TECHNOLOGY

Professor Yull Brown announced that he was going to come to our show in Philadelphia and that he was going to show up with the technology to neutralize nuclear waste and demonstrate the process for the American people. He further announced that he would then work with us to eliminate all nuclear waste in this country. Then he told us that there is a location in the United States, right now, where there is a lot of radioactive waste stored and that if there was a mishap in that location the devastation would be so great

that not one living thing would survive in all of the United States, Canada, and Mexico. All signs of life would vanish for over 1,000 years! He promised to prove that to us all in Philadelphia as well as the fact that all the radioactive waste can be neutralized.

It is pretty shocking to imagine that the government has been willing to expose us all to that risk. The government and the private sector are currently trying to sell the people on spending 400 billion dollars trying to dispose of the radioactive waste. They will not be pleased with what we are going to show the people at Philadelphia. Professor Brown is willing to come show it and may be risking his life for all of us. Since he made a commitment to us, we have made a commitment too and rented a stadium in Philadelphia for our final show at which we intend to announce America's Declaration of Energy Independence. I had vowed to Professor Brown that the American people would stand behind him if he would use his technology to neutralize the radioactive waste in this country. He was very impressed with the people at the Vegas show. After the show he and I made plans for his appearance in Philadelphia and I promised him that we would rent a stadium and fill it with people to witness the event which would give him some public exposure to provide protection for him from dirty politics. We have rented the CoreState Center at the Spectrum in Philadelphia. It is the stadium where the Philadelphia Flyers play hockey, and where the 76ers play basketball. It will seat 19,000 people. If we can pack that stadium, this will be a fitting way to end our tour at the show where we intend to make our Declaration of Energy Independence, and announce ourselves as the People's Department of Energy. Who knows, maybe the media will even be embarrassed into covering the event. [End quoting]

Remember, the Elite don't want to help mankind. They only want a few surviving slaves and the remaining unpolluted parts to themselves. They won't need the destroyed parts after they get rid of the "billions of useless eaters"—YOU.

BIG BROTHER AT WORK

From *JOHNSON CITY PRESS*, 8/31/96, [quoting:]

In a government sting against a suspected renegade computer operator, the credit histories of 35 credit cardholders were used without their knowledge.

U.S. Secret Service agents supplied the operator, who lived in Las Vegas, with the customers' names, addresses, home phone numbers, Social Security numbers, credit card numbers, available credit lines and outstanding balances.

The computer operator went for the bait and has since pleaded guilty to charges of possession of stolen credit information.

And nailing a criminal operator is a plus. But the means of doing that is simply not acceptable.

The information did not stay concealed with the Secret Service. The detailed credit histories ended up with the defendant, his lawyers and anyone else who obtained a copy of the case file.

None of the cardholders gave permission for the files to be used.

A few of the cardholders found out their information was used in the sting when contacted a few weeks ago by the *Los Angeles Times*. The information on them was released three years ago.

The credit card customers have a right to be incensed. Certainly, it raises questions about the conduct of the government and of the bank that released private information to the Secret Service.

Moreover, investigators and prosecutors in Las Vegas said this is not the first time they have used such techniques.

We would expect the Secret Service swiftly to change its policy. Let's have no more usurping of an individual's private financial records without that person's permission. It smacks of Big Brother. [End quoting]

If government agents act like criminals they **are** criminals.

MORE CORRUPTION IN MEXICO

From *THE SPOTLIGHT*, 9/9/96, [quoting:]

After an internal investigation into official corruption, two mass firings have resulted in purging 28 percent of Mexico's Federal Judicial Police force. Attorney General Antonio Lozano recently gave 737 members of the Mexican equivalent to the FBI the axe. He fired 513 officers shortly after he took office 18 months ago. Lozano said the officers did not have "the ethical profile" required for the job. The law enforcement agency has been accused of serving as bodyguards to protect drug mafias and accepting bribes for ignoring drug trafficking. [End quoting]

Hopefully this was done by the good guys and not the bad guys getting rid of the good guys.

MARINES 'ATTACK' NEW ORLEANS AND MOBILE

From *THE SPOTLIGHT*, 9/9/96, by Mike Blair, [quoting:]

Americans are increasingly concerned about U.S. troops using their neighborhoods for war games.

As officials weigh the armed forces' willingness to shoot American citizens in a federal gun confiscation program, Marines from Camp Lejeune, North Carolina, were completing a 10-day urban warfare training exercise in New Orleans and Mobile, Alabama.

Many critics contend the training is more geared to control civil unrest in the United States than for preparing for urban fighting in foreign countries, particularly since the operations are conducted in close cooperation with federal and local civilian police agencies.

A press release from the 26th Marine Expeditionary Unit at Camp Lejeune, which was involved in the 370-man operation, says the "routine training exercise has been closely coordinated with local, state and federal government officials."

OUSTED FROM PITTSBURGH

Earlier this year Army Special forces from Fort Bragg, North Carolina, undertook a similar exercise in downtown Pittsburgh. The raid enraged citizens, who were awakened from their beds during the middle of the night by hovering helicopters and loud explosions and gunfire. Public outcry resulted in the Army cutting the operation several days short.

Army spokesmen said the Army is studying the value of such programs in view of harsh criticism from local citizens. The Marines, however, appear to be moving ahead with the training exercises.

In response to an inquiry about the Pittsburgh situation, a Marine spokesman said: "That's the Army. We're the Marines."

The Marines from Camp Lejeune were based at Kessler Air Force Base in Biloxi, Mississippi during the exercise.

"We've trained and trained at Camp Lejeune, but, to us, New Orleans and Mobile are foreign environments," said the unit's commanding officer, Col. Emerson Gardner.

Most of the training was undertaken at night. The locations were kept secret causing, as usual, alarm among residents who were caught unaware.

LOCATION'S A SECRET

Gardner said the locations were kept confidential to prevent people from gathering to watch and possibly endangering themselves, and the troops. The Marines said they also wanted to keep rescue and combat tactics secret.

Fourteen helicopters were involved in the exercise, ranging from AH-1W Super Cobra gunships to giant CH-53 Sea Stallions used to carry the troops to the training areas in the cities.

As in Pittsburgh, New Orleans and Mobile residents complained of the dangers of using the helicopters with night vision goggles in the urban areas. [End quoting]

Don't you love their lame excuses for their TERRORIST ACTIONS? I thought Clinton signed an Anti-Terrorist bill. He should be arrested as a felon for allowing this type of TERRORISM as Commander in Chief of the the armed services. I hope all of you can understand that they intend to make this more than just practice—<u>SOON</u>! Think about what they are doing to your <u>children's</u> minds.

IRS FAILS ANOTHER
FULL GOVERNMENT AUDIT

Excerpted from *THE SPOTLIGHT*, by Dan Pilla, 9/2/96, [quoting:]

Government auditors have found the IRS's books don't balance—again.

On June 6, 1996, the General Accounting Office (GAO) released the results of its fourth annual audit of the Internal Revenue Service (IRS).

The results of the 1996 audit show no improvement in the IRS's financial statements due to gross errors and omissions in the agency's accounting systems.

What's worse, according to Gregory M. Hollaway, GAO's director of governmentwide audits, "Fundamental, persistent problems remain uncorrected and, until they are resolved, will continue to prevent (GAO) from expressing an opinion on IRS's financial statements in the future." [Just what they want—no overseers.]

In particular the problems are:

- * The amounts of total revenue and tax refunds cannot be reconciled to accounting records of individual citizens.
- * The amounts reported for various types of taxes collected, such as income, Social Security, unemployment, etc., cannot be substantiated.
- * The reliability of valid accounts receivable and collectible accounts receivable cannot be determined.
- * A significant portion of IRS's \$3 billion in non-payroll operating expenses cannot be verified.
- * And the amounts reported as appropriations available for expenditure cannot be reconciled with Treasury's central accounting records, and hundreds of millions of dollars in differences have been identified.

It represents the height of temerity for the IRS to demand the average citizen keep accurate records, when, ironically, the trained accountants and financial investigators of the IRS have no clue how to keep track of their own income and expenses.

Even worse, the IRS knows of the problems. Since the first audit in 1993, the GAO has made 59 specific recommendations to improve IRS's financial management environment. The IRS has "agreed with these recommendations" but has failed to implement them.

One of the more glaring failures has to do with IRS's operating expenses. In 1995, the IRS spent \$8.1 billion to carry out its functions. Of that, about \$5.3 billion covered payroll and personnel costs, and \$2.8 billion went toward general expenses.

Businesses and individuals are required to substantiate 100 percent of the expenses claimed as deductions on tax returns. One would think IRA would have the practice of recording expenses down to a science. After all, it audits about 1.5 million tax returns each year and disallows deductions in more than 80 percent

of the cases.

DOESN'T ADD UP

However when GAO reviewed IRS's documentation, it found the agency "did not have support for when and if certain goods or services were received, and in other instances, did not have support for reported expense amounts." Moreover, "in cases where IRS could provide information showing proper receipt and acceptance of goods and services, expenses were often recorded in the wrong fiscal year."

This occurs because "IRS accounting offices used inconsistent, and in some cases, incorrect policies and procedures for recording expenses."

Unquestionably, the IRS is in a much bigger mess than it is willing to concede. The people who are in the very best position to know what is happening with the nation's revenue are, in fact, the least knowledgeable about the facts. GAO has pointed out these and other egregious failures for four years running, but the problems go unattended. [End quoting]

PRIVATE corporations. That being the case, would those Mafia type owners want to keep accurate books for us suckers who play in their game? These kinds of people normally have **another set of books that are very accurate**. When I want to know what the dark forces are doing in a particular situation I try to think like I would think if I was playing their side of the game, with all of their traits—full of greed, envy, complete selfishness, able to murder to get what I want, power mad, always lie when you think you can get away with it, etc. With these traits, would you really expect an **honest** set of books to be presented for audit, when billions of dollars are flowing through their hands **daily**?

* * *

Excerpted from *ANGELS ON EARTH* magazine, pubished by *Guideposts*, Mar./Apr. 96, P.O. Box 1479, Carmel, NY 10512, [quoting:]

ANGELS ON EARTH

On a beautiful day my husband, Ken, and I drove through the Cascade Mountain Range in central Washington. Just as we reached the summit, a few snowflakes began to fall. In minutes a heavy snowstorm engulfed us, and our old Chrysler began to skid. We spun around and slid backward toward a wall of rock. I felt Ken's arm on my shoulder as we plowed into a pillow of snow, narrowly avoiding a crash. Later, I told Ken, "Your arm around my shoulder was so reassuring." He looked at me strangely. "I didn't have my arm around you. I was too busy trying to control the car," he said. People say they have angels sitting on their shoulders. Mine had his arm around me. —Ellen Rupel Hansen, Auburn, Washington

* * *

CANADIAN SERGE MONAST UNDER FIRE BY LOCAL AUTHORITIES

In a telephone conversation with Montreal investigative journalist Serge Monast, Serge informs us that, in what he believes to be retaliation for information he is now releasing, local authorities have singled him out for special attention. After being retained by local police for several hours this week, his 7-year-old son was taken from Serge and his wife. This boy is Serge's last child and Mrs. Monast is, understandably, extremely distraught over this latest development. Serge has asked that inquiries be made directly to the *Montreal Gazette*, a local newspaper known for writing truthful articles. The *Gazette's* phone number is (514) 987-2222. Serge hopes that if a paper such as the *Gazette* looks into this matter, or at the very least interviews him, some of the harassment might subside. We'll keep you posted on developments.

Serge may still be reached by writing to:

The International Free Press Agency
P. O. Box 359
Masonville, Quebec JOE 1X0
Canada

CHAPTER 11

AN AFTERNOON WITH AUTHOR DAVID ICKE PART 3 IN A SERIES

Editor's note: Part 1 of this informative lecture was presented in the 9/3/96 issue of CONTACT; Part 2 was in the 9/10/96 issue.

[Quoting:]

I've heard Ross Perot and a number of others and three things keep coming up, again, again, and again: "Family values"; "The American Dream"; and "This is the greatest country in the world!" You put it together and you've got a John Wayne film. It's that mentality that is appealed to whenever they want to go to war in the Gulf, or they want to go into Vietnam, or they want to go anywhere. It's the same in Britain. The Falklands War: Basically the British version of the John Wayne mentality was activated there. I think it's important to keep out of the nation's psyche, if you like that "American Dream" psyche. The "Greatest country in the world!" psyche; I don't think there are any "greatest countries in the world!" I think there are people on bits of land. Once you can get "locked into" there, you can start to get so excited, and the flag starts waving, and you've been hooked in. And then the collective mind is under control so, "Off we go into the Gulf." One of the most sickening things that I've seen in recent times is Colin Powell/Colon Powell addressing the veterans, about a week ago. Where he was talking about how wonderful it was after the Gulf War, all the victory parades, and how America got its confidence back. Well, it's a great way of getting your confidence back when two people, who knew each other for a long time and took oil kick-backs from each other (Saddam Hussein and George Bush), go to war and blow the crap out of, effectively, people who are victims of two people at war. Which just happened to be stopped before the man, who was supposed to be the monster, could have been removed. Great news. We got it in Britain; after the Falklands War, the Archbishop of Canterbury in Westminster Cathedral, just happened to hint that maybe war is not a great idea. He was attacked from all sides, particularly by Margaret Thatcher, for being unpatriotic. This psyche is appealed to all the time and you get it on lower levels. You get it with the Croats and the Serbs, you get it with the two sides in Rwanda, you get this collective psyche. People get locked into it. Bang! One's played off against the other and away you go. So, for me, the "American Dream" is freedom. Funny enough, I was watching some of these Christian channels (it's kind of interesting, we don't have them in Britain)...

AUDIENCE: Did you see the one with the big hair?

DAVID: There was one, is it called the "Global Catholic Network"? It's a series of dog collars talking at you. They had this other one, in which this guy looked like a pair of teeth with a jacket on. And he was patronizing the audience like crazy about family values. I thought: "Crikie, you could have been at the Republican convention." And then, about Christian values. And then, they cut out of that to an advertisement, which went on for about a half-an-hour, for these two guys who were putting on a business: "How to make Lots of Dough" seminar. They kept showing these people, who made lots of "dough" who insisted on telling everybody that they were Christians. One couple were eulogizing about how good these

people were, because, after going to one of these seminars, they'd managed to buy a house and sell it on the same day with about \$20,000 profit. So, I thought: "These are the Christian values, this is the 'American Dream'." Increasing the price of a basic human right, which is a shelter, by \$20,000, just to make a few quid. I think that this whole "American dream" thing is manipulated like crazy, because the "dream" is freedom, surely. The "American dream" is actually the "American dream-world" when you see that it's being manipulated to actually stop the very thing that it's supposed to be about, which is freedom.

AUDIENCE: When you're talking about freedom, are you talking about spiritual freedom, or freedom from all law?

DAVID: Well, I think that the physical world is a second-by-second reflection of human thought. So, the more human minds have closed down and the more we've handed over control of our lives to the very few, the more that has reflected itself in a deluge of law. I mean, can you breath in here without showing a pass. I don't think the fascist face is going to come to America; I think it has actually arrived in many areas. And, it is fast coming to Britain also, but it's a bit more subtle in Britain because they've had thousands of years (or certainly many, many centuries) to hone down their manipulation techniques. It's brilliantly done there. Not so overt, but still just as imposing. So, I think that instead of, it's like we say in Britain, putting the tail before the horse.

The structure in which society works, under the true definition of freedom, will emerge when consciousness is switched. Then everything will fall into place. I think symbolically, for instance, we're moving from the pyramid to the circle in terms of contributions and the way we see each other. And, that's a very, very different way of co-existing. For instance, the pyramid, one of the other things it does, is it decides the definition of success and failure. One definition of success and failure is someone who keeps the streets clean in New York and stops disease and rubbish piling up all over New York. They're considered a failure, because they're a garbage collector. "Oh, my God!" And someone who goes and plays the casino in Wall Street, or the casino in the city of London and with a few decisions before lunch can blight the lives of vast tracts of their fellow humanity, across what we call the Third World. He's considered a success. Because, success and failure is basically symbolized by the amounts of nonexistent money you've got in a bank account and about how much nonexistent money you make every day. So, the more you have of that nonexistent money, the higher you are on the pyramid. "Beam me up, Scotty! It's bloody mad down here."

As our consciousness switches to freedom for all, it naturally comes out of the pyramid, which is freedom for the few to dominate the rest, into the circle, which is respect for every one's contribution. So, under that attitude toward life, the man or woman who cleans the streets is seen in a very positive light, because they are doing an essential job. I remember, when I was at school, a friend of mine in the class, his father was what we call over there (*Britain*) a dust-bin man. Collect the dust-bins, garbage cans and the kids used to make fun of this lad, because his dad collected the dust-bins. Yet, those same children used to idealize soccer players (I used to be one, I'm not knocking it.), but they earn they're living kicking a bag of wind about. I thought at the time, "Who would we miss the most if they didn't do their job for a month?" We'd miss that guy's father, because the place would be full of rubbish and, probably by then, disease would have started. So, our values of what is success and failure and all that stuff is also manipulated and its agenda set by this pyramid structure. And, it's based on nonexistent figures moving around a screen, so when that gets out of our psyche and we start to see the big picture, then the circle comes in and it's a very,

very different way of structuring society. But, the structure will come out of the consciousness shift, not the other way around. The world we see today is basically a prison in effect, because we have allowed ourselves to become individual prisons. For me, what we call the world is merely the sum total of what's going on within human beings, being expressed outwardly. So, if we're in jail individually through fear and through limitations and the sense of limitations, we are going to actually project that out as a physical reflection. So, the world is going to reflect, if the overwhelming number of people are in an individual prison of their own making, they are going to project out, collectively, a global prison. So, when we realize that the power is not out there in truth, it's actually within and we set ourselves free, then that inner freedom gets projected out as a physical manifestation or a reflection of itself and the world becomes free.

We heal the world by healing ourselves, we free the world by freeing ourselves. It's really that simple. Because the world is what we think, what we imagine it to be second by second by second. Change our imagination, the world changes. It has no other choice. If I do that with my arms, it's not my physical body that said wave your arms about like an idiot. My consciousness has told my physical level, "Wave your arms about", so it does it. It does as it's told. The physical level is constantly subordinate to mind, to consciousness. Which is why we can think ourselves ill, and think ourselves well. This is a three-dimensional dream we're looking at here; a three-dimensional expression of human consciousness. When consciousness changes, the three-dimensional dream changes, because our imagination has changed. And the structure comes out of that; when we change, the structure will take care of itself.

AUDIENCE: That's the second time you've espoused a positive view of what might happen to this world in the next, say ten years. And we here, in this small town, don't get much of an overview of what's going on in the world. It would be heartening to us to hear upon what you base your optimism.

DAVID: I am a natural optimist. It's much better than being depressed, isn't it, really? Given the choice, I think I will be optimistic. I base my optimism on the fact that—well, many things really. First of all, almost all the projections forward, what we know as prophecies for the time of transformation, is for a bumpy transition and then a very different, and much better, world. That feels right to me; I mean I'm not sitting here thinking, "It's all going to be lovely and everything, and it will be nice. Give me a candle and I'll float off and dust the ceiling because everything's wonderful." Because the transition's going to be bumpy, we're all seeing signs of that. Any transition's bumpy because if the status quo doesn't break down then it's going to suppress and stop the new world from coming out. If you have a field full of weeds then it's very difficult for flowers to grow. So, the break down of the old is essential to allow the new to emerge. We're in this transitional period. And, I think, between now and 2004 or 2005 and a bit after that, it's going to be strap-in time. Ever so interesting though...strap-in time. But, in the end what's the worst thing that could happen? We all move to another time/space dimension and continue our evolution. Crikie, I'm terrified.

So, let's all have a bit of fun, because, you see, if we have fun doing this and we don't get caught in this: "Oh, God. It's terrible." If we create a world that reflects our inner imagination of ourselves. If we get caught in, "Oh, my God. It's terrible", then the physical world is actually going to reflect that. If we get into this three-letter word called joy, which we forgot about, and we actually enjoy every moment and live every moment then that is going to reflect itself into the world. Because, one of the things—it's an interesting point—one of the things that diminishes our power to change and effect the only moment we can actually effect, at any point (which is now, now, now, now!)—is because the manipulation of emotions pulls

us into the past and the future, all the time. Have you noticed that? If you're into guilt about something that's happened in the past (and guilt's always about what's happened in the past, that's how it becomes guilt), you say, "Oh, God. I remember, it's ever so clear. It was 1954. It was a Tuesday. I should never have done that. Oh, I feel so bad. Oh, my God." That means something that happened in 1954 is now destroying the only moment you can actually affect and that's the now. You feel resentful about somebody, like people who say, "God, I hate her. 1963, I remember it now. Good. I hate her." Now the person who is the focus of the resentment is probably on a Caribbean beach, having a great time. "Easy on the ice." And, there's this person being eaten away by resentment about something that's happened in the past.

So, resentment and guilt, they pull us into the past. And, we live our lives in the past. Now, fear is an overwhelmingly future experience. So, that pulls us into the future. "Oh, my God. Jobs are scarce, what about the kids?" And, we're pulled into the future. And, if we fear something happening in the future, we'll pull it in. We say, "I told you so, I told you it would happen!" No, you made it happen, that's a bit different. So, the fear of the future and these other emotions from the past are constantly destroying the now and diminishing our impact on the now. Because our energy and our focus is dissipated into the past and the future. I talked to this Russian guy once, he came to see me (I knew he was Russian because he moved around a lot, ever so quick), and he said to me, "Have you noticed, no one's ever here. They're always here or over here." And we are—it's like hope, even hope is a future experience. The manipulators at the peak of the pyramid, they understand all this. It might be a spiritual desert, but it's intellectual genius we're looking at, at the top of the pyramid. It's the domination of intellect over spirit. Once the intellect is set loose without the balance of the spirit, all hell breaks loose. So, they understand all this, and they're trying pull us into the past and the future all the time, so we have less and less impact on the now. You look at hope. Hope is a future experience, it's pulling us into the future.

(*Garbled tape*)...is to get vast numbers of people to believe anything as long as you tell them through the mainstream media. At least the whelming majority of the people that were laughing at me, were laughing, not at what I was saying, but at what the media reported me as saying. Which was completely different. Even today, anyone who's not actually bothered to find out what I'm saying, still thinks I'm some looney, who thinks he's the Messiah. I've written about nine books, now, saying that the whole Messiah thing is actually part of the process of giving your power away and waiting for the troops to come over the horizon on a flippin' white horse. We have to do it, not wait for some Messiah. I was reading that the Messiah was coming on a cloud. I was thinking the other day, "I hope it don't rain."

The whole period of that was very nightmarish at the moment but, with hindsight, I wouldn't change a thing. I had an amazing experience, which, I think, was the trigger point. You see, I see a difference between religion and spirituality. If people can express spirituality through religion, fine. But, in its empire structural form, not only is it overwhelmingly controlled in most of its forms, if not all its forms, by the same people that control the banks, it's also about imposing a belief system on someone. Spirituality is the opposite of that, it's about setting the spirit free and celebrating the uniqueness of spirit: Not allowing someone else to impose a belief system. Actually the opposite of religion. So, I'm into spirituality, not religion. And, at that time (mentioned earlier), I started bumping into psychics wherever I went and they were giving me information. Ninety-nine percent of which actually happened in my life since. One of them said I would write five books in three years. Which I thought was completely crazy. Trying to get 5 books published is difficult enough, in three years, never mind writing them. And on a subject which, at that time, I hadn't had a clue about. I thought, "What's happening to my life?", "Oh, I'm meeting these people", but it happened,

to the month (that I did the five books in three years).

When the first one was away at the printers...(This was the key point that transformed me from a television presenter into what I'm doing now, I suppose). It happened in early 1991, I was sitting at home. I lived on a little island in England. I don't now, I'm in Yorkshire [England]. I lived then on a little island called the Isle of Wight, off the south coast near Portsmouth. "Rule Britannia, Britannia...", all that stuff. And I got this overwhelming feeling to go to Peru. Don't ask me why, but I did. And I buy the tickets to go to Peru. It's about 1,500 quid. What am I doing going to Peru just on intuition? Then I met this psychic lady who said to me, "Have you ever thought about going to Peru?" And I thought, "Funny enough, I just have!" So I get on the plane to Peru. This is February 1991 and I get off the plane at Lima airport with my suitcases. I get them off from "baggage reclaim" and I stand there, it's about 6:00 in the morning, something like that (no, 5:30), and I stand there with my cases, thinking, "What the hell are you doing here?", because I didn't know, really. I just thought, "Go to Peru!" and "What am I doing here?" Even at that time of the morning the place is crowded with people talking a language you don't understand. So I'm "little boy lost" now and I'm thinking, "What are you doing here?" And, out of the crowd came this guy, speaking passable English, and he said, "Where you go?" I thought, "I wish I knew!" So, the one place I'd heard of, where I thought, "I'd give that a look", was a place called Cuzco. So I said, "Cuzco!" "You have hotel?" "No. I don't even know where it is!" "Follow me." So I follow him through the crowd, like a little boy with my cases, and he takes me over, he gets on the phone, he gets me a hotel, he gets me the tickets for the flight. Obviously he's on a commission, you know. And I've looked up at the departure board in Lima airport, which incidentally, if the planet was a physical body, they would put the enema in Lima airport. I'm not kidding! They really would! I am not kidding ya! I've been some places in my life but none worse than that.

Anyway, the rest of Peru is fantastic but not Lima airport. Being English, I've seen there's a plane going in about 20 minutes, 20 past 6:00 it went, I remember, in the morning. Being English, I've gone and stood at the back of the queue, haven't I. This great long queue for this flight. Because we love "queuing" in England, you know. If you stand still in the street for long enough, someone will come and stand behind you. We love it! So, there I am at the back of this queue and this guy comes over to me and he says, "No, no, no, follow me, follow me!" So I'm walking behind this guy up to the front of the queue and all these people are looking at me and I'm thinking, "What's going on here?" The guy is checking in somebody at the front of the queue; this fellow who is with me, puts his arm across, stops the guy, whacks my stuff in front of the check-in man! Who immediately picks it up and starts checking me in! Because they are obviously mates—they've got a deal.

So, I get on this plane and I fly to Cuzco. I get in this hotel this guy has provided for me and I'm "little boy lost" again. I think, "Well, what now?" And I had one name that was given to me by someone in Canada. It was a woman who lived in Cuzco and she spoke English, she was Canadian. So I rang her. It turns out she works for the local travel agent/tourist agency. So, I went around to see her, within an hour I've got all my travel details for nearly three weeks sorted out and a Peruvian guide. "Thank you!" So, I go and see this Peruvian guide the next morning and (he runs this little vegetarian coffee place in Cuzco and he's sleeping on the floor in this place) I walk in and the first thing he says to me is, "Did you have any dreams last night?" I thought, "Well, that's a good start! Good morning. How are you?" And the funny thing was, I had. I'd had a vivid, in "Technicolor" dream the night before, that one of these two front teeth fell out. So, I told him and he said, "Is your father or grandfather still alive?" I said, "Well, my father is." He says,

"Well, that's usually symbolic of your father or grandfather dying. I thought, "This is going to be a great three weeks, this!"

Getting an international telephone call out of Peru, outside of Lima, is not easy. By the time I got a call out to England my father had died, at that time, back in England. Funny! It was good, actually, because he had been suffering like crazy for six months and he was best, out of it.

—to be continued.

EUSTACE MULLINS' LATEST HARASSMENT

Letter From Eustace Mullins:

To: Gordon Bethune Chairman, Ceo Continental Air Lines 2929 Allen Parkway Houston, Tx 77019

Dear Chairman Bethune.

I wish to inform you that I am preparing a civil lawsuit against Continental Air Lines to be filed in federal court in the amount of five million dollars (\$5,000,000.00) damages and five million dollars punitive damages as the result of an assault on my person by a Continental Air Lines employee at National Airport, 22 Aug. 1996. These are the circumstances:

I was standing in line at the ticket counter with my briefcase on the floor beside me. After a considerable period of time, I obtained my ticket. Someone then called out, "Is this your briefcase?" I turned to see a Continental Air Lines employee brandishing my briefcase. "Yes, it is," I replied. "It's been here for a very long time," she said. "I've been standing here in line for a very long time," I responded. "Someone may have put something in it," she said. "It has been with me the entire time," I said. "No one could have put anything in it. If we hadn't become so involved with the State of Israel, we wouldn't have to go through all these complications."

The CAL employee gave me a stern look, and beckoned me over to a vacant area of the ticket counter. She then said, "I'm Jewish myself, and I don't like what you said." "But, it's true," I replied. She then said in a threatening manner, "Now this briefcase will have to undergo a complete inspection." "I am going to the inspection area now," I said, "in order to get to the gate." "No, I will take care of this," she said. She then tried to get several people on the phone for about ten minutes, while I protested I might miss my plane. She then made entries on a computer. Finally, she marched me to the inspection area, where three Black inspectors went through my briefcase, staring at me all the while as though I must be a very dangerous terrorist. I had a very valuable antique plate in my briefcase, and I was terrified that these inspectors, who were very clumsy, might break it. After the inspection your CAL employee accompanied me all the way to the gate, repeatedly making threatening comments that "I am supposed to turn you over to the police for making inflammatory remarks." I replied that I had made no inflammatory remarks. She was obviously trying to goad me into making other statements, which I wisely refused to do. Although I finally made my plane, I missed my Cleveland connection, which should have put me in Chicago at 12:02. Instead, I missed my pickup, and had to hire a taxi, which cost almost fifty dollars.

My lawsuit is for personal damages, but it will also bring into focus the incredible inconveniences inflicted on airline passengers by Continental Air Lines, a willing co-conspirator in the propaganda hoax called "the War Against Terrorism". The fact is that despite the expenditure of many billions of dollars and awesome

loss of time by your passengers, the campaign against terrorism has never apprehended a single terrorist or prevented the loss of a single airplane. It does achieve its goal, which is to psychologically condition Americans that no personal sacrifice is too great to continue American military support of the State of Israel in its war against its Arab neighbors, which is another propaganda hoax designed to aid the "Seven Sisters" to maintain the high price of oil. Although Congress is the principal villain in American military support for Israel, in exchange for Zionist political contributions and media support, Continental Air Lines is shown to be a more than willing conspirator in this propaganda hoax and outrage against the American public, as demonstrated by your CAL employee's personal assault against me, acting solely in support of the State of Israel, and not for the supposed campaign of "protecting" us against terrorism. CAL has proven that it is more than willing to assault its paying customers in order to support the State of Israel, and this stance is actionable in our courts.

After this assault, I refused to fly on Continental on my return trip, travelling by other transportation. I will be flying again in a few days, again not on Continental, although I have been a regular traveller on CAL for the past ten years, but had never been assaulted as I was on August 22, 1996.

I enclose my current book list, which includes the best selling *Rape of Justice*, a textbook on how to proceed in court.

Sincerely,

/s/ Eustace Mullins

Sept. 7, 1996 126 Madison Place Staunton, VA 24401

GERMAIN: PRACTICAL SUGGESTIONS FOR RAISING YOUR FREQUENCY

Editor's note: The following writing is by the Ascended Master known as Violinio St. Germain, Master of the Seventh Ray (or Aspect) of Creator's spectrum, the Violet Ray of Transmutation, among the seven great "Rainbow Masters" communicating at this time to help us get through Earth-Shan's planetary transition and rebalancing.

In Journal#7, called THE RAINBOW MASTERS, Germain says: "I head up the program for the thrust of the Seventh Ray, for it is the transmuting ray. I am passionate about it, unbending regarding its use for purity, Truth AND FREEDOM—FREEDOM OF THY GOD SELF, IN THE SERVICE OF THE CHRISTOS, WHICH IS GOD—PURE AND SIMPLE: GOD FREEDOM EXPRESSED IN MANIFEST FORM IN THEE AND IN ME....

"If ye wish to sum the measure of my existence in all prior times, please let it be said, 'He lived to make men free'....

"In all my times upon thy place, I have sought to stand squarely on a platform of basic human rights for a responsible, reasoning public education in the principles of liberty and equal opportunity for all. I have efforted to teach thee ones to espouse your inalienable DIVINE RIGHT to live life according to your highest conception of GOD. No right, however simple or basic, can long be secure without the underpinning of the Spiritual Graces and the Divine Law that instills a compassionate righteousness in the exercise thereof. Always I have efforted to make thy country a fortress against ignorance and superstition, where Christ achievement blossom, and devotion to THE ONE could prosper in the quest for the Holy Truth (Grail)....

"I have always efforted at being an immortal spokesman for your scientific, religious and political liberties. I believe that humanity shall accept as an axiom for its conduct the principle for which I have laid down my life: the right to investigate. It is the credo of free men—this opportunity to try, this privilege to err, this courage to experiment anew.

"We scientists of the human spirit shall experiment, experiment, experiment, ever experiment. Through centuries of trial and error, through agonies of research, let us experiment with laws and customs, with money systems and governments, until we chart the one true course."

For more background on this important group of teachers, plus earlier writings by them, refer to the Back Page for Journal ordering information.

9/21/96 GERMAIN

Greetings, my friend. It is I, Violinio St. Germain, here in the Radiant Light of Creator God. Allow the energies to settle, please, and focus not upon the words but upon the message.

We have a lot of work ahead of us and you will need to commit some time every day to our work. Thank you for being willing to face these challenges. You shall probably be the last one to see that which comes of these writings. But know, please, that the messages you pen reach through and touch the hearts of many in ways that can only be described as a miracle.

Many ones are indeed waking up to the reality of their situation. Many are seeking to find personal guidance and truth. Ones are wondering what it is that they should be doing and what their purpose might be.

We cannot answer everyone's personal question specifically in this public forum. We can, however, give ones insights concerning that which will enable them to help themselves.

You ones are in the Ending Cycle of the existing cultural and technological social structure. It is time for graduation into the next phase of spiritual advancement on your planet. Those who have grown shall graduate into the next phase or level of experiencing; those who have not grown shall have to be placed elsewhere in order to continue at their current level of growth. These are the infinite cycles of experience.

Many of you who are reading this message are the "Ground Crew" who have come now in order to assist your Souled Brothers in their time of need. Please know that there are many reasons for your return at this time.

Everyone, whether Ground Crew or not, has personal challenges to face. Many of these challenges must represent the proper conditions before they can be presented to you ones. This is to say that even and especially Ground Crew shall have various difficulties and challenges to overcome. YOU WOULD NOT HAVE CHOSEN TO GO DOWN THERE IF THERE WAS NO OPPORTUNITY FOR GROWTH.

You may think to yourself, "I couldn't possibly be Ground Crew because I have so many problems in my life." Well, if you are drawn to these messages, and if your intent is to grow mentally and spiritually, then you are indeed part of Ground Crew IF YOU SO CHOOSE TO BE!

Now, with that said, let us please shift the focus a bit: We of the Lighted Hosts need as many willing hands and minds as we can find in order to accomplish the multitude of tasks that shall need to be completed. This means that you ones MUST start paying attention to the inner nudges that you are receiving. STOP IGNORING THE NAGGING IMPULSES THAT SEEM TO BE ANNOYING YOU! Many of you made commitments to yourself and to we of the Hosts before entering this dimensional experience. Often, your Guides will be there to help you to remember, when the time is right, some of those commitments and challenges YOU chose both for YOUR own soul growth and which may contribute to the larger planetary transition mission.

Let me now turn to a question that is often, these days, asked of we of the Hosts.

Sincerely inquiring ones from Lanark, Ontario, Canada, in response to Commander Soltec's recent writing on the mind [called "Use That Great Gift Of Your Mind!" in the 8/24/96 issue of CONTACT] have written to ask:

"Perhaps sometime you would write about the mechanics, not just the words, of raising the human body's energy level [in order] to cope with the constant density and frequency changes now sweeping the Earth."

I, Germain, shall answer on behalf of, and with the assistance of, Anthonius Soltec. And we thank these ones for this most insightful query.

Many are under constant bombardment from pulse weapons (sometimes referred to as psychotronic weapons), from a myriad of mind- control techniques (which include your media sources like radio and television), from diseases (especially those born of parasitic infestations), from drugs of all kinds, and from simple malnutrition. ALL of these things can and do affect your energy levels.

Now, what about on YOUR side of the equation? What is YOUR counter attack?

Well, THE most important single factor that affects one's personal energy level is one's MENTALATTITUDE.

Ones may have all kinds of energy to go out to parties on the weekends and stay up all night in the process, but during the weekdays they drag around trying to get their work done and stay awake while doing it.

What is the cause here?

THE MENTAL ATTITUDE AND PERSONAL VIEWPOINT, of course!

When ones are having fun, they ignore time, sleep, food and other things that they would normally seek out or crave.

Find a way to look forward to life and enjoy the experience—AND YOU WILL BE FULL OF ENERGY!

Now let us look at some of the other factors which contribute to YOUR available energy levels.

First of all, you ones will need to raise your vibrational frequencies as much as you can. The MECHAN-ICS of how to do this have been provided to you ones. Besides mental attitude, I would suggest, most emphatically, that you get the products that have been offered by *New Gaia Products*—such as Gaiandriana and AquaGaia, all the colloids, and all the GaiaSorb products that are applicable to you.

Ones say that they cannot afford all these things, yet they can afford cigarettes, alcohol, carbonated sugar drinks and such. Well, where there is a TRUE desire for balanced physical health, the appropriate steps will be taken and there WILL be balanced physical health.

Let us look at what some of you ones are putting into your bodies: Cigarettes are laced with all kinds of poisons; nicotine is perhaps one of the least of concern. The papers are laced with addictive substances. These additives, when burned together, chemically combine into highly toxic carcinogens. Yet, ones will regularly intake these "cancer sticks" — all the while wondering why they are not hearing, personally, the call of we of the Hosts!

Alcohol is another major problem with Ground Crew members. Some go through the experience of drinking their sorrows away while others claim, "I am only a casual drinker". In either case (plus all the gray area in between) excuses are plentiful for hanging onto this habit.

I am not going to tell anyone how to live their life. I will, however, suggest that you refrain from these toxic and addictive substances IF you desire clarity of mind, sharper senses, a greater level of stamina, and a higher frequency level. Furthermore, such will bring about conditions more favorable for we of the Hosts to work with and through you!

Please keep in mind that whether you are addicted to these substances or not, you are fast approaching a time when they will not be available, and you will have to do without them! So, if you feel that you cannot possibly go to sleep without at least one drink first, then you may be in for some very sleepless nights in the not-very-distant future.

Now let us turn to the subject of nutrition. As most of you should well know by now, your food supplies have been purposely depleted of necessary vitamins and minerals. To counteract this, I simply suggest that you get the necessary supplements of not only vitamins, but common minerals AND trace minerals as well.

At the risk of sounding like a commercial, again, if you have trouble finding quality vitamins and minerals, etc., *New Gaia* offers all sorts of supplemental products to help those who truly desire to get physically balanced. I do believe that, because of legal restrictions, *New Gaia* is very limited concerning that which they may say about the value of the products that they sell.

Furthermore, avoid the "fast food" places. They are running on such low profit margins that they must buy the cheapest meats, produce, etc., in order to just stay open. Thus the foodstuffs from these "fast food" places may, for instance, contain meats laced with high levels of antibiotics and produce laced with dangerous pesticides—including some toxic pesticides banned from use in the United States.

When you prepare your food, do so as Commander Hatonn has suggested many times in the past: It is far more important that you prepare your food with LOVE in your heart, than it is important to be concerned about how fancy a dish you prepare. Joyous vibrational frequencies that you pump into the food during preparation shall not only make the simplest dish taste better, but the food will be better for you.

Have you ever known someone who can prepare a dish that is absolutely delicious yet, when others try to duplicate it, it comes out flat or otherwise doesn't taste anywhere near as good? This factor is a most important "secret ingredient" of good meal preparation!

Eat fresh fruits and vegetables whenever practical; save the canned foods for your emergency supplies. If you can grow, yourself, or you can find fruits and vegetables in the marketplace, which have been grown under more natural or "organic" farming conditions, free from lethal pesticides, then by all means please partake of these more alive, and thus frequency-raising and health-giving, products.

Let us now turn our attention to the subject of electromagnetic pulse bombardment. This is perhaps one of the trickiest of problems to overcome. First of all, KNOW that it is there, it is real, and it can and does

have an effect on you—whether you realize it or not.

Here the counteractive mechanics are not going to be so simple. You must try to match these bombard-ment frequencies if at all possible. For some, you will have raised your vibrational frequency to a point where the impact is minimized. However, again, if you hold onto those addictive substances, you will be hard pressed to overcome some of these electromagnetically-induced irritations.

The various mind-control pulse systems are specifically engineered to operate in the frequency range of human brain activity. The brain, being in the physical, operates in the same general frequency range as the body. The brain serves as a highly-sensitive interface port for the mind. The mind is NON physical; the brain is quite physical.

What the pulse systems effectively do is, they operate in such a way as to flood the interface junction (brain) with "noise". Some actually hear pulse system broadcasts as background ringing tones in the ears. This "noise" interferes with the mind's ability to communicate effectively in certain frequency ranges. As a result of this now-impeded coupling between mind and brain, tempers may flare or ones may become agitated for no real reason, and yet others perhaps may lapse into states of depression and/or confusion.

The higher YOU are able to raise the background frequency of your body (and thus your brain, too), the less impact the pulse systems will have on you. Again, MENTALATTITUDE has, perhaps, the greatest single impact on one's vibrational frequency.

The next point may seem to be circular in reasoning, BUT—why do you ones think that the adversarial forces would utilize such a weapon? Could the answer perhaps be: IN ORDER TO KEEP YOU FROM REALIZING YOUR TRUE POTENTIAL?!!?!

Laughter, Humor, Joy and Love are perhaps the best ingredients for raising one's frequency. These are the higher-frequency emotions that will lift you out of boredom and depression IF you make the effort to cultivate these higher-frequency emotions within you. Allowing such as anger, frustration and self pity to linger within you only lowers your vibrational level.

Summarizing what I have been discussing as "action items": eating high-energy fresh foods prepared with Joy and Love will help increase one's frequency, as will avoiding drugs such as caffeine, alcohol, nicotine and such. Moreover, using the gifts brought to you ones for this very purpose through *New Gaia*—Gaiandriana, GaiaLyte, AquaGaia, etc.—will most certainly also assist in this frequency-raising effort.

Remember, throughout ALL of your daily experiences: call in the Light, and ask for constant protection and guidance. And keep in mind that we can do more to assist you in meeting the challenges presented by any situation WHEN YOU REMEMBER TO ASK!

Speaking of guidance, let me suggest another method of frequency raising. This technique is, in essence, a matter of mental attitude, but some prefer the term "meditation". What do I mean by this? I mean, clearing one's mind of mental garbage and asking for guidance and insights on what it is you need to be doing.

When you make a conscious effort to connect to Higher Source, there will be a "meeting of the minds" at some in-between frequency plane. And the more often you put forth this effort, the more easily such shall

come about for you.

The Lighted Higher-Energy Beings will meet you more than half way, and in doing so, they will add some of their high-frequency energy to your energy field. This will "stretch" you by raising your frequency slightly. With constant and continued effort to make connection, the easier it shall become, for you shall be moving up in frequency with each encounter.

Slowly, perhaps, at first, but certainly with diligence and persistence, you will make connection with increasing ease, until you are almost always in constant conscious contact with we of the Higher realms. Actually, you ARE always "in contact"; it is just that you are not usually very CONSCIOUS of the nature of this interaction.

As far as helping others, I would suggest that you share these messages with them and answer their questions the best that you honestly can. If they are asking YOU, then recognize that they are probably being guided to you, and you can feel confident that you have the insights or knowledge that they need to hear. If ones are not asking, then don't force anything down their throats. Respect the choices of another and move on.

Since this writing addresses the subject of health and well being, let me offer some further information to you ones who are constantly worried and preoccupied with your weight.

Ones are constantly going on and off diets. This causes an unbalanced condition and thus there develops the "roller coaster" effect of weight loss followed by gain again.

Weight, or more accurately size due to fat cells, should be controlled from the inside out, not the outside in. However, for practical reasons, do not jump to the conclusion that this statement exclusively means "controlled from the mind"—though ultimately that is indeed true.

One common cause for an overweight condition (which may or may not also include chronic fatigue) is parasites. For those of you who think that you could not possibly have parasites, I would suggest that you consider most carefully WHY you would think such a thing. Is it because your ego will not allow you to confront this possibility?!?

Parasites store foods, that they scavenge from your body, in the form of fat. Thus you eat more in order to get the proper nutrition that your body needs. In a heavily infested body, you may consume massive amounts of food and still not get all the nutrients that you need. Meanwhile, your body is ballooning up due to the fat stored by the parasites for their future use.

Again, *New Gaia* offers a product (GaiaCleanse) that will enable you to cope with this type of bombardment. In the larger picture, reduction of fat is perhaps the VERY LEAST IMPORTANT reason to rid selves of parasites. Much disease (and otherwise compromised body and brain functioning) is likewise due to parasitic infestations of one kind or another.

Keep in mind that, as you raise your frequency, the parasites become more and more uncomfortable living in such an environment. Thus frequency, which is largely governed, again, by MENTAL ATTITUDE, also

plays an important role in the weight issue. So, to state this point in another, more comprehensive way: THE BODY WILL REFLECT THE INNER EMOTIONAL SELF.

Ones who are plagued with great emotional pains most often put on weight (fat) in order to insulate themselves from the impact of these emotional events. The fat serves as a "wave barrier" between you and the "vibes" of the outside, potentially harmful world.

When ones are constantly being bombarded with the energies of low-frequency emotions, they will most often place a physical barrier between themselves and those sending out these corrosive emotional energy waves or "negative vibrations".

On a side-matter related to this subject, we of the Hosts must maintain padding (fat) in the Solar Plexus area of some Light Workers among the Ground Crew in order to protect them from both the electronically-induced pulse waves and the negative emotional energies of those who strike out in fear or anger.

This is why it can be a most annoying and uncomfortable (when your clothes don't fit!) and difficult endurance situation for some of the Light Workers who have agreed to serve under these most adverse conditions.

Frequently this can be a particular problem for designated receivers. Since our receivers can get worn down mentally, we must have this physical "backup" in place.

For some of you who gladly read and enjoy these messages, this sort of attack on a receiver may not even cross your minds. But be assured that there are evil (dark) ones who overtly attack and send negative energy pulses against the Light Workers. Moreover, there are witches and black magic, and some of the more serious dark ones DO practice spiritual warfare. If they can't get the Light Workers themselves, which they usually cannot, then they will go after family members and friends.

Back to the subject of weight. Some are indeed plagued with physical problems such as a thyroid imbalance. Some are just lazy and inactive and simply just don't want to give up their addictive compulsions toward eating.

If you really look at the possibilities, you can trace the weight problem back to the root cause—which is emotional unbalance in some way. So, if you TRULY want to drop those pounds, then you would do well to look within and search for those things that emotionally pull you down.

The fat is the EFFECT. The real CAUSE, even of something as physical as an unbalanced thyroid condition, is emotional in nature.

Find those things that pull you down; go within and bring them up. If you have a close friend or relative with whom you can talk about these things, and release them, then do so. The emotional release will do wonders for your mental attitude.

Walking or physical work, outside, each day, will also help you to come into balance. A walk can further serve as an opportunity to take in the frequency-raising and cleansing gifts of Nature (God).

Balance begins within. May you be the example for others to follow.

I am Violinio St. Germain, come in the Light of Creator God. Salu.

JUDGE RECOGNIZES FREEMEN COURT! COMMENTS MADE ON THE RECORD

Reprinted with permission from The Jubilee newspaper Vol. 8 No. 6. See end of chapter for subscription information. Also see related article reprinted from The Jubilee on p. 142.

freeman pasteup

JUBILEE
Subscriptions
P.O. Box 310
Midpines, California 95345
Office (209) 742-NEWS (6397)
FAX (209) 966-NFAX (6329)
E-MAIL jubilee@yosemite.net

Micronuclear Devices Usewd In OIC Bombing: Explosives Placed By FBI, ATF

FREEMEN FAITH TARGETED

all paste

U.S. MILITARY ALERT all paste

grandma fax hdg

THINK ABOUT IT! WHAT EVER HAPPENED TO THE CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS OF "SUFFRAGE"

by Grandma 9/18/96

Well, looks like that Kid from Arkansas is at it again. Only this time, he has an accomplice, **Bob Dole**. Seems as though the **Arkansas Kid**, who is running in the **Jackass Crowd**—for the Presidency of the United States—while being assisted by the Old Boys Club, tied in with Bob Dole, running in the Big Ugly crowd, finally got together and decided that all the people needed to represent them was "A Jackass, or A Big Ugly" (Democrat or Republican).

THINK ABOUT IT!

They **misconstrued** and **abused** their powers of offices of public trust, by denying other presidential hopefuls a chance to speak to the American people, and giving the American people the **right of choice** of a president of the United States.

This is **Communism, under a dictatorship**—when the rights of Suffrage are denied to the American people. One might try to argue that there can no be communistic dictatorship—well, take a look at Castro's Cuba. We, as a Nation, are headed down the same path of Destruction of the American *Constitution* and the mandatory Republican form of government for the States. (Under a Republican form of government, each state is a Sovereign, Independent Nation, under commercial treaty with the Federal government)

If we have nothing or no one to vote for but Jackasses and Big UGLIES, we are denied our rights of Suffrage (vote) which is a constitutional repugnancy!

The *Constitution* mandates paper ballots. Wonder what would happen—if every voting American citizen, would take a piece of paper into the voting place, and print neatly the name of the president of choice, vice president of choice, etc., then signed their name, date and time, which must correspond with the admittance records, and deposited this paper ballot into the ballot box.

Of course, another problem exists: most of those who conduct the polling offices, can't count beyond their fingers and toes. This only stands to reason, for they sure as the devil can not read the *Constitution*, for in the event they did, they would know that what is occurring here is unlawful, and repugnant to the Grandfathered *Constitution*.

9/21/96 GRANDMA

Every time the citizens of the United States seek Constitutional rights **absolute**, the citizens are threatened, intimidated, and, in some instances, thrown into jail for several days, coerced, and then released without any charges being filed. The airwaves are full of such repugnancies.

When *Article III* (constitutional law) jurisdiction is petitioned, judges run like hell, and the Bar Association screams: "You have no standing in the courts, you are not licensed by the Bar Association." (This occurs when Common Lawyers, i.e., constitutional lawyers file into *Article III* Jurisdiction).

These same Bar Association members scream, "The Judiciary Reform Act forbids anyone not licensed by the Bar Association to practice law."

My own personal response to this statement is: Son, you, like your Bar Association, is not covered in the *U.S. Constitution*, or the States' Constitutions. You and your Bar Association are <u>ex post facto</u>—non admittable under *Article VI* constitutional law, under *Article III* Jurisdiction.

Our Courts are in a mess; our judges sit on their judicial benches about one (1) hour per day—while the Bar Association spouts the reform of the Federal Judiciary Act of 1937, and hold the *Constitution*, and constitutional petitioners, in a hostage situation.

The reform of the Federal Judiciary (U.S. 75th Congress, 1st Session, Senate Report 711), stated:

SUMMARY

"We recommend the rejection of this bill as needless, futile, and utterly dangerous abandonment of constitutional principle.

"It was presented to the Congress in a most intricate form and for reasons that obscured its real purpose."

"It would not banish age from the bench nor abolish divided decisions.

"It would not affect the power of any court to hold laws unconstitutional nor withdraw from any judge the authority to issue injunctions.

"It would not reduce the expense of litigation nor speed the decisions of cases.

"It would subjugate the courts to the will of Congress and the President and thereby destroy the independence of the judiciary, the only certain shield of individual rights.

"It contains the germ of a system of centralized administration of law that would enable an executive so minded to send his judges into every judicial district in the land to sit in judgment on controversies between the Government and the Citizen.

"It points the way to the evasion of the *Constitution* and establishes the method whereby the people may be deprived of their right to pass upon all amendments of the fundamental law.

"It stands now before the country, acknowledged by its proponents as a plan to force judicial interpretation of the *Constitution*, a proposal that violates every sacred tradition of American democracy.

"Under the form of the Constitution it seeks to do that which in unconstitutional.

"Its ultimate operation would be to make this Government one of men rather that one of Law, and its practical operation would be to make the *Constitution* what the executive or legislative branches of the Government choose to say it is—an interpretation to be changed with each administration.

"It is a measure which should be so emphatically rejected that its parallel will never again be presented to the free representatives of the free people of America."

THINK ABOUT IT

The Bar Association, and a Communist President, Franklin Delano Roosevelt, were turned down by the 75th U.S. Congress of the United States in 1937—in their attempt to overt**hrow** the *Constitution* for the United States....

NOW THINK ABOUT THIS!

Title 5—Appendix. Federal Advisory Committee Act (Public Law 92-463, Oct 6, 1972, 86 Stat. 770, as amended by Pub. L. 94-409, ss5 (c), Sept. 13, 1976, 90 Stat. 12784; Pub. L. 96-532, ss2, Dec. 12, 1980, 94 Stat. 3040; Pub. L. 97-375, title II, ss201 (c), Dec. 21, 1982, 96 Stat. ss Short Title [check it out].)

Fellow Concerned Citizens, what Congress, on one hand, would not allow, i.e., the Reform of the Judiciary Act of 1937—it allowed in the Federal Advisory Committee Act. And since the inception, our Courts have failed the people; the President is allowed, by Congress' ignorance perhaps, to place presidential judges on president's benches of our Courts, thereby making a mockery of our Constitution, and of our duly constituted, inherent, perpetual, inviolable rights.

ARE YOU THINKING ABOUT IT?!

Running concurrently with the Federal Advisory Committee Act, is **the New States Constitution. The New States Constitution can be found in the Library of Congress.**

When the President of the United States, states: "By the powers vested to me by the *Constitution of the United States*", he is speaking of the Federal Advisory Committee Act, and the New States Constitution under public law. For, the *Constitution* for the United States, *Article VI*, does not recognize "public laws" or Federal Advisory Committee acts which violate all laws of the *Constitution* for the United States, Grandfathered.

The *Constitution*/Treaty/Compact/Contract/Agreement of the citizens of the United States, made with the Federal Government and Grandfathered, in **pure form**, precludes, i.e., prohibits such actions by any

act of Congress, or by any President, past or present.

Congress, by failure of Duty of Offices and Oath to the *Constitution* for the United States, albeit (1) knowingly, or (2) unknowingly, has allowed a Dictatorship to prevail, over and above the *Constitution* for the United States, in the form of the Federal Advisory Committee Act, and Powers granted therein to the President of the United States, were rejected by the 75th U.S. Congress, identified and described in the <u>summary of rejection</u> of the reform of the federal Judiciary, 1937.

The constitutional U.S. Congress and constitutional U.S. Senate, must repeal all repugnant laws which violate, impede and impair the original constitutional laws (contract) for the United States, or stand in violation of *Article I, Clause 10* themselves, including violation of the *VIth Article*, which mandates: "All laws must be made in pursuance to the *Constitution*." Public laws are not authorized by the *Constitution* for the United States, nor is the Federal Advisory Committee Act.

Public laws are laws for private parties to private agreements. Public laws do, in fact, violate *Article VI* of the *Constitution*. For in quoting the 75th U.S. Senate and Congress, 1937:

"Its ultimate operation would be to make this Government one of men, rather than one of law, and its practical operation would be to make the *Constitution* what the executive or legislative branches of the Government choose to say it is—an interpretation to be changed with each administration..."

So much for the Federal Advisory Committee Act. But is there a constitutional U.S. Congress, or a constitutional U.S. Senate existing in the United States in 1996? For, in the event such constitutional legislative branches did exist, these repugnancies would be immediately repealed—and constitutional courts would be returned to the citizens.

THINK ABOUT IT—Grandma Herrman-Herman

V.K. DURHAM: RESOLVING THE NATIONAL DEBT!

all paste

SCATHING INDICTMENT OF GEORGE H.W. BUSH

Racketeering—Drug Trafficking—Obstructing Justice

Editor's note: In a just released, September 1996, EIR Special Report titled, "Would a President Bob Dole prosecute drug super-kingpin George Bush?", we read some startling and provocative evidence. While most of this report will not be new to regular readers of CONTACT, it is put together in a well researched, compelling style. This Special Report is available directly from EIR, but be advised that the cost (per report) is \$100, from Executive Intelligence Review (EIR), P. O. Box 17390, Washington, D.C. 20041-0390, Publication #96-003. Not only do we want to fully acknowledge EIR for this daring and timely publication, but we would like to thank them for the excerpt you are about to read, which is the summarizing Indictment statement that is the heart of the report.

Now what you won't read in this Indictment is how George Bush usurped use of the old Peruvian Gold Certificate actually known as Bonus Contract #3392-N-181 for his own personal SUPER-FUND, sucking in billions of dollars while banks around the world have fallen HARD to this fraudulent effort. Well, these things have a way of coming home to roost.

In the meantime, before presenting the indictment, let us present a few introductory remarks from Lyndon H. LaRouche, Jr., dated September 13, 1996: [Quoting:]

Those who are familiar with such matters, will recognize that the following pages are much more than a report; this is a case to be presented to a grand jury. The evidence demands an indictment of former U.S. President George Herbert Walker Bush, et al., for conspiracy to commit sundry "high crimes and misdemeanors." The many crimes include the importation of cocaine by Bush-league agents, and also a massive obstruction of justice, in this and other matters, by highly-placed Bush confederates within the U.S. Department of Justice.

Obviously, the San Jose Mercury News is to be commended for its courage and persistence in providing the much-needed, final link, in proving the connection between George Bush's 1983 takeover of the Contra operation, and the mid-1980s launching of the "crack cocaine" epidemic inside the United States. However, the overwhelming majority of the relevant evidence had been in the files of the Executive Intelligence Review, even more than a decade earlier. The additional margin of factual information provided by the Mercury News' scoop, contributes the specific quality of added fact which imparts the strongest public passions in support of the evidence as a whole. This new document creates the long-overdue, added political factor needed to end the cover-up effected earlier, through Vice-President Bush's lies and by a carefully crafted staging of Oliver North's whining appearance at the relevant Congressional hearings.

When you see the bigger picture, as the crucial evidence is presented here, you will nod in agreement, that the "crack cocaine" epidemic is only one of the major counts against Bush, et al. If we

are to regain the Federal constitutional republic which has been nearly destroyed since Bush's 1980 election as U.S. Vice-President, we must first uncover and liquidate the vast, outlaw, and also significantly drug-funded, international mercenary organization built up by Bush under the cover of his authority delegated (and relegated) by National Security Decision Directives 2 and 3, and by Bush's position as "Drug Czar" during the period of cross-border drug-trafficking operations of Bush's Contra agents.

But, Bush's operations, as Vice-President, under NSDD 2 and NSDD 3, were not limited to the Americas. Bush used his nest in the National Security Council, and in the so-called "Focal Point" operating under the cover of the U.S. Joint Chiefs of Staff, to create a vast, intricately crafted, privately funded "secret government," whose corrupt, continuing activities have brought the constitutional institutions of all three branches of our Federal government to the verge of destruction. Even with Bush out of elected office, he and his army of "knuckle-dragging" mercenaries are currently operating, both within and outside the U.S.A., with utter contempt for our constitutional institutions and the rights of our citizens, and often in direct opposition to our vital strategic interests abroad. Until we exorcize the legions of Demon Bush from positions of power in our national life, no citizen is safe; not even the highest ranking offices of our government are immune from the "Star chamber" frame-ups, and kindred atrocities, by Bush-league Robespierres.

Turn to the next pages; study the evidence. It is time to indict, and neutralize the vast mercenary apparatus of secret government which former President Bush continues to typify today. Our nation, and your family's future, depend upon doing that now, before it is too late. [End Quoting]

So, with those words of background, and one more "thank you" to EIR for a job well done, we now share the central Indictment statement from this outstanding document chronicling the illegal activities of some of the very slickest of crooks in high places.

A "KINGPIN" INDICTMENT OF GEORGE BUSH, ET AL.

A draft indictment of George Bush and his cronies for drug trafficking and other crimes, with George Bush as the "kingpin" (see Count III, paragraph 28). Every overt act charged in this indictment is documented; most of the evidence is from either the "Kerry Report" of the Senate Foreign Relations Committee, or the Final Report of the Independent Counsel for Iran-Contra.

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA)	CRIMINAL NO.———
CIVILED STATES OF AWIERICA	,	CIMITATE 110.
)	
VS.)	
)	Ct. 1 18 U.S.C. 1961
GEORGE HERBERT)	et seq. Racketeering
WALKER BUSH)	
DONALD P. GREGG)	

FELIX RODRIGUEZ)	Ct. 2 21 U.S.C.
a/k/a "Max Gomez")	952 & 963
OLIVER L. NORTH)	Conspiracy to Import
a/k/a "William Goode")	Narcotics
a/k/a "Mr. Green")	
RICHARD V. SECORD)	Ct. 3 21 U.S.C. 848
a/k/a "Richard Copp")	Continuing Criminal
a/k/a "Major Gen.)	Enterprise
Richard Adams")	(Drug Kingpin)
ROBERT W. OWEN))	
a/k/a "TC"))	Ct. 4 18 U.S.C. 1503
a/k/a "The Courier)	Conspiracy to Obstruct
JOHN HULL)	Justice
ADOLPHO CALERO)	
JUAN NORWIN MENESES)	Ct. 5 18 U.S.C. 1505
CANTARERO)	Conspiracy to Obstruct
OSCAR DANILO)	Congress
BLANDON REYES)	
WILLIAM F. WELD)	

* * *

INDICTMENT THE GRAND JURY CHARGES THAT: COUNT I—RACKETEERING

THE ENTERPRISE

- 1. At all times relevant to this Indictment, there existed an Enterprise, within the meaning of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1961(4), that is, a group of individuals associated in fact which utilized the official positions of defendant GEORGE HERBERT WALKER BUSH in the Government of the United States of America to facilitate the transfer, importation, and distribution of large quantities of illegal narcotics within the United States.
- 2. The members of the Enterprise consisted of the defendants herein and others, including international drug traffickers who utilized the Enterprise and the official positions of GEORGE HERBERT WALKER BUSH, DONALD P. GREGG, and OLIVER L. NORTH to facilitate their narcotics and money-laundering operations.

ROLES IN THE ENTERPRISE

3. From January 1981 to January 1989, GEORGE HERBERT WALKER BUSH ("BUSH") was vice president of the United States, and from January 1989 to January 1993, BUSH was President of the United States.

- a. BUSH's Official Positions. Beginning in 1981 and up until 1989, while he was vice president of the United States, defendant BUSH assumed extraordinary powers over U.S. intelligence and covert operations, including, but not limited to, the following official positions, which he exploited to achieve the objectives described in paragraph 16.
- (i) During the first months of the new Reagan-Bush administration, defendant BUSH waged a struggle to seize control of the "crisis management" powers of the United States Government. This was reflected in a March 22, 1981, *Washington Post* story, headlined "Bush to Head Crisis Management".
- (ii) On Dec. 14, 1981, President Ronald Reagan was induced to sign National Security Decision Directive Number 3 (NSDD-3) on "Crisis Management", which designated the vice president chairman of the Special Situation Group (SSG), responsible for crisis management. At all times relevant to this Indictment, BUSH directed the SSG.
- (iii) On January 12, 1982, President Ronald Reagan was induced to sign NSDD-2, which reaffirmed the existence of various interagency groups to deal with intelligence and covert operations. Under the interpretation of this document promoted by BUSH, BUSH's SSG superseded and pre-empted the powers of the National Security Council in areas of "crisis management", which encompassed covert operations and counter-terrorism.
- (iv) On Jan. 28, 1982, BUSH was put in charge of the South Florida Task Force on drugs.
- (v) On May 14, 1982, a standing Crisis Pre-Planning Group (CPPG) was established under the SSG. The SSG-CPPG, under BUSH, was given responsibility for any area in which a "potential crisis" could emerge, and was charged with developing "preemptive policy options" for dealing with such a potential crisis.
- (vi) On April 10, 1982, NSDD-30, on "Managing Terrorist Incidents" was issued, giving the vice president control over the convening of the SSG, and creating the "Terrorist Incident Working Group" (TIWG) to support the SSG. At all times relevant to this Indictment, BUSH directed and controlled TIWG.
- (vii) On March 23, 1983, BUSH took charge of the National Narcotics Border Interdiction System (NNBIS).
- (viii) In July 1985, the Vice President's Terrorism Task Force was created, headed by BUSH.
- (ix) In February 1986, the Vice President's Terrorism Task Force, under the direction of BUSH, issued its Report, creating the Operations Sub-Group (OSG), officially a sub-group of Bush's TIWG, and also creating a permanent counter-terrorism office located in the National Security Council staff, which office was headed by defendant OLIVER NORTH, but ultimately controlled and directed by BUSH.

- (x) In August 1986, BUSH became the chief of "Operation Alliance", an anti-narcotics effort to be conducted in cooperation with Mexico.
- b. BUSH's Association with the Contras, the Colombian Drug Cartel, and Other Narcotics Traffickers: Defendant BUSH utilized his official positions to provide protection for international criminal narcotics traffickers, to prevent interdiction of narcotics shipments by law enforcement agencies of the United States, to facilitate the transportation, importation, and distribution of illegal narcotics. Furthermore, BUSH utilized his official positions to prevent discovery of the relationship between the Contras and narcotics trafficking, and to obstruct law enforcement and Congressional investigations into the Contras and narcotics trafficking.
- 4. From 1951 to 1982, DONALD P. GREGG was an employee of the Central Intelligence Agency (CIA). In 1979, GREGG was detailed by the CIA to the National Security Council staff. During 1981 and 1982, GREGG headed the NSC's Intelligence Directorate. In August 1982, GREGG resigned from the CIA and assumed the position of national security advisor to Vice President GEORGE BUSH. GREGG remained in that position until January 1989. GREGG introduced FELIX RODRIGUEZ to BUSH and to OLIVER NORTH. GREGG directly supervised the activities of RODRIGUEZ.
- 5. FELIX RODRIGUEZ is a former employee of the Central Intelligence Agency, who was recruited by GREGG in or around December 1984 to assist BUSH and GREGG in supplying weapons and other materiel to the Contra rebels in Nicaragua. RODRIGUEZ set up his base of operations at Ilopango Air Base in El Salvador. Acting on behalf of BUSH and GREGG, RODRIGUEZ recruited narcotics traffickers to assist him in shipping supplies to the Contras, and in financing the Contras and the Contra-supply operations. In connection with these activities, RODRIGUEZ often used the alias "Max Gomez".
- 6. OLIVER NORTH was a Lieutenant Colonel in the United States Marine Corps detailed to the National Security Council staff in 1981, where he remained until November 25, 1986. NORTH held the official position of Deputy Director, Political-Military Affairs. From approximately October of 1984 through October or November of 1986, NORTH was designated by BUSH to conduct certain activities with respect to the Contras, counter-terrorism, and Iran. NORTH acted as a liaison to the Contras and drug traffickers on behalf of BUSH. In connection with these activities, NORTH from time to time used aliases, including "William Goode" and "Mr. Green".
- 7. RICHARD V. SECORD was a consultant to the Department of Defense and the National Security Council from 1983 to 1986. When he retired from the United States Air Force in 1983, SECORD held the rank of Major General. In 1983, SECORD became president ot Stanford Technology Trading Group International, with offices in Vienna, Virginia. Beginning in the fall of 1984, SECORD undertook to provide supplies, including lethal military supplies, to the Contras. His airlift operation was used to ship and import drugs into the United States, and many of the pilots he hired were drug smugglers. In connection with these and related activities, SECORD from time to time used the aliases "Richard Copp" and "Major General Richard Adams".
- 8. ROBERT OWEN was working in the office of Senator Dan Quayle when he met defendant JOHN HULL. OWEN took Hull to meet NORTH and others at the National Secunty Council and the Department of Defense. In 1984, OWEN met defendant ADOLPHO CALERO and became an employee of

the Contras, while reporting regularly to NORTH. OWEN served as NORTH's "eyes and ears" at the HULL Ranch in Costa Rica and elsewhere among the Contras where shipments of weapons and illegal narcotics were being conducted, and he assisted in coordinating such shipments. In November 1985, OWEN went onto the payroll of the Nicaraguan Humanitarian Assistance Office (NHAO). In connection with those activities, OWEN from time to time had the aliases "TC" and "The Courier".

- 9. JOHN HULL owned a large ranch in Costa Rica which was used as a principal transshipment point for narcotics and weapons for the Contras. Many of the pilots who transported narcotics as part of the Enterprise were instructed to fly to the HULL Ranch.
- 10. The Contras were military insurgents engaged in military and paramilitary operations in and around Nicaragua, intending to overthrow the Sandinista regime in Managua.
- 11. Enrique Bermudez was a former Colonel in the Nicaraguan National Guard under the Somoza regime, had been Somoza's military attache in Washington, D.C. and formed the Nicaraguan Democratic Front (FDN), the major Contra organization, in August 1980. Bermudez utilized narcotics trafficking as a major means of financing the Contras. Bermudez was assassinated in 1991 in Nicaragua.
- 12. ADOLPHO CALERO was a leader of the FDN. Calero utilized narcotics trafficking as a major means of financing the Contras.
- 13. JUAN NORWIN MENESES CANTARERO ("MENESES") was the head of intelligence and security for the FDN in the state of California. MENESES was known to U.S. law enforcement officials as a major drug trafficker. In order to help finance the Contras, Meneses helped to establish and operate a major narcotics smuggling and distribution operation in the United States and in particular in and around the city of Los Angeles, California. Meneses was arrested in Nicaragua in 1991 on narcotics charges.
- 14. OSCAR DANILO BLANDON REYES ("BLANDON") was an associate of MENESES, and with MENESES, he participated in establishing and operating a major narcotics smuggling and distribution operation in the United States, and in particular in and around the city of Los Angeles, California, which specialized in the distribution and sale of crack cocaine. Blandon was not prosecuted until 1991, and was given a greatly-reduced sentence and has already been released from prison.
- 15. WILLIAM F. WELD was the Assistant Attorney General for the Criminal Division in the United States Department of Justice from August 1986 through the Spring of 1988, although he began to exercise the functions of that position in June of 1986 as soon as he was nominated for that post. Weld exploited this position to prevent the investigation and prosecution of members and associates of the Enterprise, including drug traffickers associated with the Contras, as well as obstructing and impeding Congressional investigations of the relationship between drug-trafficking and the Contras.

PURPOSE AND OBJECTS OF THE ENTERPRISE

16. By utilizing their official positions, BUSH, GREGG, and NORTH were able to facilitate the financing of the Contra insurgents in Central America, and to facilitate the provision of weapons and supplies for the

Contras, by protecting shipments of cocaine and marijuana imported into the United States.

a. Financing the Contras.

- (i) In late 1982, Public Law 97-377, the first of a series of "Boland Amendments", was enacted, which expressly prohibited the Central Intelligence Agency from spending any money "for the purpose of overthrowing the government of Nicaragua".
- (ii) On October 12, 1984, Public Law 98-473 was enacted, which expressly prohibited the use of funds available to certain agencies and entities of the United States from being obligated or expended in support of military or paramilitary operations in Nicaragua, stating in relevant part:

During fiscal year 1985, no funds available to the Central Intelligence Agency, the Department of Defense or any other agency or entity of the United States involved in intelligence activities may be obligated or expended for the purpose of supporting, directly or indirectly, military or paramilitary operations in Nicaragua by any nation, group, organization, movement, or individual.

This provision of law was commonly known as "Boland II". This provision of law was modified twice and remained in effect at least through fiscal year 1987.

(iii) To compensate for this cut-off of official funding, BUSH, GREGG, RODRIGUEZ, NORTH, and others increased their dealings with narcotics traffickers and made arrangements with the Colombian drug cartels so that narcotics and the proceeds of narcotics trafficking could be used to finance the Contras.

b. Supplying and Arming the Contras.

- (i) After the first Boland Amendment, BUSH, GREGG, NORTH, and others known and unknown to the grand jury, began to make alternate arrangements to provide weapons and supplies for the Contras. After the second Boland Amendment, both the Central Intelligence Agency and the Department of Defense withdrew a large number of personnel from Central America—leaving a vacuum which the Enterprise was to fill.
- (ii) BUSH, GREGG, and others known and unknown to the Grand Jury designated both RODRIGUEZ and NORTH to make new arrangements to make weapons and supplies available to the Contras.
- (iii) RODRIGUEZ was sent by BUSH and GREGG to Central America in January 1985 to set up his base of operations at Ilopango Air Base in El Salvador.
- (iv) NORTH asked OWEN to meet with CALERO to determine the needs of the Contras, and NORTH and OWEN agreed to use the HULL Ranch in Costa Rica as a base of operations for shipments to the Contras.
- (v) NORTH asked SECORD to establish an air-lift operation to supply the Contras, and also to use his companies to purchase arms in Eastern Europe and elsewhere for the Contras.

(vi) NORTH, SECORD, and RODRIGUEZ recruited pilots who were at the same time drug smugglers, to fly weapons and supplies to the Contras, permitting them to bring narcotics back from Central America into the United States on their return flights, and furthermore, often permitting them to sell the narcotics and keep the proceeds. This activity dramatically increased after October 1984 when "Boland II" went into effect.

c. Protection of Narcotics Shipments.

As an inducement to the pilots and others to transport weapons and supplies to the Contras in Central America, defendants BUSH, GREGG, and NORTH used their official positions to prevent U.S. law enforcement agencies from interfering in the transport and importation of drugs into the United States.

d. Protection of Narcotics Traffickers.

As a further inducement to the pilots and others to transport weapons and supplies to the Contras in Central America, defendants BUSH, GREGG, and NORTH used their official positions to prevent U.S. law enforcement agencies from arresting or prosecuting drug traffickers who were participating in the Contra supply program.

e. Obstruction of Justice.

- (i) To protect the Enterprise and its illegal activities from discovery, the defendants BUSH, GREGG, NORTH, WELD, and others known and unknown to the Grand Jury, attempted to impede and prevent U.S. law enforcement agencies from investigating and prosecuting members of the Enterprise and others involved in Contra drug-trafficking and other criminal activities.
- (ii) To protect the Enterprise and its illegal activities from discovery, the defendants BUSH, GREGG, NORTH, WELD, and others known and unknown to the Grand Jury, attempted to impede and prevent committees of the United States Congress from investigating the relationship between the Contra supply operation and narcotics trafficking.

THE RACKETEERING CONSPIRACY

17. From in or about the fall of 1984, the defendants

GEORGE BUSH
DONALD GREGG
FELIX RODRIGUEZ
OLIVER NORTH
RICHARD SECORD
ROBERT OWEN
JOHN HULL
ADLOPHO CALERO
JUAN NORWIN MENESES CANTARERO
OSCAR DANILO BLANDON REYES

WILLIAM F. WELD

and others known and unknown to the Grand Jury, including Enrique Bermudez, Barry Seal, George Morales, Michael Palmer, Gary Betzner, Michael Tolliver, Marcos Aguado, Oliver "Buck" Revell, named as co-conspirators but not co-defendants in this Count, being members of, employed by, or associated with the Enterprise as more fully described in paragraphs 1-24 of this Count, which Enterprise was engaged in activities which affected interstate and foreign commerce in the United States, did unlawfully, willfully, and knowingly combine, conspire, confederate and agree with each other to conduct and participate, directly and indirectly in the conduct of the affairs of the Enterprise through a pattern of racketeering activity as defined in Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1961(1) and 1961(5), as described in paragraphs 18-24 of this Count, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1962(c).

THE PATTERN OF RACKETEERING ACTIVITY

- 18. The pattern of racketeering activity, as defined in Title 18, United State Code, Sections 1961(1) and 1961(5), through which the defendants conducted and participated in the affairs of the Enterprise, consisted of:
- a) the importation of a controlled substance, to wit, cocaine, a Schedule II narcotic controlled substance, into the United States from a place outside thereof, in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 952, and conspiracy to do so, in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 963;
- b) the importation of a controlled substance, to wit, marijuana, a Schedule II narcotic controlled substance, into the United States from a place outside thereof, in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 952, and conspiracy to do so, in violation of Title 21, United States Code. Section 963;
- c) the possession and distribution of cocaine with the knowledge that it would be imported into the United States from a place outside thereof, in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 959, and conspiracy to do so, in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 963;
- d) the possession and distribution of marijuana with the knowledge that it would be imported into the United States from a place outside thereof, in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 959, and conspiracy to do so, in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 963.

ACTS OF RACKETEERING

19. Beginning in or about the summer of 1981, defendants

ADOLPHO CALERO JUAN NORWIN MENESES CANTARERO OSCAR DANILO BLANDON REYES

and Enrique Bermudez, Marcos Aguado, and others known and unknown to the Grand Jury, did knowingly and intentionally distribute and aid in the distribution of large quantities of cocaine, a Schedule II

narcotic controlled substance, from Colombia to Costa Rica to the United States, in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 959 and Title 18, United States Code, Section 2.

20. From July 1984 through 1985, the defendants

GEORGE BUSH DONALD GREGG FELIX RODRIGUEZ OLIVER NORTH JOHN HULL

and Barry Seal, and others known and unknown to the Grand Jury, did knowingly and intentionally distribute and aid in the distribution of large quantities of cocaine, a Schedule II narcotic controlled substance, from Colombia to Costa Rica to the United States. In violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 959 and Title 18, United States Code, Section 2.

21. From in or around July of 1984 through June of 1986,

GEORGE BUSH DONALD GREGG FELIX RODRIGUEZ OLIVER NORTH JOHN HULL

and George Morales, and others known and unknown to the Grand Jury, did knowingly and intentionally distribute and aid in the distribution of 800 kilograms of cocaine, a Schedule II narcotic controlled substance, from Colombia to El Salvador to the United States, in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 959 and Title 18, United States Code, Section 2.

22. From in or around July of 1984 through October of 1986, the defendants

GEORGE BUSH DONALD GREGG FELIX RODRIGUEZ OLIVER NORTH JOHN HULL

and George Morales, and others known and unknown to the Grand Jury, did knowingly and intentionally distribute and aid in the distribution of 9000 pounds of marijuana, a Schedule II narcotic controlled substance, from Costa Rica to the United States, in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 959 and Title 18, United States Code, Section 2.

23. On or about January 8, 1986, the defendants

GEORGE BUSH

DONALD GREGG FELIX RODRIGUEZ OLIVER NORTH JOHN HULL

and George Morales, and others known and unknown to the Grand Jury, did knowingly and intentionally distribute and aid in the distribution of 413 kilograms of cocaine, a Schedule II narcotic controlled substance, from Colombia to El Salvador to the United States, in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 959 and Title 18, United States Code, Section 2.

24. In or around July of 1984. the defendants

GEORGE BUSH DONALD GREGG FELIX RODRIGUEZ OLIVER NORTH JOHN HULL

and Gary Betzner and George Morales, and others known and unknown to the Grand Jury, did knowingly and intentionally distribute and aid in the distribution of 1000 kilograms of cocaine, a Schedule II narcotic controlled substance, from Colombia to Costa Rica to the United States, in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 959 and Title 18, United States Code, Section 2.

OVERT ACTS

- 25. In furtherance of the aforesaid conspiracy and to effect the objects thereof, in the District of Columbia and elsewhere, one or more of the defendants committed one or more of the following overt acts, among others:
- (1) In the summer of 1981, MENESES and BLANDON travelled to Honduras to meet with Enrique Bermudez, and Bermudez instructed MENESES and BLANDON to establish a funding mechanism for the Contras on the West Coast of the United States.
- (2) During 1981, MENESES and BLANDON imported and sold over 2000 pounds of cocaine in California.
- (3) During 1983, BLANDON, MENESES, and others began to sell and distribute crack cocaine in Los Angeles, derived from cocaine imported from Colombia via El Salvador and Costa Rica; much of this cocaine was flown into the United States by Marcos Aguado, operating from Ilopango Air Base in El Salvador.
- (4) On or about March 6, 1984, George Morales was indicted for drug smuggling. A few weeks after that, Morales met with certain Contra leaders in south Florida, to wit, Popo Chomorro, Octaviano Cesar, and Marcos Aguado, who told Morales that they would help him with his legal problems if he helped them with weapons and explosives and other items. The Contra leaders agreed to supply Morales with drugs, which he would sell and then purchase supplies for the Contras.

- (5) In March 1984, Barry Seal, who had been rejected as an informant by local agencies, travelled to Washington to the offices of the Vice President's Task Force on Drugs headed by BUSH. BUSH's Task Force directed the DEA to retain Seal as an informant and to allow him to keep his property and assets, and to allow him to continue to smuggle drugs from Central America into Louisiana and Arkansas, among other places.
- (6) During the summer of 1984, Barry Seal met a number of representatives of the Colombian drug cartel in Miami, and travelled with them to Mena, Arkansas, to show them the facilities used by Seal for smuggling narcotics and maintaining and disguising his aircraft.
- (7) On May 12, 1984, NORTH wrote in his notebook: "...contract indicates Gustavo is involved w/ drugs."
 - (8) In June 1984, MENESES attended a fund-raising meeting with CALERO in San Francisco.
- (9) In the summer of 1984, NORTH asked SECORD to assist CALERO in purchasing arms for the Contras.
- (10) In the summer of 1984, NORTH spoke with OWEN and asked OWEN to meet regularly with CALERO to discuss the Contra's needs, to deliver intelligence to the Contras, and to supply them with money.
 - (11) on June 26, 1984, NORTH wrote in his notebook:
- "Call from Owen—John Hull—protection . . .
- "John now has 'private army of 75-100'— Cubans involved in drug—up to 100 more Cubans expected."
- (12) In or around July of 1984, Morales purchased weapons in Florida and loaded them on an airplane in Florida. The plane returned within a few days with a load of narcotics, which Morales sold and gave the money to the Contras.
- (13) In or around July of 1984, for the second time, Morales purchased weapons in Florida and loaded them on an airplane in Florida. The plane returned within a few days with a load of narcotics, which Morales sold and gave the money to the Contras.
- (14) During or around June or July of 1984, Morales placed a telephone call to Gary Betzner and asked him to come to Florida; Morales and Betzner then met in Florida to discuss flying weapons to the Contras and flying drugs back.
- (15) In or around July 1984, Betzner flew a planeload of weapons, including an M-60 machine gun, M-16 rifles, and C-4 plastic explosives from Fort Lauderdale, Florida, to the HULL Ranch in Costa Rica. At the HULL Ranch, the weapons and explosives were unloaded, and then 17 duffle bags of cocaine and 5 or 6 boxes of cocaine were loaded on the plane in the presence of HULL, which Betzner brought back to Lakeland, Florida.

- (16) About ten days later, Betzner flew a planeload of small arms from Morales's hanger at Opa-Locka Airport in Florida to Los Llanos, adjacent to the HULL Ranch, in Costa Rica. The arms were off-loaded in the presence of HULL and then 15 to 17 dufflebags of cocaine, about 500 kilograms, were loaded on the plane for Betzner to take back to Florida.
 - (17) on July 20, 1984, NORTH wrote in his notebook:

"Call from Clarridge:—Alfredo Cesar Re Drugs-Borge/Owen leave Hull alone [deletions] Los Brasiles Air Field—Owen off Hull."

- (18) In or around July 1984, through January 1986, at the suggestion of Marcos Aguado, Morales trained pilots at Opa-Locka Airport in Florida to fly weapons to the Contras in Central America and to transport drugs back into the United States.
- (19) Between July 1984 and January 1986, on at least eight occasions, Morales directed pilots to fly to the HULL Ranch in Costa Rica to deliver weapons to the Contras, and to bring drugs back into the United States.
 - (20) On July 23, 1984, NORTH wrote in his notebook:

"Call from Rob Owen—call from John Hull."

- (21) From late 1984 up through late 1986, John HULL received a payment of \$10,000 per month from Adolpho CALERO, at the direction of Oliver NORTH.
- (22) In or around November 1984, Morales purchased more weapons in south Miami and loaded them on an airplane at Fort Lauderdale, Florida. The plane returned within a few days with a load of narcotics, which Morales sold and gave the money to the Contras.
- (23) On or about October 1, 1984, Morales transferred a McDonnell-Douglas DC-3 aircraft, also known as a C-47, to Marcos Aguado for the Contras.
- (24) In late 1984, Morales met with Chammoro and other Contra leaders who discussed the activities of defendant OWEN.
- (25) On or about December 20, 1984, Morales met at a hotel in Costa Rica with Contra leaders Popo Chammoro, Octaviano Cesar, Commandante Tito, and Carlo Prado, to discuss the shipment of illegal narcotics into the United States.
- (26) In mid-December, 1984, OWEN, HULL, CALERO, Enrique Bermudez, Frank Chanes of Frigorificos de Puntarenas, Jack Terrell, and others met in Miami at the home of CALERO.
- (27) On or about December 21, 1984, RODRIGUEZ met with GREGG and NORTH and discussed how to provide supplies for the Contras.
 - (28) Shortly after the December 21 meeting, GREGG reported to BUSH that RODRIGUEZ

wanted to go to El Salvador, and that GREGG was going to introduce RODRIGUEZ to other U.S. Government officials involved with Central America. BUSH said "Fine."

(29) On January 14, 1985, NORTH wrote in his notebook:

"Rob Owen—John Hull—no drug connection—Believes."

- (30) During January 1985 RODRIGUEZ met with OWEN at the Key Bridge Marriot Hotel in Roslyn, Virginia. Following this meeting, OWEN wrote a two-page letter to NORTH, discussing his meeting with RODRIGUEZ and RODRIGUEZ's projects.
- (31) On January 22, 1985, BUSH, GREGG, and RODRIGUEZ met at BUSH's office in the Old Executive Office Building.
- (32) Two days later, on January 24, 1985, RODRIGUEZ met with General Adolfo Blandon, the Salvadoran military chief of staff, and on January 30, 1985, RODRIGUEZ met with General Bustillo, commander of the Salvadoran Air Force. Bustillo agreed that RODRIGUEZ could stay at Ilopango Military Air Base outside of San Salvador.
- (33) On February 15, 1985, RODRIGUEZ met with Ambassador Pickering and Col. James Steele, the commander of the U.S. Military Group in El Salvador.
- (34) On February 19, 1985, RODRIGUEZ met with GREGG to report on the process of his activities at Ilopango, and then RODRIGUEZ also met with NORTH.
- (35) In late February or early March of 1985, OWEN travelled to Costa Rica at the request of NORTH to meet with Contra groups.
- (36) In March 1985, HULL states that he has a friend at the National Security Council who puts \$10,000 a month in a Miami bank account for him.
 - (37) In mid-March, 1985, RODRIGUEZ relocated to Ilopango Air Base.
- (38) On or about April 20, 1985, RODRIGUEZ wrote to GREGG, stating: "Don, I thank you and the vice president [BUSH] for supporting me. Without your help I could not have made it here."
- (39) On April 29, 1985, GREGG wrote to Col. Steele thanking Steele for his assistance to RODRIGUEZ.
- (40) On June 5, 1985, GREGG, RODRIGUEZ, and Steele met at the Key Bridge Marriot Hotel in Rosslyn, Virginia.
- (41) On or about June 3, 1985, OWEN travelled to California with CALERO to meet with MENESES.
 - (42) On or about June 7, 1985, CALERO and OWEN met to conclude purchase of weapons for

the Contras, after a telephone call from NORTH.

- (43) In the summer of 1985, NORTH and other members of the "Restricted Interagency Group on Central America" (RIG—a body established under NSDD-2) met and decided to open up a "Southern Front" for the Contras in Costa Rica.
- (44) On June 28, 1985, NORTH, SECORD, former CIA officers Thomas Clines and Raphael Quintero, CALERO, and Enrique Bermudez met in Miami. NORTH told CALERO and Bermudez that they must work with him and SECORD to build a viable Southern Front.
- (45) On July 12, 1985, NORTH wrote in his notebook: "\$14 million to finance came from drugs."
- (46) On August 9, 1985, NORTH wrote in his notebook: "DC-6 which is being used for run out of New Orleans is probably being used for drug runs into the U.S."
- (47) On August 10, 1985, NORTH wrote in his notebook: "Southern Front . . . John Hull to arrange for [deleted] training...." and also: "Mtg w/A.C.—name of DEA person in New Orleans re bust on Mario/DC-6."
- (48) In August 1985 Congress appropriated \$27 million in "humanitarian" assistance for the Contras, and President Reagan established the Nicaraguan Humanitarian Assistance Office (NHAO). In September 1985, NORTH urged Ambassador Robert Duemling, the director of NHAO, to hire North's courier OWEN for the NHAO. Duemling at first refused, but NORTH and the RIG pressured Duemling to hire OWEN.
- (49) On September 10, 1985, NORTH wrote in his notebook: "1630 Mtg w/Jim Steele/Don Gregg
 Talked to Blandon [...]
 Says Bermudez was prepared
 to devote a special ops unit
 astride FMLN log lines.
 Introduced by Wally Gresheimbackslash Litton
 Calero/Bermudez visit to
 Ilopango to estab.
 log support./maint. [...]"
- (50) On Sept. 20, 1985, NORTH wrote a letter to RODRIGUEZ, requesting RODRIGUEZ to become the liaison between the government of El Salvador and the NORTH-SECORD Contra resupply operation. At the top of the letter NORTH wrote in capital letters: "AFTER READING THIS LETTER

PLEASE DESTROY IT."

(51) on October 1, 1985, NORTH wrote in his notebook: "Don Gregg: Maximo Gomez 27-31-59." which was RODRIGUEZ's telephone number in El Salvador.

(52) Also on October 1, 1985, Ambassador Duemling, the director of the NHAO, wrote the following notes:

"(North) can use—Mr. Green said to call—Maximo Gomez 273159 in San Salvador

Will airlift the stutf from Salvador."

- (53) On October 17, 1985, RODRIGUEZ and NORTH met in Washington, D.C.
- (54) In December 1985 NORTH and Alan Fiers, the chief of the CIA's Central America Task Force, travelled to Honduras and El Salvador to convince local officials to permit NHAO shipments to be transshipped from the United States to Ilopango Air Base in El Salvador, and on to Honduras.
- (55) Beginning on or about January 9, 1986, and continuing through August 1986, the Nicaraguan Humanitarian Assistance Office (NHAO) made the following payments to companies owned and operated by narcotics traffickers:
 - (a) SETCO, for air transport service—\$185,924.25.
 - (b) DIACSA, for airplane engine parts—\$41,120.90.
- (c) Frigorificos de Puntarenas, as a broker/supplier for various services to Contras on the Southern Front—\$261,932.00.
 - (d) VORTEX, for air transport service—\$317,425.17.
- (56) VORTEX was owned by Michael Palmer, a drug-trafficker who became an informant for the Drug Enforcement Administration, while at the same time making his aircraft available to the NHAO for "humanitarian" shipments to the Contras. Subsequently, an indictment against him for marijuana smuggling was dropped as "not being in the interests of the United States".
- (57) In January, 1986, RODRIGUEZ met with Richard Gadd, an associate of SECORD in SECORD's airlift operation.
- (58) On or about January 14, 1986, BUSH travelled to El Salvador. During a reception at the U.S. Embassy, DEA Agent Celerino Castillo III identified himself to BUSH as a DEA agent conducting international narcotics investigations, and told BUSH that there was something funny going on at Ilopango. BUSH refused to listen to Castillo, and walked away.
- (59) On or about January 19, 1986, at the direction of BUSH and GREGG, BUSH's deputy national security advisor Samuel Watson travelled to Ilopango and met with RODRIGUEZ to be briefed on the operations taking place there.
 - (60) On February 4, 1986, Watson wrote a memorandum to BUSH, which was channelled though

- GREGG, reporting on his findings in El Salvador and Honduras. GREGG wrote on the top of Watson's memorandum: "Good report from Sam."
- (61) GREGG underlined a portion of the February 4 Watson memorandum to BUSH which discussed the lack of logistical support for the Contras, and wrote in the margin: "Felix agrees with this—It is a major shortcoming."
- (62) On February 27, 1986, NORTH wrote in his notebook: "Mtg w/Lew Tambs—DEA auction A/C seized as drug runners.—\$250-260K fee."
- (63) On April 16, 1986, RODRIGUEZ called the Office of Vice President BUSH to request a meeting with BUSH. A secretary in BUSH's office wrote: "Felix Rodriguez [t]o brief the vice president on the status of the war in El Salvador and resupply of the Contras."
- (64) On April 20, 1986, NORTH, SECORD and RODRIGUEZ and Contra military commander Enrique Bermudez met at Ilopango Air Base in El Salvador.
- (65) On the evening of April 30, RODRIGUEZ and BUSH's deputy national security advisor Sam Watson met for drinks at a Washington restaurant.
- (66) On May 1, 1986, defendant RODRIGUEZ met with BUSH, GREGG, and Watson in BUSH's office in Washington. During the meeting, NORTH joined the meeting along with Ambassador Edward Corr.
- (67) On May 6, 1986, Watson sent a memorandum to BUSH concerning the Contras, and GREGG wrote a note with it, which stated:
- "A sober analysis of the Sandinistas' hold on power. The means suggested to counter this hold will not be enough. The central point is that Contra actions + internal political opposition need to be coordinated. Felix says we are doing nothing to direct the Contra planning."
- (68) Following the meeting with BUSH, RODRIGUEZ returned to El Salvador and during May 1986 met with Robert Dutton, who had replaced Richard Gadd as the principal supervisor of SECORD's resupply operation. RODRIGUEZ told Dutton that he, RODRIGUEZ, had a very close relationship with BUSH and a number of BUSH's people.
- (69) On or about May 9, 1986, following a meeting with FBI official Oliver "Buck" Revell, NORTH met with FBI agents and asks them to investigate various persons who are raising allegations about drugs and the Contras, including Jack Terrell and Senator John Kerry.
- (70) On June 3, 1986, NORTH met with FBI agents and demanded to know why no action had been taken against Senator Kerry because of his allegations against NORTH.
 - (71) On July 17, 1986, NORTH drafted a memorandum describing Jack Terrell as a "terrorist

threat", and stating that FBI official Oliver Revell and the Operations Sub-Group/Terrorist Incident Working Group (OSG/TIWG) were meeting to discuss how to deal with Terrell, who was being used as a source for news media stories on the Contras and drug-running.

- (72) On June 25, 1986, defendant RODRIGUEZ met with NORTH and Robert Dutton in Washington at the Old Executive Office Building. NORTH complained to RODRIGUEZ of security violations. RODRIGUEZ told NORTH: "This could be worse than Watergate. It could destroy the President of the United States."
- (73) Immediately after the meeting with NORTH, RODRIGUEZ went to the office of BUSH and had a discussion with Watson.
- (74) On August 8, 1986, RODRIGUEZ met with GREGG in Washington to discuss the activities at Ilopango and accusations that RODRIGUEZ had stolen an airplane.
- (75) On or about August 8, 1986, HULL wrote a letter to the United States Attorney in Miami, and to Senators Richard Lugar and Warren Rudman, accusing Senator Kerry's staff of engaging in misconduct and bribing witnesses.
- (76) On August 12, 1986, GREGG called a meeting of various U.S. Government officials to discuss the Contra resupply operation. One of the participants, Robert Earl, took notes which include the following:

"Ilopango [classified information withheld from notes] not Ist choice
Felix claims working w/VP blessing for CIA."

- (77) On October 5, 1986, upon learning that the C-123 plane involved in the resupply effort had been shot down over Nicaragua, RODRIGUEZ placed a telephone call to the office of BUSH. Unable to reach BUSH or GREGG, RODRIGUEZ then called GREGG's assistant Sam Watson to warn him about the situation.
- (78) On October 15 and 24, 1986, NORTH made entries in his notebook which indicated that he was closely monitoring the investigation being conducted by the Senate Foreign Relations Committee and Senator Kerry.
- (79) On November 21, 1986, NORTH made additional entries in his notebook concerning information regarding SECORD provided to Senator Kerry by a private investigator.
- (80) Throughout 1987 and 1988, WILLIAM WELD, who had become Assistant Attorney General in charge of the Criminal Division of the Justice Department in the summer of 1986, prevented the Kerry subcommittee of the Senate Foreign Relations committee from obtaining access to records and witnesses. All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1962(d).

CONSPIRACY TO IMPORT NARCOTICS

26. From in or about October 1984 up through at least 1990, the defendants

GEORGE HERBERT WALKER BUSH
DONALD P. GREGG
FELIX RODRIGUEZ
OLIVER L. NORTH
RICHARD V. SECORD
ROBERT W. OWEN
JOHN HULL
ADOLPHO CALERO
JUAN NORWIN MENESES CANTARERO
OSCAR DANILO BLANDON REYES

knowingly and intentionally did combine, conspire, confederate and agree with each other and with persons known and unknown to the Grand Jury. to commit offenses against the United States, to wit:

- (a) to import marijuana into the United States from a place outside thereof, in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 952, and conspiracy to do so, in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 963;
- (b) to possess and distribute marijuana with the knowledge that it would be imported into the United States from a place outside thereof in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 959;
- (c) to import cocaine into United States from a place outside thereof, in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 952;
- (d) to possess and distribute cocaine with the knowledge that it would be imported into the United States from a place outside thereof, in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 959;

All in violation of Title 21, United States Code. Section 963.

<u>COUNT III—</u> CONTINUING CRIMINAL ENTERPRISE

- 27. Each and every allegation contained in paragraphs 1-24 of this Indictment is incorporated in Count III by reference as if fully set forth herein.
- 28. From in or around January 1981 continuing up to the present time, in the District of Columbia and elsewhere, the defendants

GEORGE HERBERT WALKER BUSH DONALD P. GREGG FELIX RODRIGUEZ OLIVER L. NORTH

RICHARD V. SECORD ROBERT W. OWEN JOHN HULL ADOLPHO CALERO JUAN NORWIN MENESES CANTARERO OSCAR DANILO BLANDON REYES

did engage on a Continuing Criminal Enterprise, in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 848.

29. From in or about January 1981 and continuing up to the present time, in the District of Columbia and elsewhere, the defendant

GEORGE HERBERT WALKER BUSH

did administer, organize and lead a Continuing Criminal Enterprise, in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 848.

<u>COUNT IV—</u> CONSPIRACY TO OBSTRUCT JUSTICE

30. From in or about October 1984 up through at least 1990, the defendants

GEORGE HERBERT WALKER BUSH
DONALD P. GREGG
FELIX RODRIGUEZ
OLIVER L. NORTH
RICHARD V. SECORD
ROBERT W. OWEN
JOHN HULL
WILLIAM F. WELD

and others known and unknown to the Grand Jury knowingly and willfully did combine, conspire, confederate and agree to corruptly influence, obstruct and impede the due administration of justice, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1503.

OBJECT OF THE CONSPIRACY

31. The object of the conspiracy was to impede and prevent U.S. law enforcement agencies from investigating and prosecuting members of the Enterprise, as described in paragraphs 1-16 of this Indictment, and others who were involved in drug-trafficking and other criminal activities.

MANNER AND MEANS

32. It was part of the manner and means of this conspiracy to obstruct justice that the defendants BUSH, GREGG, NORTH, and WELD used their official positions to prevent the Drug Enforcement Administration, the Federal Bureau of Investigation, the United States Attorney's Office for the Southern District of

Florida, and other law enforcement agencies, from investigating the activities of the Enterprise and the relationship between the Contras and drug trafficking.

- 33. It was a further part of the manner and means of this conspiracy that the defendants repeatedly invoked a false claim of "national security" to prevent law enforcement agencies from investigating and prosecuting members of the Enterprise and others involved in illegal activities including narcotics trafficking.
- 34. It was a further part of the manner and means of this conspiracy that the defendants attempted to prevent public exposure and investigation of their activities by attempting to harass, intimidates and silence critics of their policies.
- 35. It was a further part of the manner and means of this conspiracy that, when a person associated with the Enterprise came under investigation or was arrested, the defendants corruptly sought to have that suspect or defendant designated as an informant, or cooperating witness, so that he could continue his illegal activities including drug trafficking.
- 36. It was a further part of the manner and means of this conspiracy that the defendants made false statements to law enforcement officials investigating the activities of the Enterprise and drug trafficking.
- 37. It was a further part of the manner and means of this conspiracy that the defendant NORTH and others destroyed incriminating documents by shredding and other methods.

OVERT ACTS

- 38. In furtherance of the conspiracy and to effect the object of the conspiracy, the following acts, among others, were committed:
- (1) On or about March 5, 1986, after learning that Jack Terrell, a former associate of the Enterprise, was giving information about the activities of the Enterprise to law enforcement agencies and the news media, SECORD assigned a "security officer" to investigate Terrell.
- (2) On or after March 24, 1986, NORTH improperly obtained an investigative report written by FBI special agent George Kiszynski concerning a Miami investigation of the Contras and drug trafficking.
- (3) On or about April 7, 1986, OWEN wrote a letter to NORTH containing secret and privileged information concerning the investigation of the Contras and drug-trafficking, being conducted by the United States Attorney in the Southern District of Florida.
- (4) On or about May 5, 1986, following a story on National Public Radio about the Contras and drug-trafficking, NORTH together with FBI official Oliver Revell and others decided to use the Operations Sub-Group of the Terrorist Incident Working Group (OSG/TIWG) to harass and intimate and root out critics of their activities.
- (5) On May 5, 1986, SECORD sent a coded message to NORTH saying: "Our man here says Lewis is collecting info against LaRouche."

SECORD later stated that "our man here" was John Cupp, an employee of SECORD's air-lift operation who frequently travelled to Ilopango and met with RODRIGUEZ and others.

- (6) On June 1, 1986, defendants induced a spokesman for the United States Department of Justice to falsely state that the FBI and DEA have "run down each and every one" of the allegations regarding gunrunning, murder plots, drug trafficking, and corruption connected to the Contras, and have found "no credible or substantive evidence warranting prosecution of Contra leaders". The spokesman further described the allegations as those of "disgruntled people with an ax to grind".
- (7) On June 25, 1986, defendant RODRIGUEZ met with NORTH and Robert Dutton in Washington at the Old Executive Office Building. NORTH complained to RODRIGUEZ of security violations. RODRIGUEZ told NORTH: "This could be worse than Watergate. It could destroy the President of the United States."
- (8) On July 17, 1986, NORTH drafted a memorandum describing Jack Terrell as a "terrorist threat," and stating that FBI official Oliver Revell and the Operations Sub-Groupl/Terrorist Incident Working Group (OSG/TIWG) were meeting to discuss how to deal with Terrell who was being used as a source for news media stories on the Contras and drug-running.
- (9) On July 18, 1986, at the direction of NORTH and Revell, the FBI ordered round-the-clock surveillance of Terrell.
- (10) In or around August 1986, HULL submitted a false affidavit to the United States Attorney's Office in the Southern District of Florida.
- (11) On November 21, 1986, NORTH and others shredded large numbers of documents in his offices at the National Security Council.
- (12) Throughout 1987 and 1988, WILLIAM WELD, who had become Assistant Attorney General in charge of the Criminal Division of the Justice Department in the summer of 1986, prevented the Justice Department, the FBI and the DEA from investigating and prosecuting members of the Enterprise and their associates.
- (13) Between 1986 and continuing up through at least 1989, defendants BUSH and others quashed at least six investigations of drug-trafficking and money-laundering in and around Mena, Arkansas.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1503 and 371.

<u>COUNT V—</u> <u>CONSPIRACY TO OBSTRUCT CONGRESS</u>

39. From the early part of 1986 up through the present time, the defendants

GEORGE HERBERT WALKER BUSH DONALD P. GREGG FELIX RODRIGUEZ OLIVER L. NORTH RICHARD V. SECORD ROBERT W. OWEN

JOHN HULL WILLIAM F. WELD

and others known and unknown to the Grand Jury, knowingly and willfully did combine, conspire, confederate and agree to corruptly influence, obstruct and impede the due and proper exercise of the power of inquiry and investigation by committees of the Congress of the United States, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1505.

OBJECT OF THE CONSPIRACY

40. The object of the conspiracy was to impede and prevent Congress from investigating activities of members and associates of the Enterprise, as described in paragraphs 1-16 of this Indictment, and others who were involved in drug-trafficking and other illegal or improper activities.

MANNER AND MEANS

- 41. It was part of the manner and means of this conspiracy to obstruct Congress that the defendants BUSH, GREGG, NORTH, and WELD used their official positions to prevent committees of Congress from investigating the activities of the Enterprise and the relationship between the Contras and drug trafficking.
- 42. It was a further part of the manner and means of this conspiracy that the defendants repeatedly invoked a false claim of "national security", to prevent Congress from investigating the activities of the Enterprise, and of others involved in illegal activities including narcotics trafficking.
- 43. It was a further part of the manner and means of this conspiracy that the defendants attempted to prevent public exposure and investigation of their activities by attempting to harass, intimidate, and silence critics of their policies.
- 44. It was a further part of the manner and means of this conspiracy that the defendants made false statements to Congress and Congressional investigators investigating the activities of the Enterprise and drug trafficking.
- 45. It was a further part of the manner and means of this conspiracy that the defendant NORTH and others destroyed incriminating documents by shredding and other methods.

OVERT ACTS

- 46. In furtherance of the conspiracy and to effect the object of the conspiracy, the following acts, in addition to those recited in paragraph 37 of this Indictment which are incorporated herein, were committed:
- (1) In or around August 1986, HULL made false statements to the United States Attorney's Office in the Southern District of Florida and to members of Congress, accusing members of the staff of Senator Kerry and the Senate Foreign Relations subcommittee chaired by Senator Kerry of misconduct, including the payment of bribes.

- (2) On October 15, 1986, NORTH wrote in his notebook a description of a June 25 closed session of the Senate Foreign Relations committee concerning narcotics trafficking and the Contras.
- (3) on October 24, 1986, NORTH made more entries in his notebook indicated that he was closely monitoring the investigation being conducted by the Senate Foreign Relations Committee and Senator Kerry.
- (4) on November 21, 1986, NORTH made additional entries in his notebook concerning information regarding SECORD provided to Senator Kerry by a private investigator.
- (5) Throughout 1987 and 1988, WILLIAM WELD, who had become Assistant Attorney General in charge of the Criminal Division of the Justice Department in the summer of 1986, prevented the Kerry subcommittee of the Senate Foreign Relations committee from obtaining access to records and witnesses.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1505 and 371. A TRUE BILL

Foreman of the Grand Jury

BIBLIOGRAPHY

American Leviathan: Administrative Fascism under the Bush Regime (Wiesbaden: Dinges & Frick,1990).

Celerino Castillo, III and Dave Harmon, *Powderburns—Cocaine*, *Contras and the Drug War* (Ontario: Mosaic Press, 1994).

David Corn, *Blond Ghost—Ted Shackley and the CIA's Crusades* (New York: Simon and Schuster, 1994).

Defeat Ollie North, That Son-of-a-Bush (Leesburg, Virginia: Defeat that Son-of-a-Bush Committee, August 1994).

Dope, Inc.—The Book That Drove Kissinger Crazy (Washington, D.C.: Executive Intelligence Review, 1992).

Theodore Draper, A Very Thin Line—The Iran-Contra Affairs (New York: Simon and Schuster, 1991).

Drugs, Law Enforcement and Foreign Policy (Washington, D.C.: Hearings of the U.S. Senate Committee on Foreign Relations' Subcommittee on Narcotics, Terrorism and International Operations, miscellaneous sessions, 1987).

Drugs, Law Enforcement and Foreign Policy (Washington D.C.: Report of the U.S. Senate Committee

on Foreign Relations' Subcommittee on Narcotics, Terrorism and International Operations, Vols. I and 2, April 13, 1989).

EIR, "New Terror International Targets South Asia", Oct.13, 1995: "New Terror International Targets the Americas", Nov. 10. 1995; and "RIM:London's Narco-Terrorist International", Nov. 17, 1995.

EIR Special Report: Bush's Surrender to Dope, Inc.—U.S. Policy is Destroying Colombia (Washington. D.C., 1991)

EIR Special Report: Treason IN Washington: New Evidence on the "October Surprise" (Washington, D.C., February, 1992).

EIR Special Report: White Paper on the Panama Crisis—Who's Out to Destabilize the U.S. Ally, and Why (Washington, D.C., 1990).

Final Report of the Independent Counsel for Iran/Contra Matters, vols. I-3 (Washington, D.C.: United States Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia Circuit, Aug. 4, 1993).

Iran-Contra Affair (Washington, D.C.: Report of the Senate and House Committees (S. Rept. No. 100-216, H. Rept. 100-433), and depositions thereto, November 1987).

Oliver North and William Novak, *Under Fire* (New York: Harper, 1991).

Morgan Norval. ed., *The Militia in 20th Century America—A Symposium* (Falls Church, Virginia: Gun Owners Foundation, 1985).

Felix I. Rodriguez and John Weisman, *Shadow Warrior—The CIA Hero of a Hundred Unknown Battles* (New York: Simon and Schuster, 1989).

Peter Dale Scott and Jonathan Marshall, *Cocaine Politics—Drugs, Armies, and the CIA in Central America* (Berkeley: University of California Press, 1991).

Richard Secord, *Honored and Betrayed—Irangate, Covert Affairs, and the Secret War in Laos* (New York: John Wiley and Sons, 1992).

Soviet Unconventional Warfare in lbero-America: The Case of Guatemala, Aug 15, 1985, EIR, Washington, D. C.

Webster Griffin Tarpley and Anton Chaitkin, *George Bush—The Unauthorized Biography* (Washington, D.C.: Executive Intelligence Review, 1992).